DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 068 017

24

HE 003 458

A CONTRACTOR OF THE SECOND CONTRACTOR OF THE S

AUTHOR

Miller, James W.

TITLE

Male Student Success in the Collegiate Early

Admission Experiment. Final Report.

INSTITUTION

Hawaii Univ., Honolulu.

SPONS AGENCY

Office of Education (DHEW), Washington, D.C. Bureau

of Research.

BUREAU NO PUB DATE BR-5-0834 Aug 68

CONTRACT

OEC-2-10-102

NOTE

210p.

EDRS PRICE

MF-\$0.65 HC-\$9.87

DESCRIPTORS

Able Students; *Accelerated Programs; Admission (School); *College Students; *Early Admission; Gifted; *Higher Education; *Talented Students

ABSTRACT

In 1951, 240 high school students with great academic promise interrupted their high school careers after completion of the 10th grade in order to enter college through an early admissions program. This document presents a follow-up study of these students, 213 of whom were males, and 252 other students who entered college in the conventional manner at the same time. The major objectives of the study were: (1) to examine the long-range effects of academic acceleration; and (2) to evaluate a large scale innovation of this type in education. The general conclusion concerning the effects of acceleration on students is that these students had accepted the opportunity offered by early admission to college and capitalized on it to accelerate the development of careers with minimum observable ill-effects both during and after college. As a large scale innovation in education, the Early Admission Program lacked 3 fundamental characteristics: a clear direction; a well-conceived research design; and a sound public relations program. (HS)

BR-5-0834 PR-24 FINAL REPORT ED 06801 PROJECT NO. BR-5-0834 (CRP 1570) CONTRACT NO. OE-2-10-102 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.
EDUCATION & WELFARE
OFFICE OF EDUCATION
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN REPRODUCED EXACTLY AS RECEIVED FROM
THE PERSON OR ORGANIZATION ORIGINATING IT POINTS OF VIEW OR OPINIONS STATED DO NOT NECESSARILY
REPRESENT OFFICIAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION POSITION OR POLICY AUGUST 1968 S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION AND WELFARE OFFICE OF EDUCATION BUREAU OF RESEARCH FILMED FROM BEST AVAILABLE COPY

FINAL REPORT

Project No. BR-5-0834 (CRP 1570)

Contract No. 0E-2-10-102

MALE STUDENT SUCCESS

IN THE COLLEGIATE EARLY ADMISSION EXPERIMENT

James W. Miller

University of Hawaii

Honolulu, Hawaii

1968

The research reported herein was performed pursuant to a contract with the Office of Education, U. S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare. Contractors undertaking such projects under Government sponsorship are encouraged to express freely their professional judgment in the conduct of the project. Points of view or opinions stated do not, therefore, necessarily represent official Office of Education position or policy.

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

Office of Education Bureau of Research



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

For the past seven years, a number of persons and institutions have contributed to the completion of the Follow-up Study of Male Student Success in the Collegiate Early Admission Program.

Professor Fletcher Watson of Harvard University intervened at critical moments throughout the past seven years to help me bring the study to completion. His comments and critiques helped me clarify my thoughts on paper. I would not have been able to finish the study without his encouragement.

Dr. William Cooley, formerly assistant professor of education at Harvard University and currently director of Project Talent at the University of Pittsburgh, kept me statistically honest by asking the questions the Corced me to keep within the most appropriate statistics. His interest in the project gave me confidence that the study was worthwhile and feasible.

Dr. John Carroll, formerly professor of education at Earward University and currently with the Educational Testing Service of Princeton, New Jersey, foresaw my need to solidify my skills in statistics. His comments clarified the research design.

Dr. Francis Keppel, formerly Dean of the Graduate School of Education. Harvard University, and currently president of the General Learnings Corporation of New York City, New York, opened the first door by obtaining permission from the Ford Foundation for me to use the original data of the Early Admission Program.

Several foundations and institutions contributed direct and indirect support for the study: The Atherton Fund, Honolulu, Hawaii; The Community Foundation of Hawaii, Honolulu, Hawaii; Harvard University, Cambridge, Massachusetts; The Higgins Fund, Harvard University; The



Newton Public Schools, Newton, Massachusetts; U. S. Office of Education, Department of Health, Education and Welfare, Washington, D.C., and the University of Hawaii, Honolulu, Hawaii.

The major part of the follow-up study was conducted at the University of Hawaii. I owe thanks to four members of the faculty and staff who helped me obtain working funds and a cooperative research contract with the U. S. Office of Education. They were Dr. Robert Hiatt, formerly Director of Research and currently Vice-President for Academic Affairs; Dr. Hubert V. Everly, Dean of the College of Education; Dr. Torlef Nelson, formerly Principal of the University High School and currently Director of Off-Campus Programs, and Mr. Thomas Yim, member of the Office of Resources Development.

Once the follow-up study was underway, the problem of records was solved smoothly by the registrars of the five universities and colleges in the study: The University of Chicago, Columbia University, Oberlin College, the University of Wisconsin, and Yale University.

An unexpected and greatly appreciated source of help with Wisconsin came from Mr. Herbert M. Howe, advisor of the early admittees at the University of Wisconsin in 1951-55, and one person who really cared about what happened to his "youngsters."

Encouragement for the completion of the study came from personal friends, several of whom conspired financially to enable me to return to Harvard University to complete the study properly. They were Mr. Robert Hosaka, Mr. William Hayashi, Mr. Will Kyselka, Mr. Cheong Lum, Mrs. Shizuko Ouchi, and Miss Bettina King.

During the period 1962-64, when the workload was heaviest, three young ladies organized the activities and kept operations running efficiently. Karen Umoto, Sandra Yoshioka and Janet Matsuo were excellent

secretaries. No doubt they will be appalled at me revision of the "final revision." During the same period, Diane Suematsu did a remarkable job of cross-checking the accuracy of the data as transferred from the questionnaires and transcripts.

Although many persons contributed to the completion of the study, they cannot be held responsible for any shortcomings of the final report.

I have been solely responsible for its preparation and am hopeful that I have been successful in presenting the findings fairly.

I had always wondered why so many writers and their acknowledgements with mentions of the great help of their wives. I now know the answer.

To my wife, Jane, I must say, "Thank you."

James W. Miller

Table of Contents

		Page
	Acknowledgements List of Tables Abstract	ii vi ix
Chapte	r	
1.	Introduction	1
2.	Academic Acceleration A Hackground	3
3.	The Early Admission Program	18
4.	The Early Admission Program as an Experiment	26
5•	The Early Admission Follow-up Study	59
6.	Analysis and Interpretation of the Data of the	71
	Follow-up Study	
7.	Conclusion	122
	Appendix	137
	Bibliography	191



List of Tables

Table		Page			
2.01	The University of Chicago ExperimentNumber of Participants by Years				
4.0]	The Control and Experimental Students at Five Colleges and Universities in 1951				
4.02	Scholastic Achievement Test Scores of the Experimental Group, 1951				
4.0%	Examinations used to Select the Experimental Group, 1951				
4.01	First Year Programs of the Early Admission Program, 1951	34			
4.05	Pre-college Information, EIS Questionnaine, 1953 (Items 8, 9, and 10)	36			
4.06	Pro-college Information, ETS Questionnaire, 1953 (Items 17, 18, and 59)	37			
4.07	Undergraduate Information, ETS Questionnaise, 1953 (Items 30 and 31)	39			
4.0%	Ratings of Stadents in their First and Fourth Years, 1951 and 1955	41			
4.07	Graduate Record Examination Many Scores	42			
4,10	Ratings of Emotional Adjustments by Faculty, 1951 Group at all Colleges and Universities	44			
4.33	Failures, Withdrawals, and Transfers of the 1951 Group	46			
4.12	Undergrad sets Information, College Estings, ETS Questionasire, 1958 (Fiere 66, 68, 69, and 70)	48			
4.18	Undergrade to Information, Student Responser, ETS Questions isc, 1953 (Items 14, 24, 25, and 27)	51			
4.34	Undergraduate Information, Student Pesponees, ETS Questions tre, 1953 (Items 29, 32, 33, and 34)	53			
4.35	Undergraduate Information, College Ratings, ETS Questions ite, 1953 (liens 43, 44, and 71)	54			

Table		Page
5.01	Participants in the Early Admission Program, 1951-1954	60
6.01	Pre-college Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part 1, Items 3-6)	73
6.02	Pre-college Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1952 (Part II, Items 1-7)	75
6.03	Undergraduate Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part III, Items 1-6)	80
6.04	Undergraduate Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part IV, Item 4)	84
6.05	Undergraduate Information, Academic Transcripts, 1901-54	85
6.06	Undergraduate Information, Academic Transcripts, 1901-54	86
6.07	Graduate Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part IV, Item 5)	90
6.08	Graduate School Versus Non-Graduate School Attendance	91
6.09	Number of Times Graduate Major Area of Study Changed For Those Who Attended Graduate School	91
6.10	Graduate Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part 1V, 1tem 1)	92
6.11	Graduate Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part 1V, 1tem 2)	94
6.12	Graduate Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1969 (Part IV, Item 3)	95
6.13	Occupational Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part VI, Item 1)	97
6.14	Occupational Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part VI, Item 2)	99
6.15	Occupational Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part VI, Item 7)	,101
6.16	Occupational Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962	102

E PROPERTY AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF

Table	•••	Page
6.)7	Ott: Occupational Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part VII, Items 1-3, 5)	103
6.18	Social Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1952 (Part V, Items 1-10)	106
6.19	Foonomic Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962 (Part VI, Items 4-7)	112
6.20	Sub-group: of the Control Group and the Experimental Group Schaelfied on Formal Educations of Fathers (1951 Group)	115
6.21	Graduate School Attendance of Control and Experimental Students Where Fathers Were not College Graduates (1951 Group)	116
6.92	Graduate Sergel Attendance of Control and Experimental Students Whene Fathers Were College Graduates (1951 Group)	117
6.23	Property Acquired by Control and Experimental Students Whose Fathers Were not Colleg. Graduates (1951 G. eq.)	119
6.24	Property Act 1 and by Control and Experimental Students Whose Fatters Lare College Graduates (1901 Group)	120
7.03	Ser may of FindingsFTS Questionssizes, 1953-55	125
7.00	Survey of Findings-Follow-up Quartionneire, 1962	126

Abstract

Male Student Success

In The Collegiate Early Admission Experiment

In 1951, 420 students of high academic promise interrupted their high school educations at the end of the tenth grade and entered eleven colleges and universities as freshmen. The students were the first of four groups in the Early Admission Program which was financed by the Fund for the Advancement of Education of the Ford Foundation between 1951 and 1958. By 1954, Morehouse had become a participating college and 1350 students had entered twelve colleges and universities—early under the Program. The follow-up study, begun in 1962, was concerned with five of the twelve colleges and universities in the Program. It traced the young men who, in 1951, had entered Columbia University, the University of Chicago, Oberlin College, the University of Wisconsin, and Yale University.

The major objectives of the study were (1) to examine the longrange effects of academic acceleration and (2) to evaluate a large scale innovation in education.

Data for the follow-up study came from three sources: (1) The questionnaires used in 1953 and in 1955 when the Program was underway, (2) the academic transcripts of the young men of both the control and the experimental groups, and (3) the follow-up questionnaire.

In the Early Admission Program, each college had selected its experimental group using its own criteria. In general, the selection was based on high school records, scores on the Scholastic high school principals, and personal interviews. Each college also



selected a group of young men of comparable ability who had entered college in the conventional manner for comparison purposes. In 1951, 240 experimental students and 252 control students had attended the five colleges and universities in the follow-up study. Of these students, 213 of the experimental group and 197 of the control group were men.

The critical issue in the Early Admission Program was academic acceleration between school and college. The issue involved the search for procedures for shortening the extended training period of the academically talented student in the United States. Among the procedures currently available for articulating the high school and the college, academic acceleration has been the least acceptable among high school educators. Academic acceleration, the high school educators have claimed, is unwise, unsound and unnecessary.

Other programs of academic acceleration between school and college have been undertaken. Three such programs were the experiments at the University of Chicago, the University of Illinois, and the University of Louisville. None of these programs were able to quiet the objections of the high school educators to academic acceleration because none of the programs had provided conclusive evidence about satisfactory emotional adjustments of the accelerated students in college.

THE STATE OF THE PROPERTY OF T

Extensive data were already available on the performance and adjustments of the experimental group to college when the follow-up study began. The follow-up study sought answers to the question, "What happened to the early admittees after college?" Approximately 65% of both groups responded to the follow-up questionnaire.

Five mll hypotheses were identified and tested. These hypothe-

ses, which were tested by extensive use of Chi-squares, were:

- There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in socioeconomic backgrounds.
- 2. There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in undergraduate performance.
- 3. There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in attainment of choices of and entrances into graduate schools.
- 4. There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in occupational attainments and activities.
- 5. There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in post-college socio-economic activities.

The summary of findings of the follow-up study showed that the second mull hypothesis could not be rejected byt all the other four were rejected. The rejection of the first null hypothesis was based on observed significant differences between the two groups in occupations of fathers, educations of fathers, religious affiliations of parents, and type of high school last attended. The rejection of the third mull hypothesis was based on observed significant differences between the two groups in entrance into graduate schools. The rejection of the fourth mull hypothesis was based on observed significant differences in the paths taken in occupational activities by the two groups. The fifth mull hypothesis was rejected because the groups exhibited significantly different socioeconomic statuses and had reproduced the

socioeconomic status of their parents.

The general conclusion which evolved from the pattern of the rejections of the null hypothesis was that experimental group had accepted the opportunity offered by early admission to college and capitalised on it to accelerate the development of careers with minimum observable ill-effects both during and after college.

As a large scale innovation in education, the Early Admission Program lacked three fundamental characteristics. It lacked a clear direction; it lacked a well-conceived research design, and it lakked a sound public relations program. All three shortcomings might have been overlooked if the heuristic properties of the Program had been protected. Unfortunately, the Program was also lacking in safeguards of the heuristic properties.

In spite of the shortcomings of the Program with respect to the research characteristics, the data gathered provide conclusive evidence that the experimental group had gained two years over its chronological peer group with no observable ill-effects in post-college graduate activities, occupational activities, and socioeconomic activities.

Chapter 1

Introduction

In 1951, 420 students of high academic promise interrupted their high school educations at the end of the tenth grade and entered eleven colleges and universities as freshmen. The students were the first of four groups in the Early Admission Program which was financed by the Fund for the Advancement of Education of the Ford Foundation between 1951 and 1958. By 1954, 1350 students had entered college early under the Program. The follow-up study of male student success in the Program is concerned with five of the twelve colleges and universities. The follow-up study, begun in 1962, traced the young men who, in 1951, had entered Columbia University, the University of Chicago, Oberlin College, the University of Wisconsin, and Yale University.

The two major objectives of the study were (1) to examine the long-range effects of academic acceleration and (2) to evaluate a large scale educational innovation. Of the two objectives, the second is currently of greater interest than the first primarily because academic acceleration seems no longer to be a high priority issue in education.

The final reports and discussions already published about the Early Admission Program refer to the early admittees as <u>Scholars</u>. In the follow-up study, they are called the <u>experimental group</u>. The regular superior college students whom the colleges had selected for comparison purposes were called <u>Comparisons</u>. In the follow-up study, they are called the <u>control group</u>. In general, the Comparisons or the control group were two years older than the Scholars or the experimental group,

Chapter 6 presents the follow-up data and the interpretations of the data under sub-headings of pre-college information, undergraduate information, graduate information, occupational information, and socioeconomic information.

Chapter 7 reviews the conclusions of earlier reports and critiques, and compares them with the findings of the follow-up study.

Chapter 2

Academic Acceleration—A Background

Academic acceleration is one approach toward bringing together different sections of the educational system. The approach is an example of educational articulation, the fitting together into a functioning whole the distinct parts of the educational sequence from kindergarten to college without the loss of identity of each of the parts. In the present discussion, articulation programs are limited to programs which fit together the high schools and the colleges. In addition to academic acceleration, other forms of articulation between high schools and colleges are enrichment programs and advanced placement programs.

Enrichment programs are characterized by studies in depth or studies in supplementary or expanded topics. Such programs often provide intellectual stimulation for students because the programs can be related to existing interests of the students. Enrichment programs, however, do not shorten the period of time that the students must spend in high schools and in colleges. Examples of enrichment programs are the physics course of the Physical Science Study Committee (PSSC), the chemistry courses of the American Chemical Society (ACS), and the biological sciences courses of the American Institute of Biological Sciences (AIBS) (11, 51, 53, 79, 80, 81, 100, 101, 113).

Advanced placement programs are collegiate quality programs intended primarily for high school students of high academic promise. When successfully completed by students through satisfactory performances in subject area tests, advanced placement programs permit the students to waive prerequisites for certain classes in colleges. For



example, students who are successful in advanced placement mathematics at permitted to enter other higher level classes in mathematics in their first years in colleges. In some instances, students who have successfully completed several advanced placement courses may enter colleges with advanced standing; that is, as second semester freshmen or as first semester sophomores.

Although advanced placement does not typically permit students to shorten the time they spend in high schools and in colleges, certain students who qualify for advanced standing do shorten the time they spend in colleges. Generally, however, students with advanced placement credits spend the conventional four years in volleges but are able to encorporate graduate level studies into their undergraduate programs. Examples of advanced placement programs are the program of the University of Buffalo (5, 70, 71, 72, 85, 120) and the Advanced Placement program of the College Entrance Examination Board (24, 25, 26, 28, 32, 38, 57, 73, 94, 118, 121).

Academic acceleration between schools and colleges, because it shortens the program of the schools or of the colleges may not be a genuine articulation effort. It attempts to modify the identity of at least one of two parts it should be putting together. Academic acceleration is classed as an articulation program in the present discussion because it operates between two distinct parts of the educational sequence. Under academic acceleration, students of high academic promise are permitted to omit a year or more of schooling to enter a higher level. When acceleration occurs between schools and colleges, students often interrupt their high school educations and enter college early. Examples of academic acceleration are the program of the University of Chicago (12, 17, 20, 68, 116) and the Early Admission Program of the Fund for

the Advancement of Education (4, 41, 42, 57, 58, 76).

Academic acceleration between schools and colleges or early admissions into colleges are solutions to problem which accompained the growth of higher education in the United States. The growth of the American university led to the extension of the training period for students. The extanded time for education by the universities was partly attributable to the attempt by American universities to merge the ideals of scholarship and research of the German university with the ideals of scholarship and research of the German university with the ideals of liberal studies of the English college (39). Officials of American universities knew that implementing one part alone could take the entire four years staudents customarily spent in colleges. The merging of the two ideals brought about the severe competition for proportions of the collegiate programs by advocates of both the liberal arts and specialized programs.

The competition for the time of the students was aggravated by the increased stature and desirability of the degree of doctor of philosophy in the tradition of the German university because it furthered lengthened the educational program from high school, through college and to graduate schools.

Between 1880 and 1910, schools and colleges participated in large scale efforts to improve the transition program of students from school to college. Prominent among these efforts were the College Entrance Examination Board and the curriculum conference of the National Education Association (NEA) (93). These efforts did not reduce the extended training period from high school to graduate school, but did eliminate some duplication of studies between schools and colleges. These transition efforts provided some degree of similarity in academic backgrounds of students entering colleges from different schools in different parts

of the country.

Academic acceleration seemed a dormant issue until the 1930's.

Although other programs preceded it, the program at the University of Chicago, in 1937, renewed academic acceleration as a critical issue (12, 20). Shortly thereafter, under the impetus of the severe manpower requirements of the nation during World War II (1941-45), other programs appeared. Some of these programs were intended to keep the college enrollment up while others were intended to maintain the flow of talent through the universities. The proliferation of such programs prompted Pressey (96) to convene a three-day conference at Chio State University in the summer of 1942 to map plans for coordinating and controll the efforts of academic acceleration between schools and colleges.

Pressey sought plans for deriving the greatest knowledge about academic acceleration from the programs already underway. Among those present at the conference were Jones, whose work at Buffalo in the 1930's had anticipated the Advanced Placement Program of the College Entrance Examination Board by twenty years, and Elicker, who was already executive secretary of the National Association of Secondary School Principals and who was to co-author a scathing criticism of the Early Admission Program in 1951.

In the fall of 1942, the Educational Policies Commission of the National Education Association adopted the following resolution on academic acceleration:

We urge that, during the war emergency, selected students who have achieved senior standing in high school and who will, in the judgement of high school and college authorities, profit from a year's college education before they reach selective service age, be admitted to coalege and, at the end of the successful completion of their freshmen year, be granted a diploma of graduation by the high school and full credit for a year's work towards the fullfillment of the requirements for the Bachelor's degree or as preparation for advanced professional education (40, 89).

Within a few days, the resolution was under attack by educators at



both the high school and the college levels (59, 119). Most of the criticisms had been anticipated by the Educational Policies Commission but the resolution had been adopted inspite of the arguments or rather in light of the arguments.

Edmonson, in clarifying the position of the Commission, had outlined the negative aspects of the resolution as seen by the Commission (40). The resolution could be interpreted as undermining the value of the last year of high schools; it might imply that three years of a four-year high school program would not result in loss in educational value and, thereby, encourage students to leave high school early. It implied that the colleges were better prepared than the high schools to offer appropriate instruction to 17-year-old students. The high schools, on the other hand, felt that the last year of high school was more valuable to the students than the first year in a conventional college. Among the anticipated accusations, the Commission foresaw the claim that the resolution helped the colleges with their lagging enrollments rather than the young students.

Since 1942, the character of the arguments for and against academic acceleration between schools and colleges has been the serious consequences of academic acceleration upon the emotional and academic well-being of the students. Furthermore, conflicting interests and continued suspicions have resulted in overt arguments not always being the real issues. For example, the high schools have interpreted the actions of the colleges toward early admission as a usurpation of institutionalized prerogatives, but they seemed more incensed about the criticisms on the adequacies of the high school programs for the academically talented student (97).

To summarize, academic acceleration is one of three forms of arti-



culation of high schools and colleges. The issue of procedures for shortening the extended training period of academically talented students in the United States has become entagled in the ploitical actions of the high schools and the colleges. Enrichment programs and advanced placement programs have provided solutions acceptable to high schools and colleges but they fail to meet the long-range problem of the students who will pursue graduate and professional studies.

Three experimental programs are reviewed in the following sections to provide a context for questions about academic acceleration. They were independent undertakings at the University of Chicago, the University of Louisville and the University of Illinois.

The Experiment at the University of Chicago, 1937-42

The University of Chicago was a pioneer in adopting the early admission principle in intent and in practice. In 1930, the faculty at Chicago had searched for a new undergraduate plan which would maintain a balance between the liberal arts and specialization. When it assessed the balance, the faculty at Chicago discovered that the requirements and academic demands of specialization tended to compress the liberal arts into a smaller portion of the collegiate program. By 1937, the faculty at Chicago were convinced that the two-year program of liberal studies was inadequate. They were forced to look for additional time in the years students normally spent in the high schools.

The faculty at Chicago reasoned that, if the last two years of the secondary schools and the first two years of college could be combined, then a four-year liberal arts program was possible. They developed such a program by first creating a kindergarten to grade 10 plan in the Chicago campus school. The merger of grades 11 and 12 with the first two years of college became the four-year college of the University of Chicago. In effect, the plan permitted students to enter

the undergraduate college two years before they had graduated from high school.

In 1941, Benner (12) published a final report of the experiment.

Table 2.1 summarizes the participation of students in the experiment.

Benner explained that the two sharp drops in enrollment were not functions of the program but of two other effects. First, the number of participants was largely a function of the number of students of the campus school who were ready to undertake academic acceleration and the Chicago program. The number of students fluctuated over the period of the experiment. Second, the sharp drops at the end of the second year for the first two groups were caused by students leaving the program to enter conventional four-year colleges and universities elsewhere in the country. The students were leaving Chicago at what would have been the end of their senior years in high schools.

Because so many students left after two years in the program, Hutchins (51) observed that it was impossible to develop a liberal arts program without presenting the degree of bachelor of arts at the end of the program. The faculty at Chicago concurred and, in 1942, Chicago began conferring the degree of bachelor of arts at the end of its four-year program.

During the program, Chicago put together for each student a dossier which contained a syllabus for each course pursued, a fairly complete case history of educational guidance and personnel records, a copy of each of the seven required six-hour examinations, and the actual examination papers the students wrote under supervision. The dossier indicated the success of each student who entered the program, but because it used the clinical approach, it could not help provide generalizations about the program itself.

The University of Chicago Experiment

Number of Participants by Years

(12, p. 212)

Table 2.01

The state of the s						
Year Entered	Sex	1937-38	1938-39	1939-40	1940-41	
1937	M	48	44	32	29	
	F	70	70	27	24	
1 9:-8	r:		71	69	37	
	F		6]	61	34	
1950	<i>1:</i> .			51	50	
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	I [;]			55	54	



In 1952, ten years after the critical reactions (102, 114) to the granting of the degree of bachelor of arts by the University of Chicago at the end of its four-year program of liberal studies, Chicago accepted the challenge to compare the performances of its four-year graduates to graduates of other conventional colleges on a nationally recognised examination, the Graduate Record Examination. With only one hundred students out of a possible three hundred taking the examinations, Chicago was able to show that its graduates were comparable to graduates of other colleges. By the time Chicago had decided to make the comparison, most of its graduates were out of reach; hence, the low number of subjects.

The Experiment at the University of Louisville, 1934

The experiment at Louisville (37) provided an earlier intellectual challenge for the superior student by placing him in a college one year earlier than his classmates. To proceed with the experiment, Louisville sought and received the approval of the Southern Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools (SACSS). The SACSS, in approving the Louisville experiment, limited it to no more than 25 entering students per year.

Detchen (37) reported that students who were accepted into the experiment had to stand above the fiftieth percentile for regular freshmen at Louisville on the Psychological Examination of the American Council on Education, the Melson-Denny Reading Test, and the Cooperative English Test in Usage. In addition, students had to equal or surpass the achievement levels of students in high schools of the city of Louisville in the Somes-Harry High School Achievement Test. Detchen reported further that the recommendations of the high school principals were the important initial qualifiers for students and that few of the choices of the principals were rejected.

Officials at Louisville interviewed both the students and their



parents before they made the final selection of the experimental group. Final decisions were made only after Louisville officials were convinced that the students were nature enough to undertake the program. The stringent requirements for admission and the initial suspicions of parents toward the experiment contributed to the low participation of only 35 students in the program from 1934 to 1938 (37).

Bach student in the experiment was matched with another student, a control student, who was one year older but similar in sex and in standings in placement tests. In college, the experimental students were treated in every pespect like all other students. To insure the similar treatment, the experimental students remained unidentified to the teaching faculty.

Evaluations were based upon grades earned during the academic years; on ratings on the Mational Sophomore Test; on participation in extracurricular activities; on opinions of parents; on personalities of the students, and on student opinions. The results, in general, showed no significant differences between the experimental and control groups on the various evaluative criteria. The early admittees and their parents were favorably impressed by the program.

Among the strengths of the Louisville experiment were its public relations program and its prime concern for the best interest of the applicants and students in the program. Louisville was so successful in its public relations program that at the end of the experiment, Louisville received enthusiastic praise from SACSS (37). During the selection process of the experiment, Louisville acted in the best interest of the applicants. Although its experiment suffered from low participation, Louisville discouraged several girls of high ability because the girls aspired to completing their undergraduate studies at

outstanding colleges for women, particularly among the colleges on the Atlantic seaboard. The girls were discouraged from participating in the program because the reactions of such colleges toward the experiment were unknown.

The Experiment at the University of Illinois, 1943

Berg and Larsen (14) reported on the early admission experiment carried out at the University of Illinois in 1943. The report was a short-term study and covered the performance of the early admittees for only the first half year in college. Admission to the program was limited to students who had ranked in the upper one-fourth of their high school classes; had completed no fewer than 14 high school units toward regular admissions to college; received the recommendations of their principals and their teachers; had scored above the seventy-fifth percentile on freshmen norms of the College of Agriculture of the University of Illinois in a battery of tests designed to measure aptitude and achievement, and had rated satisfactory on social and emotional maturity as determined by clinical psychologists of the Personnel Bureau of the University of Illinois. Thirty-six students out of 46 applicants made up the experimental group.

The conclusions drawn from the Illinois experiment were tentative and of limited success. The accelerated students were able to surpass the mean level of academic petformance of the University of Illinois, but when compared with students in the separate fields of study, the accelerated students had not performed as well. Thirty-one of the 36 experimental students had placed above the eightieth percentile of the overall norms of the University of Illinois, but only 14 had ranked above the same percentile level on the norms of the separate colleges

they had entered.

A strength of the Illinois experiment was the extensive collection of pre-experiment data on each of the experimental students. Unfortunately the small sample size and the lack of a control group limited the use of the pre-experiment data.

भारती हैं। इस राजेक्टर हुन्द्र र प्रश्नात क्षेत्रकार किया है।

Illinois had undertaken the experiment after, and perhaps in response to, the outburst of criticisms by officials of high schools and colleges following the release of the statement of acceleration of the Educational Policies Commission of the National Education Association in 1942 (40, 59). Therefore, its public relations program with schools and colleges was questionable at the outset of the experiment.

Some Recurring Questions about Academic Acceleration

Are the superior students who are carefully selected able to perform at superior levels when they are accelerated into colleges? The Illinois experiment, though inconclusive, indicated that the superior students who are accelerated into college do not perform at superior levels. The Louisville and the Chicago experiments indicated that the superior students do perform at superior levels. Unfortunately, the experimental population at Louisville was too small to be conclusive. At Chicago, the students could not be compared with other superior students because Chicago did not use a control group and because the data was predominantly subjective.

That the students accelerated into college might be able to maintain their relative superior standings is supported by another source. In 1958, Wilcox (121), reporting on students admitted to Harvard with advanced standing, showed that half of a group of 31 advanced standing sophomores ranked with the top quartile of regular sophomores at Harvard on a scale predictive of academic success. Since actual performance was

not reported, the study by Wilcox, like the experiments at Louisville and Chicago, was only indicative of what superior students might do in college. Therefore, the question about superior students and their performances when they are accelerated into colleges remained largely unanswered.

Are superior students who are carefully selected able to make satisfactory personal adjustments when they are accelerated into colleges? Berg and Larson (14) in reporting on the Illinois experiment claimed that the accelerated students made satisfactory personal adjustments in college but no detailed report on such adjustment was ever published. Chicago was not able to answer the question about personal adjustments among its experimental students. Louisville, on the other hand, was able to compare the adjustments of its early admittees to that of the control group. Based upon the responses of parents and students, Louisville concluded that the experimental group had made satisfactory personal adjustments in college.

Although the evidence indicated some tendency toward satisfactory adjustment by the accelerated students, the evidence was inconclusive. The question about personal adjustments and the criteria upon which the adjustment was assessed remained unanswered.

To what extent were the early admittees representative of a larger population of superior students? No evidence exists that any attempt had been made in any of the three experiments reviewed to sample the larger population of all students of high academic promise when the experimental groups were being formed. In general, the clinical approach of individual cases was used in all three experiments. Therefore, generalizations and extrapolations about early admissions cannot be made with confidence.

How effective were the public relations programs of the early admissions experiments? Of the three experiments, Louisville had the most effective public relations program. Louisville worked through the Southern Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools (SACSS) and was willing to abide by a ceiling of 25 experimental students per year set by the SACSS. In the selection of the experimental group, Louisville relied heavily upon the principals of the high schools. During and after the experiment, Louisville sought the reactions of parents of the accelerated students. By such procedures, Louisville had extended its public relations program to the accrediting association, to schools, and to the parents of the experimental students.

Chicago and Illinois apparently lacked public relations programs. Chicago had evolved a remarkable four-year program but its apparent disdain for the concerns of other colleges and the high schools led to the unwillingness of its critics to see any favorable aspects of the program. In a similar manner, Illinois seemed to have under taken its program in defiance of the critics of the resolution on academic acceleration adopted in 1942 by the Educational Policies Commission (59, 89). The reactions of critics of both programs may have been responsible for the disappearance of the Illinois experiment, a final report of which was never published, and the withering away of interest in the Chicago plan.

In summary, the experiments at Chicago, Louisville and Illinois were inconclusive in their findings about the performance of the accelerated students. The Chicago program was characterized by novel structure; the Louisville experimentaby an attempt to control critical variables by the use of experimental and control groups, and the Illinois experiment by extensive pre-experiment data on its accelerated students. The three experiments were similar in one respect; they



each examined academic acceleration on a short-range basis. None of the three experiments questioned the academic outcomes beyond the four-year college period. They made no effort to find out whether the superior high school student who was accelerated into college could compete effectively with older superior students in postcollege activities.

Chapter 3

The Early Admission Program

In the fall of 1950, and before the end of the first academic semester, many college students and recent high school graduates faced the prospect of being drafted for military service after their first year in college. Some enlisted to fulfill their military commitments, after which they planned to re-enter college. Other students entered college to wait for Congress to enact draft deferment legislation.

College officials were disturbed, however, by the number of students who were leaving the colleges and by the number of students who might not be permitted to continue in college because of the draft. On January 10, 1951, at the 37th Annual Conference of the Association of American Colleges, they voiced their concern that Congress had yet to enact draft deferment legislation (95). They felt that such legislation would provide a greater stability of the college enrollments, and, at the same time, keep the steady flow of academically talented students moving through the colleges. College officials were also disturbed not only by the absence of draft deferment legislation but also by the possibility that Congress might adopt a policy of no-deferment because of the demands and the seriousness of the military situation in Korea at that time. A no-deferment policy, they felt, might have grave consequences on the pool of young leaders and scholars in the nation after the Korean Conflict ended. Accordingly, they proposed and adopted at the 37th Annual Conference a policy urging Congress to defer promising students from military service until after such students had graduated from college.



On January 11, 1951, Assistant Secretary of Defense Anna Rosenberg, testifying before the Senate Preparedness Subcommittee, announced a proposal by Secretary of Defense George C. Marshall advocating the deferment of 75,000 students a year from military service, but not from military training. By this proposal, Marshall had hoped to maintain the steady flow of talent through the colleges and meet the proposal of the colleges. The Marshall proposal on military service was enacted by Congress and signed into law on April 1, 1951.

During the period when the status of the young high school student and graduate was indefinite, four universities approached the Ford Foundation with a plan to ensure that 200 young men of high academic promise would gain the background of a liberal education before they were drafted into the armed services. Under the plan, the 200 young men would enter college at age 16 so that when they reached the draft age of 19, they would have completed two years of studies in the liberal arts. The Fund for the Advancement of Education of the Ford Foundation approved of the plan and on April 22, 1951, announced a grant of \$1,200,000 to the University of Wisconsin, the University of Chicago, Columbia University and Tale University to finance the "pre-induction program."

By mid-spring in 1951, the successful counter-offensive of the United Nations in Korea had eased the manpower requirements of the armed services. The enactment of draft deferment legislation by the Congress had eased the concerns of the colleges. With goth pressures reduced, high school educators reacted to the program with serious misgivings. Some educators, upon examining the plan, found marked similarities between the pre-induction program and other efforts at early admission to college which took place during World War II. In 1958, Fels (49)

observed that the similarity should have been expected since Hutchins and other former members of the faculty of the University of Chicago directed the Ford Foundation and the Fund for the Advancement of Education which had provided the grant.

What was the Early Admission Program?

The Early Admission Program grew out of the pre-induction plan. Initially, it was an attempt to preserve for and extend to students the values of an integrated liberal education at a time when a protracted national emergency threatened to postpone higher education for high school graduates. Primarily responsible for the program were F. Champion Ward of the University of Chicago, Mark Ingraham of the University of Wisconsin, William C. De Vane of Yale University, and Lawrence H. Chamberlain of Columbia University. The four men contended that a college education wholly postponed until after military service would "impair the quality of our national life, and the personal resources and competences of our young men" (4). Their solution to the problem was the program of early admission because experiences in European schools and limited experiences in America had indicated that "intelligent younger men of normal emotional maturity can profit from work of collegiate rigor and content at the age of 16" (4).

When the Early Admission Program was announced by the Fund, the students who were interested in the plan and had completed or were completing the tenth grade or its equivalent were asked to write to the four universities for application forms and for the descriptions of the courses of study (4, 95). The students were also advised to contract the College Entrance Examination Board to declare their intentions to take the examination scheduled for May 1951.

Under the plan, each of the four universities would offer its individual liberal arts programs. At Chicago, the liberal studies led to a culminating course which sought an integration of ideas through history and philosphy. Wisconsin offered the prescribed program of "Integrated Liberal Studies" with a core consisting of the studies of ancient, medieval, modern, and American cultures. The program at Yale was "Directed Study" and provided a common background of knowledge with philosphy serving as the instrument of integration in each of the two years. Columbia offered its prescribed courses, some of which were of an inter-departmental nature, in the humanities, the social sciences, and the sciences (4, 57, 58).

The officials at each of the participating colleges and universities realized that demonstrated ability, high academic promise, and emotional stability were the initial qualifications for the Early Admission Program. They were looking for the elusive quality which makes a scholar stand out among other superior students. The colleges further recognized that some students would benefit more by remaining in high school than by entering college early (58). For those students, the additional year or two in high school would provide time for them to develop higher levels of personal assurance and maturity. The colleges felt that the Early Admission Program was for the truly superior student who might by characterized by the initial qualifications, a good beginning in self-knowledge and self discipline, and by an unusual smount of intellectual, social, and emotional precocity.

The Program was an attempt by the colleges to meet the intellectual needs of the superior high school student but was not intended to suppliant the high schools for all superior students. The University of Utah argued that the inference to the schools and the public that the

colleges felt the high schools were a waste of time was inescapable (58). The inference was unfortunate because the Program required a special kind of student; one who was able to compress a regular three-year high school program and a four-year college program into five years, graduate with honors, and have no more serious emotional problems than other regular superior students.

The Program was not intended as a means for overhauling the structure of public education in the United States but the direct and indirect criticisms about the adequacies of the high school program which were used to rationalize the program (57, 58) made it seem so. The real issues and urgencies were lost in the context of the times; a period of national emergency. Part of the urgency can be explained by the estimates of the drop in college enrollments for the fall of 1951.

Before the draft deferment bill became law, the estimates of the drop in enrollment run as high as 25% (95), or 625,000 young men. By the fall of 1951, conditions had so changed that the actual loss intenrollment was only 10% (95), or 250,000 young men.

By the fall of 1951, other changes had been made in the Program. The participating colleges were expanded to include seven other colleges and universities: Fisk University, Lafayette College, University of Louisville, Cherlin College, Shimer College, University of Utah, and Goucher College. In addition, the Program was changed from a pre-induction program to a large scale experiment in education. Such major changes in the short span of four months were to have consequences in the evaluation of the Program.

Criticisms of the Early Admission Program

On May 4, 1951, less than two weeks after the amnouncement of the



Early Admission Program, the first major objection to the program appeared. It came in the form of a letter from Joseph B. Chaplin, president of the National Association of Secondary School Principals, and Paul E. Elicker, executive secretary of the National Association of Secondary School Principals, to all members urging them to resist the attempt to curtail the high school program through the use of the Early Admission Experiment by the colleges. Chaplin and Elicker had challenged the Program as being educationally unsound and damaging to the best interest of the students and the high schools. They pointed out that:

. . . it is contrary to the opinions of leading educators from colleges and secondary schools recently stated at a Conference on Acceleration held by the American Council on Education on March 19-20, 1951, in Washington, D.C. This curtailment of secondary education under the guise of scholarship aid is more devastating to youth and the secondary school program than acceleration which was regarded, also by leading educators at the above conference, as unwise, unnecessary and unsound . . . (4)

Chaplin and Elicker recommended further that principals and superintendents block the program by discouraging students who receive such scholarship aid and by writing letters of protests to the universities involved in the experiment. They recommended that:

. . . we use every means at our command to present to all educational, community and other meetings the implications of the unsound practice of curtailing secondary education and the subsequent admission of students to college before graduation. That we point out as effectively and as forcibly as possible these dangers, even with the alluring inducements of funds provided by the Ford Foundation. We must make citizens generally aware of the sinister implications of such a program especially if a scholarship award is offered to their sons . . . (4)

Chaplin and Elicker claimed that the project was in direct opesition to Recommendation 8 of the Nine Point Program made by the Committee on the Relation of Secondary Education to National security of the NASSP which read:

• • Early Admission to College. Recommended that secondary schools refrain from curtailing their educational programs to the extent that youth would, except in very unusual cases, enter college before their graduation from secondary schools. . . (4)

At the time that the Chaplin and Elicker letter was released, the Early Admission Program as envisioned by the colleges was intended for the very unusual student. However, by the fall of 1951, the Program in its expanded form was in opposition to Recommendation 8 because Shimer had admitted students with a wide range of aptitudes (58).

The full effect of the letter by Chaplin and Elicker was not known but the participating colleges did report that secondary school officials showed some resistance to the Program. In particular, Oberlin (58) felt that the resistance of secondary school officials was partly responsible for the difficulties encountered in attracting and selecting qualified students for the Program. Oberlin reported further that high school officials seemed motivated by germine concern for the emotional development of the students.

Summery

Academic acceleration reappeared as a critical issue during the Korean Conflict (1950-52). The critical issue revolved about procedures to insure the continuitey of leaders and scholars for the period beyond the then current national crisis. Four universities proposed the pre-induction experiment which grew into the Early Admission Program to reach young men of high academic promise before they were called for active duty with the armed services. Even before the national crises had been alleviated, Chaplin and Elicker, two officials of the Mational Association of Secondary School Principals, had prepared a letter sharply criticising the Program. The new issues became the potentially dangerous emotional adjustments of young men who enter

college early and the alleged encroachment of the colleges on the affairs of the high schools. By the fall of 1951, eleven colleges and universities were participating in the large scale immovation, the Egrly Admission Program.



Chapter 4

The Early Admission Program as an Experiment

The Early Admission Program was a large scale effort toward academic acceleration between schools and colleges and was financed by grants totalling over two million dollars from the Fund for the Advancement of Education. The Program was initially a pre-induction experiment which grew into a major project to seek solutions to the imperative demands upon the American educational system for "a broad enough base to prepare a competent citizenry, and high enough quality to produce effective leadership" (57, p. 16). The Program was consistent with three guidelines established by the Fund: (1) To view education as a whole and to relate clearly and logically its institutional parts, (2) to reexamine existing curricular arrangements and to successive educational stages, and (3) to seek ways to provide for greater flexibility in accommodating individual students of widely differing needs and capabilities (57, p. 17).

In perspective, there were four other efforts undertaken by the Fund for the Advancement of Education in the early 1950's. The first effort was the School and College Study of General Education. It sought a unity between the last two years of high school and the first two years of college through general education. The School and College Study was a joint undertaking of the faculties of three private preparatory schools for boys (Andover, Exeter, and Lawrenceville) and the faculties of three private universities (Harvard, Princeton, and Yale) (57). The report of the joint faculties, General Education in School and College, evoked much interest among school authorities.



The second undertaking brought together the public school system of Portland, Oregon, and the faculty of Reed College. In this project, the public school children of exceptional endowment participated in programs of enriched educational opportunities (57).

The third project may have stemmed from the work of the School and College Study of General Education. It evolved as the faculty of Kenyon College asked itself and others, "Could the general education now provided in the last two years of high school and the first two years of college be completed in a shorter time without losing the essential values of a liberal education?" The Kenyon Plan became the School and College Study of Admission with Advanced Standing, and still later, the Advanced Placement Program (57).

The fourth project resembled the Portland Project. It was the Atlanta Experiment in Articulation and Enrichment in School and College, a cooperative venture between Agnes Scott College, Emory University, Oglethorpe University, and the Westminster Schools. All four institutions are in or near Atlanta, Georgia. The project was later expanded to include a public high school in Atlanta (57).

Three reports on the Early Admission Program (41, 57, 58) have already been published with extensive data and interpretations of the data. The reports supported the conclusion that, based upon measures of academic performance and ratings of personal adjustments in college, the accelerated students were highly successful in the Program.

The reports, however, reflected the inadequate research design of the Program and, thereby, cast some doubt on the findings. For example, the data reported in the earlier reports were incomplete on large numbers of both the experimental and the control students who had entered the Program in 1951 and 1952. The incomplete data was the result of the lack of uniform data-gathering procedures. In 1953, the Educational Testing Service of Princeton, New Jersey, assumed responsibility for the evaluation of the Program and standardized the data collection procedures with three questionnaires.

In fairness to the earlier reports, it must be remembered that the Early Admission Program did not begin as an experiment in education. It became one sometime between April 22, 1951, when the Fund emmounced the initial grant for the Program, and September 1951, when the Fund announced the initial grant for the Program, and September 1951, when the colleges and universities opened for the fall term. The five-month period was not sufficient to develop and refine a research design that would have provided complete, consistent and relevant data for such a large scale undertaking.

The Sub-experiment

Data from the three earlier reports and from questionnaires completed by the control and experimental groups in 1953 were reexamined in 1960 and 1961. The reexamination was an <u>sx post facto</u> evaluation of a sub-section of the Early Admission Program. The sub-section or sub-experiment of the Program was concerned with the data of only the students, who in 1951, had entered the University of Chicago, Columbia University, Cherlin College, the University of Wisconsin, and Yale University. The students were selected because their scores on the Graduate Record Examination of the Educational Testing Service showed that they were of comparable abilities and aptitudes. Of the 420 students in the Program in 1951, 240 had attended the five colleges and universities in the sub-experiment (see Table 4.01).

The major objective of the sub-experiment was to reexamine the effects of early admission to college on the experimental students of

Table 4.01

The Control and Experimental Students at Five Colleges and Universities in 1951 (58, p. 92)*

Group		Colleges and Universities								
	Chicago	Columbia	Obezin	Wisconsin	Yalc					
Control	57	46	30	68	51	252				
Exp.	60	51	25	52	52	240				
Exp.	60	51	25	52	52					

^{*} Includes both males and females.

comparable abilities and aptitudes who had entered five colleges and universities.

The Early Admittees and the Control Group

Each college in the program had selected an experimental group of students using its own criteria. The colleges had generally based their decisions for accepting the experimental students on high school records, scores on the Scholastic Aptitude Test (see Tables 4.02 and 4.03), scores on achievement tests, the recommendations of the high school principals, and personal interviews with the candidates (57, 58).

Because each college had acted autonomously in the use of procedures of admissions and techniques for appraising the social and emotional maturity of the applicants, the experimental groups may not have been equivalent between colleges (42).

In general, the students of the experimental group had not graduated from high school (93%), had come from families in which the
occupations of the "breadwinning" parent were predominantly professional
or business (71%), and had chosen undergraduate studies in mathematics
and sciences (51%). In addition, the experimental students had come
from medium-sized or larger cities, had attended public schools in
which the sizes of the senior classes were over 100 students, had come
from families whose annual incomes were over \$5,000, and had fathers
who had at least graduated from high school. Similar general information
about the control group was not available (57, 58).

The colleges selected a matching group of regular superior students with which is compare the progress and performance of the experimental group. The major differences between the two groups were that the students in the experimental group had been two years younger than the control students and had not graduated from high school. The

Table 4.02

Scholastic Achievement Test Scores of the Experimental Group, 1951

(57, p. 114)

	, va. e	୦୦୪ଟମ୍ବେମ୍ବର ୧୧୦୧
and Universities	Wisconsin .	-100mm2r4 710mm
Colleges an	Columbia	, 04684900000
	Chicago	aដ្ឋដ្ឋាន
Score		LedreV

Table 4.03

A STATE OF THE STA

Examinations used to Select the Experimental Group, 1951 (57, p. 111)

	vale etav	9.	%	Sê;
	Wisconsin	งา ข่า >-	°.	X es X
Colleges and Universities	Oberlin	c/	>: o	8
Colleç	Columbia	Y.es	o N	o o
	Chicago	S	%	,
Examînation	-	CEEB Scholastic Aptitude	OSC Psycholo- gical Exam- ination	Carried Control

colleges matched the control and experimental groups using scores on the Scholastic Aptitude Test, scores on the Psychological Examination of the American Council on Education or composite scores of both tests. The Fund reported that some of the colleges attempted to match the control and experimental students on family background, type and location of home community, and amount of scholarship aid. However, the Fund did not identify these colleges (58, p. 15).

The Treatment

In general, both the control and the experimental groups studied in the same academic program for the first two years. The modifications or allowances made for the experimental students (see Table 4.04) were carried out only for the first year of the Program. As the students progressed in their studies, their diverse interests and career goals led them rapidly into the different offerings of the colleges.

Evaluative Techniques

The colleges compared the academic performances of the control and the experimental groups annually. To assess personal adjustments of the students, the colleges relied upon the four questionnaires prepared by the Educational Testing Service. Two of the questionnaires were completed at different times by the students; the other two were completed by the colleges. In the sub-experiment, the Chi-squares test was used extensively to examine the differences between the responses of the two groups to the items of the questionnaires.

In the Early Admission Program, the adjustment of the experimental group to college had been assessed by a team of phychiatrists led by Dr. Dana Farnsworth, Director of University Health Services at Harvard University. Other members of the committee were Dr. Daniel H. Funken-

Table 4.04

First Year Programs of the Early Admission Program, 1951 (57, 58)

	Yale	Directed studies	contractions are supposed to the supposed to t	45 of 52	6 0 5 5 2
rsittes	Wisconsin	integrated liberal studies	Rooming housedorm shortage	Yes, but no count	0 of 52
Colleges and Universities	Coerlin	>: 0 0 : 0 4 : 4 : 0 2 : 0 2 : 0 3 : 0 3 : 0 3 : 0 5 : 0 6 : 0 6 : 0 7 : 0 7 : 0 8 : 0 8 : 0 8 : 0 9 : 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Regular dorms	o. Vo O.	2 of 25
Co. 1ege	Columbia	0 N O N O N O N O N O N O N O N O N O N	Segular Corms	50 of 51	2 of 51
	Chicago	% o % o % o % o % o % o % o % o % o % o	Peqular dorms	53 of 59	7 05 60
		Acedomic Program	Living Accomo Gattons	2X	10 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40

stein, member of the Department of Psychiatry at the Harvard Medical School, and Dr. Bryant Wedge, member of the Department of Student Health at Yale University. Further evaluations were done by Richard Pearson, Associate Director of the College Entrance Examination Board.

Socioeconomic Backgrounds of the Control and Experimental Groups

An examination of occupational status of the parents of both groups showed that the proportions of fathers in different occupations were significantly different between the groups (see Table 4.05). A higher proportion of fathers of the experimental group were employed in professional occupations. No significant differences were noted on the occupations of mothers of both groups. Too, no significant differences were noted on home community.

The significant differences which were observed on the occupations of fathers suggested that the experimental and control groups had not come from similar socioeconomic backgrounds.

High School Backgrounds of the Control and Experimental Groups

Two items of significant differences between the control and the experimental groups appeared in high school information (see Table 4.06). The first difference, type of high school last attended, resulted from the larger proportions of the experimental group which had attended member public high schools as compared with the larger proportions of the control group which had attended non-parochial private preparatory high schools. The second difference, percentile rankings in high school, resulted from the absence of a low tail for the distribution of the rankings of the experimental students.

The significant differences of the rankings of the two groups can be discounted because they were based on performances at two completed

Table 4.05 Pre-college Information, ETS Questionnaire, 1953

I	tem	Obse Resp	rved onses	x ² df	Diff.
		Con.	Fxp.		
Item 9	•				
Fathe	r's Occupation			13.5 4	SD
1. 2.	Accountant, lawyer Manager, manufacturer, executive, owner,	12	14		٠
3.	proprietor, supervisor Professor, teacher, doc-	45	43		
4.	tor, dentist, minister, arts Retailer, salesman,	3 9 _.	80		
5.	middlemen, clerical	30	22		
	semi-chilled, other	_3 <u>0</u> _	22 181		
ltem l	.0				
	er's Occupation			1.2 4	NSD
1. 2.	Housewife Manager, manufacturer,	96	.114	•	
3.	executive, owner, proprietor, supervisor Professor, teacher, doc-	10	7		
	tor, dentist, minister, arts	27	26		
4. 5.	Retailer, salesman, middlemen, elerical Skilled, unskilled,	23	2 5		
.7 •	semi-skilled, other	<u>5</u> 161	176		
Item 8	8				
	and Size of Home				
Comm	unity	•		.9 5	. NSD
1.	City of more than 100,000		92		
2.	Suburb of large city	35	35		•
3.	30,000-100,000	18	17	•	
4.	City (not suburb) of 10,000-30,000	12	. 12		
5.		15	19		
6.		14	14		

*Level of confidence .01 PNSD no significant difference

Table 4.06

Pre-college Information, ETS Questionnaire, 1953

Item	Observed Responses			df	biff.	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Con.	Exp.	•			
Item 17						
Type of High School or Prep-					•	
aratory School Last Attended			19.6	Λ	SD	
1. Public high school in city	84	121	3 / • 0			
2. Public high school in						
suburb of city	22	20				
3. Public or consolidated		•				
high schoolrural	20	26				
4. Private, non-parochial	37	14				
5. Private, parochial						
or private military	10	88	•			
·	173	189				
Item 18						
Size of Senior Class in						
High School			2.9	4	NCI1+	
1. Less than 50	27	24				
2. 50-99	17	16			•	
3. 100-199	2 8	27				
4. 200-790	70	70				
5. 500-up	30	45				
6. Unknown	0	66				
	172	្ 188				
Item 59	•					
Percentile Ranking in High		:		_		
School			32.2	2.	\$1)	
1. 90-99%	92	116			•	
2. 80-8%	23	31				
3. 79% and below	12	7_				
•	157	154				

ALevel of confidence .01.



bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference

grade levels; the experimental group was ranked on work completed in the tenth grade and the control group was ranked on work completed up to the twelfth grade.

No significant differences were observed on type of high school last attended reinforces the suggestion that the control and experimental groups had come from different socioeconomic backgrounds. Although the significant difference observed in high school ranking can be discounted, it suggests that caution be used in generalizing about the program and the successes of the experimental group because the two groups may not have been of similar abilities.

Aspirations of the Control and Experimental Groups

Table 4.07 displays the responses of the two groups to choices of fields of study and choices of future occupations. The Chi-square test for significant differences between the two groups was not carried out on the two items of Table 4.07 because the frequencies of the cells fell below the levels required for meaningful use of the test. Adjoining cells were not merged to obtain appropriate cell frequencies because the result would have been the pairing of unlikely cells.

Table 4.07 shows that more control students than experimental students selected business as their choices of undergraduate major field of study; the experimental students chose science and methematics for their undergraduate major fields of study. In addition, Table 4.07 shows that a larger proportion of the control group as compared with the experimental group indicated law as their first choice of future occupation.

.The data on aspirations of the control and experimental group

Table 4.07
Undergraduate Information, ETS Questionnaire, 1953

	tem		rved Polises	x ²	df	Diff. a, i	
		Con.	Exp.				
Item 3	0		************				
First	Cheice of Major						
	of Study			4.4	4	MSD	
	Undecided Fine arts, applied arts,	15	20	2,62	••	44.51	
	clergy, other	6	8				
3.	Education	43	41				
4.	Engineering, medicine,						
_	science	87	103				
5.	Business	15_	88		٠		
		166	185				
Item 3	1						
First	Choice of Future	•					
	alion			11.0	6	NGD	
	Undecided Fire arts, applied arts, military or government service, social service,	45	43	11.0			
•	other	18	20				
	Bustness	12	8			•	
4.	Education	13	20				
5.	Engineering, medicine,	•	7.0				
	science	51	79		•		
6.	Lav	18	ģ				
7.	Clergy	_ 9	$\hat{\gamma}$		•		
		166	184			1	
	•						

alevel of confidence .01

bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference

were similar to the observed occupational categories of the fathers of both groups.

Undergraduate Activities of the Control and Experimental Groups

The academic ratings of the students of the control and the experimental groups in their first and fourth years of college are displayed in Table 4.08. Both groups seemed comparable on their percentile rankings in college.

The ratings were not tested for significant differences but the overall distribution of the first year ratings and the fourth year ratings suggests a stability in the academic performances of both gourps. A broader base for assessing the performance levels and the stability of the performance levels should have included a score on the Graduate Record Examination (see Table 4.09).

For the 192 experimental students and the 144 control students who took the Graduate Record Examinations, earlier reports (57, 58) gave only the group means of scores. The earlier reports gave no information about the number of students at each: college who took the examination. Hence, the group means should be used only for identifying trends or tendencies about the two groups. The entires of Table 4.09 indicate that the experimental group performed as well as the control group.

The ratings and indications from the performances on the Graduate Record Examination support the conclusion that the experimental group was as successful as the control group in academic performance.

Enotional Adjustment of the Experimental Group

Three separate groups assessed the emotional adjustment of the

Table 4.08

Ratings of Students in their First and Fourth Years,

1951 and 1955 (42)

Year	%1€	Colleges and Universities								
	Rank	Col	บกไวร์ a	Oho	ilin	Misco	ista.	Ya)	6;	
		Ехр.	Con.	Ехр.	Cc .	Exp.	Con.	Ехр.	Con.	
First Year 1951	8099 60-79 40-59 Le Un'	18 11 12 6 0	12 12 8 14 0	7 6 6 4 0	10 5 7 9 0	35 11 6 0 0	16 10 10 8 1	16 9 7 13 0	16 16 7 12 0	
Fourth Year 1955	80 67 7 1 - 75 164 nos	17 6. 5	7 9 3 8 7	3 6 2 4 1	9 2 4 7 1 23	20 4 3 4 1 32	6 2 6 17 35	15 11 2 10 - 5 43	10 17 10 11 11 2	

Table 4.09

Graduate Record Examination Mean Scores*
(58, p. 106)

1051 6		lrea lest	"ಮ 373ನೇ ಬಳ್ಳಾರೆ ನ ಿಸುವ ಪರ್ವವಿಸುವ ಬ ಳಕು - ಕ್ರಮಕ		
1951 Group	Social Science	Humanities	Natural Sciences		
Chicago					
Exp	664	723	676		
С	658	676	669		
Columbia				,	
Ехр	641	673	611		
С	651	672	625		
Oberlin			en gal en side de la	• • • • •	
Exp	618	641	598		
С	579	656	569		
Wiscomsin			and the second control of the second control		
Exp	656	639	667		
С	5/19	600	605		
Yale	e e de combre des en		e e en e e en e e en e en en en en en en	•••	
Exp	657	636	595		
С	6 30	637	577		
All 11 College	e i ne de impospoje grup de majorio de impu e a		es da e b e e e e de dicionalista que sobre y	· ·• • · •	
in the Property			•		
Exp	620	632	603		
С	557	578	558		
Other Seniers					
19 55	444	450	452		

^{*} N = 192 for all experimental students in all colleges



N=144 for all control students in all colleges.

experimental group to college. They were the colleges, a psychiatric evaluation team headed by Farnsworth, and Pearson of the Educational Testing Service.

In arriving at the ratings of emotional adjustment of the students, the colleges considered many factors. Included among the factors were poise and self-confidence in social situations, leadership ability, study habits, participation in group activity, gregariousness, personal appearance, degree of dependence on family, worry and emotional control, adjustment to the opposite sex, ease in conversation, academic program planning, and educational interests (58). In some cases, two faculty members independently rated the same student, and a third faculty member arrived at a composite rating. The results of the ratings on adjustment by the colleges is shown in Table 4.10.

The entires in Table 4.10 show the ratings of the experimental students at the end of the first year and also at the end of the fourth year. The report of the Fund (58) claimed that the large numbers of poor ratings in the first two years of the project resulted from the combination of initial adjustment difficulties, the age of the experimental students, and the nature of the program itself. The data for the four-year period showed that a high percentage of the experimental students had experienced good-to-excellent emotional adjustments in college.

The information presented in Table 4.10 is ambiguous because there is no way of determining how many of the students who were rated "poor" in their first year were still students in the fourth year of the experiment. The drop in the number of poor ratings over the four-year period of the experimental group can be attributed to the attrition of the poorly adjusted student as well as to the overcoming of adjustment

Table 4.10

Ratings of Emotional Adjustments by Faculty, 1951

Group at all Colleges and Universities (42, Table 17A)

Year	Group	Number of Students						
~		Good-to-Excellent	Poor	Unknown				
First Year 1951	Exp. Con.	314 (85%) 232 (55%)	32 (9%) 19 (4%)	24 (65) 171 (365)				
Fourth Year 1955	Emp. Con.	20 5 (90%) 168 (65%)	15 (7%) 7 (3%)	8 (4)() 82 (32); \				

difficulties by the students.

The colleges and universities in the Program did not feel that early admission to college was the determining factor of the cases of maladjustments which occurred. Of the 32 cases of maladjustments reported for the entire 1951 group, the colleges and universities considered only eight cases as those for whom later entry into college would have been an advantage. The colleges and universities concluded that the control group and the experimental group had similar adjustment problems.

The second group to assess the adjustment problems of the experimental group was the psychiatric evaluation team headed by Farnsworth. The team was particularly concerned with evaluating the withdrawals of students from the participating colleges and universities (see Table 4.11). The team found that some of the factors for withdrawal from college were realistic ones which were unrelated to early admission to college. They found that immaturity with inadequate goal-directed behavior (58) accounted for 34 out of the 147 withdrawals. The psychiatric evaluation team concluded that the experimental group showed no more psychiatric difficulties than the control group in college. They felt, further, that the experimental group had met their definition of satisfactory adjustment.

What is desirable is not adjustment to the group at all costs, not good interpersonal relations in all situations, but real autonomy, i.e., men sufficiently free from both social and cultural pressures and from their own inner biases, needs and drives that they are able to assess the realities of situations and act on this basis. Although such men prize warm interpersonal relations and getting along with the froup as a satisfactory part of living, they are not ends in themselves (58, p. 47).

The third rating of the adjustment of the experimental group to college was conducted by Pearson. He examined the responses of the control and the experimental groups to a questionnaire administered

Table 4.11
Failures, Withdrawals, and Transfers
of the 1951 Group (58, p. 112-113)

•	Colleges and Universities										
	Chicago C		Colu	Columbia Ob		Oberlin		Wisconsin		Yale	
*	E	С	E	С	E	С	F.	С	F.	С	
Fail	7	8	8	.2	2	2	6	8	10	4	
Left for other reasons	3	8	1	8	2	3	2	13	0	2	
Transfer	3	5	0	1	6	3] ;,	0	٦.	C	
TOTALS	13	21	9	11	10	8	23	21	11		



during the senior years in college. Fearson concluded that, although
the experimental students had indicated more initial adjustment difficulties than the control students, the experimental students had been as
successful in over-all adjustment to college as had the control students.

All three of the evaluation groups were in agreement that the experimental group had made satisfactory adjustments to college.

Non-academic Student Activities

Table 4.12 displays the ratings by the colleges of the control and experimental groups of extent of participation in athletics, in number of offices held in student organizations, in memberships in student social organizations, and in the extent of dating. The Chi-square test showed significant differences between the responses of the two groups to the item of memberships in student social organizations. Thirty-eight of item of memberships in student social organizations. Thirty-eight of the 205 students of the experimental group who were rated by the colleges had not been eligible for membership in social clubs during the first two years of the Program. The ineligibility was probably due to the young ages of the experimental students.

Aside from dating, slightly more than 50% of all the students rated by the colleges were below average or had not participated in athletics, social clubs or other student organizations. Without the control group, the lack of activity could have been interpreted as a loss of opportunity by the students who entered college early. However, the same pattern of non-activity occurred with the control group. Whatever the reasons were for the non-activity of the experimental group, they were not related to early admission to college.

Student Use of Time

60

Table 4.12
Undergraduate Information, College Ratings,
ETS Questionnaire, 1953

Item	Obse Resp	X _S	df	Diff.a,h	
	Con.	Exp.			
ltem 66					
Extent of Participation in					44.5
Athletic Activities			2.3	4	NOD)
O. None	47	59			
 Less than average 	40	63			
2. Average	35	43			
3. More than average	20	34			
4. Extensive	<u>8</u> 150	206			
ltem 68	330	205			
Number of Offices Held			1.9	3	18/19
O. None	94	121			
1. One of minor impor-	•				
tance	29	35			
2. More than one of mi-					
nor importance	12	28			
3. One of major impor-					•
tance ^c	8	8			
4. More than one of					·
major importance	3	5		•	
5. Combination of ma-	a .				
jos and minos c	3	7.			
	149	204			

a. Level of confidence .Ol bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference cAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square



Table 4.12 (Continued)

Iten		rved onses	χ ² df		1::::. ⁸ , ¹
	Con.	Exp.	Art de mer		
tem 69					
Memberetly in Fraternity or Social Club			27.6	3	S.
1. Member	45	49	F. 1 # X7	·	• •
2. Ron-romber	108	104			
3. Est eligible	-	3 8			
4. None available	172	200			
ten 70					
Extent of F ting	8	20	& . €	4	1 -
0. Now 1. Low than everage	32	58			
2. Ave such	79	_			
3. Note than ever ge		24			
•	149	么:			

 $[\]overset{\theta}{b}_{N31}, \ldots, \overset{e}{b}_{1}$ and affine the standard contraction one

to account for the hours of the week immediately preceding the week he completed the questionnaire. He was asked to indicate the number of hours he had spent in student employment, in preparing assignments, and in recreation. The Chi-square test of the differences in the responses of the two groups showed significant differences in the time spent in student employment. No significant differences were observed on the other two items (see Table 4.13).

The distribution of responses on student employment showed that over 60% of the experimental group had spent no time in student employment compared with 44% of the control group. Among the control students, ll had spent more than 20 hours in employment. The significantly greater number of hours of student employment of the control group did not seem to affect the academic performance of the control group (see Table 4.08). The data suggest that the real potential of the control group for academic performance may have been hidden by the amount of time it spent in student employment.

The control group and the experimental group were similar in their use of time for studying and recreation. The similarity is surprising because so many of the control students had indicated student employment. It is possible that the younger experimental students used up more time in sleeping than the older control students or that the experimentals were less efficient than the control students in the use of time.

Reactions of the Students to College

Among the criticisms of early admissions to colleges was a claim that the college program of studies was inappropriate for students of high school age. The responses of the control group and the experimental group to questions about academic handicaps, value of the col-

Table 4.13 Undergraduate Information, Student Responses,

ETS Questionnaire, 1953

Item.	Observed Responses		x ²	df	Diff. P, b
	Con.	Exp.		to a comment	
Item 14	-				
North of Hours per Week					
Spent Working for Fay			47.3	4	SD
O. None	74	125			
 Less that 2 	23	31			
2. 2-5	5	13			
3. 5-10		10			
4. 10 or r.c.	<u> </u>				
_	170	189			
1 tes 24					
Notice of House, and Lay			_		
Spect Studying in Post Week	a .	_	4.]	G	NSD
1. 1	8	5			
2. 2	33	26			
3. 3	40	43			•
4. 4 5. 5	46	54			
6. 6	2)	29			
7. 7 on more	11	14			
r. r or more	<u> 9</u> 168	185			
1ter 25	100	185			
Third 2 of Hours per Day					
Specific Recrection in			•		•
Part Work			11.0	5	NSD
1. 1	11	14	11.0	3	NSD
2. 2	40	46			
3. 3	55	46			
7. A	25	31			•
5,	1)	28			
6. 6 or mose	25	18			•
	167	183			
1to 27		-			
Extent of Dating			10.7	3	NSD
O. None	4	19			
 Less than average 	43	54			
2. Average	83	82			
3. More than average	37	31			
	167	186			

 $^{^{}a}_{b}{\rm Level}$ of confidence .01 $_{b}{\rm NGD}$ No significant difference; Sh Significant difference

legiate experience, value of the courses taken, and the reactions to college instructors showed no significant differences when tested by Chi-square.

The responses of the experimental group showed that 34% of the students had experienced some academic handicap which they had attributed to insufficient preparation in high school (see Table 4.14). A similar proportion of the control group had made the same response. Therefore, the academic handicaps were not attributable sole to early admission to college.

More than half of both groups rated their college experience up to that time as being of great value; fewer had identified the courses as almost all worthwhile, and fewer still had thought their teachers were interested in them as individuals. The similarity of the responses of the experimental group and the control group showed that negative reactions about aspects of college work and about instructors were not clearly attributable to early admission to college.

Reactions of the Colleges to the Students

In the Program, the participating colleges had been asked to rate the health and adjustments of the early admittees. The ratings showed significant differences between the experimental group and the control group on physical health, but no significant differences on mental health, extent of dating, adjustment to college, and popularity (see Table 4.15).

The colleges felt that significantly more of the experimental students than control students were of poor health. The ratings were made near the end of the second year of the Program, but it is not likely that the lealth ratings were attributable to early admission to college. Unfortunately, no ratings were made of the experimental group



Table 4.14
Undergraduate Information, Student Response,

ETS Questionnaire, 1953

Item	Observed Responses		x ²	df	Diff.a,t	
		Con.	Fxp.			
Item 29						
	you been Handicapped by			_	•	41.1.
-	y High School Preparation?	• 4	• •	•9	2	NSD
1.	Yes	1 c	16			
2.	No	102	121			
3.	A little	47	49			
.	•	168	186			
Item 3				8.6	3	NSD
	of College Experience	^	0	0.0	3	14.517
1.	Little or nothing	0	0 10			
_	About half worthwhile	21				
3.	More than half worthwhile	34 88	34			
4.	Of great value	24	122 20			
5.	Too early to judge	167	186			
Item 3	3	107	100			
	of Courses Taken			6.6	А	NSI:
0.	None worthwhile	0	0		-•	
1.	Less than half worthwhile	16	15			
2.	About half worthwhile	42	36			
_	More than helf weathwhile	30	36			
4.	Almost all worthabile	48	56			
	All worthwhile	22	4.7			
•	MI WATERWAY TO	167	185			
Item 3	34					
Numbo	er of College Instructors					
	Took Interest in Students			2 (200
	ndivid pala	3	8	3.6	4	· v. + i *
	None'	38	- 6 - 76			•
1.	Less than half ^c About half	48	39			
2.	More than half	23	32			
3.	Almost all	42	45			
4. 5.	Alicost all	13	16			
J.	W11	167	186			

alevel of confidence .Ol bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference cAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square



Undergraduate Information, College Ratings,
ETS Questionnaire, 1953

Item	Observed Responses		x?	df	Diff. ^{a,b}
	Con.	Exp.			
Item 43 Physical Health Rating ^C 1. Very poor 2. Poor 3. Good 4. Excellent	0 5 67 	0 19 72 64	9. 8	2	SD
Item 44	,				
Mental English Reting	0	e .	1.6	2	NI-1
1. Very poor 6 2. Poor 6	2 8	3 12			
3. Good	35	29			
4. Excellent	_106	109			
	151	153			

^{**}Blevel of confidence .Ol bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference CRated by Student Health Center or other college medical service. dRated by Student Health Center or other college medical service.



Table 4.15 (Continued)

Item	Observed Responses		x ²	df	Diff.a,t
	Con.	Exp.			
item 71					t
Adjustment to College ^c			•9	3	NSD
O. Very poord	3	7			
1. Poord	13	20			
2. Moderately poor	42	53			
3. Good	61	8).			
4. Freellent	31	49	•		
	150	210			

Level of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD significant difference CAs rated by deam or advisor compared with other numbers of class. dAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square.

ERIC Provided by ERIC

Table 4.15 (Continued)

Item	Observed Responses		. x ²	df	Diff.
	Con.	Exp.			**************************************
Item 72 Popularity Rating ^c O. Disliked ^d :1. Unnoticed ^d			2.2	3	N./D
0. Disliked	1 12	6			
2. Accepted	12 51	22 70			
3. Well-liked	6 8	88	•		
4. Leader	17	23		,	
	149	209			

Level of confidence .01
bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference
CAs rated by dear or advisor compared with other members of class.
dAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square.

in the first of the program.

On an over-all basis, the responses of the colleges showed that the experimental group was as successful as the control group in social adjustments in college. On an individual basis, the colleges felt that 10% of the experimental students who had made poor adjustments to college life might have been better off in high schools free from the stresses of collegiate early admission.

Conclusions

The data of the Early Admission Program as reexamined and rearranged indicate that the experimental and control students did not come from similar socioeconomic backgrounds. Limited data based upon significant differences of the occupations of fathers and significant differences in the type of high school last attended support the conclusion.

The data also suggest that the experimental and control groups may have been of different ability levels. The distributions of high school rankings, although they were for different years and may be discountable, show a low end tail for the control group but none for the experimental group. The difference was significant in favor of the experimental group. The finding could mean that the colleges had not been successful in matching the two groups. It could also mean that the experimental group would appear systematically ahead of the control group measures of academic performance.

The difference in high school ratings and its effects on college performance were inconclusive. The indications of significant differences in socioeconomic backgrounds, however, were important qualifiers for the Program because socioeconomic background may influence the decisions and motivations of the students while they are in college.

In academic performance, the experimental students were comparable

to the control students in the same colleges. The conclusion is supported by the findings of no apparent difference between the two groups in academic rankings in colleges and in scores made on the Graduate Record Examination. In non-academic performance, the colleges rated the two groups of students as similar in adjustment to several facets of college life.

The general conclusion, based upon the ratings of the colleges and the responses of the students, is that the experimental group had gained two years in their academic programs leading to career goals without visible ill-effects.

Unanswered Questions

The unanswered questions are related to long-range effects of early admission to college. Did the early admittee, in fact, get into a graduate school of his choice? Did the early admittee have similar activity patterns when compared to regular superior students in social, economic and occupational areas? Did the early admittee, because he made career decisions two years ahead of his chronological peers, suffer instability in his career development? A follow-up study is needed to provide answers for some of the questions raised.



Chapter 5

The Early Admission Follow-up Study

Proliminary Survey

In March 1960, the Fund for the Advancement of Education approved a request for the reexamination of the data gathered during the Early Admission Program. The Educational Testing Service retrieved the raw data from storage and made them available for the follow-up study. By 1962, the data included four questionnaires on 1024 male and 326 female participants of the Program almost all of whom had already graduated from college (see Table 5.01).

A preliminary survey of the data revealed that the colleges had not been consistently conscientious in completing the questionnaires so that much of the raw data was incomplete. The state of the data explained the omissions of the reports by the Fund and by Ekstrom (41, 42, 57, 58). Chapter 4 discusses part of the data.

Popular

Following the preliminary survey of the data, the population for the follow-up study was limited to the same sub-section of the Program discussed in Chapter 4. It was limited to the male students and their discussed in Chapter 4. It was limited to the male students and their counterparts who, in 1951, had entered five colleges and universities: The University of Chicago, Columbia University, Oberlin College, the University of Wisconsin, and Ya. 5 University.

The delimitation of the follow-up study was based upon two comsiderations. The first consideration, as in the sub-experiment in Chapter 4, was an attempt to derive a more homogeneous group than the



	Year							
Group	1951	1952	1953	1954	Totals			
Experimental Males Females	. 3 48 72	363 77	165 89	148 88	1024 326			
Total	420	440	254	235	100			
Control Males Females	336 91	400 90	185 78	136 87	10 % . 346			
Total	427	490	263	223	1403			

^{*} Reports of the Fund for the Advancement of Education and Ekstern (4.) do not agree on the size of the 1951 group. The figures shown because from the reports of the Fund. The figures shown by Ekstrom reflect the attrition of the first year.

total group which was discussed in earlier reports. The experimental students in the Program had entered eleven colleges and universities. In 1955, when the experimental students took the Graduate Record Examination, their scores indicated that real differences had existed between the abilities of the experimental groups which were in different colleges. The scores made by the experimental students at six of the eleven colleges and universities indicated that the students were of similar abilities and aptitudes. The sixth college, Goucher, was a college for women. Because there were only 30 women in the experimental groups of the six colleges, and because the women were difficult to locate, the follow-up study became concerned with only the men who had attended five colleges and universities.

The second consideration was that of the four groups of experimental students who had participated in the Program, only the group which had entered college in 1951 had been examined by both the Farnsworth team of psychiatrists and by Pearson. Authoritative statements about the adjustment to college of the experimental groups was available only for the 1951 group. In 1953, the second phase of the Program got under way with a reduction in the number of experimental students at each of the participating colleges. In order to take advantage of the larger number of students who had entered college early and to take advantage of the authoritative studies of adjustments to college, the follow-up study concentrated on the male students in the 1951 group.

<u>Objectives</u>

The two major objectives of the follow-up study were (1) to examine the long-range effects of early admission to college and (2) to evaluate the Early Admission Program as a large scale innovation in education. The examination of the long-range effects of early admission focused upon comparisons of the graduate and post-graduate activities of the control and the experimental groups. The examination centered on the question, "What happened to the early admittees after college?" and not with "the wisdom of early admission to college."

The second objective, the evaluation of a large scale innovation in education, was concerned with the Program, itself, and not with the participants. It was concerned with the shortcomings, strengths and findings of the Program.

Research Questions

The follow-up study attempted to answer five questions:

1. How comparable were the experimental and control groups? The examination of the data of the sub-experiment (see Chapter 4) had indicated that the experimental and control groups had come from significantly different socioeconomic backgrounds. Because of the incompleteness of the original data, the question was reexamined in the follow-up study.

An answer to the question was sought by the test of the null hypothesis that:

There were no significant differences between the control group group and the experimental group in socioeconomic backgrounds.

2. Were the experimental students able to compete favorably with the control students in undergraduate academic performance? An answer to the question was sought by the testing of the null hypothesis that:

There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in undergraduate performance.

3. Were the experimental students able to compete favorably with the control students for positions in graduate schools of their choices?

An answer to the question was sought by the testing of the mull hypothesis that:

There were no significant differences between the control group

and the experimental group in the attainment of choices of and entrances into graduate schools.

4. Did the experimental students have post-graduate occupational activities similar to the activities of the control students? An answer to the question was sought by the testing of the null hypothesis that:

There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in occupational attainments and activities.

5. Did the experimental students have post-graduate socioeconomic activities similar to the activities of the control students? An answer to the question was sought by the testing of the null hypothesis that:

There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in post-college socioeconomic activities.

Instruments

Three instruments made up the package used to obtain data for the follow-up study—a questionnaire, a letter of explanation, and a transcript release form (see Appendix C). The questionnaire contained seven parts and was a folded sheet containing four printed sides. The letters of explanation were individually typed. One form of the letter was sent with the first mailing of the questionnaire; a second form was sent to urge the subjects who were late in responding to fill out and return the questionnaires. Each respondent was asked to sign a transcript release form so that official copies of his transcripts could be obtained from the colleges he attended.

The follow-up questionnaire provided pre-college information, information on general family background, information on general activity in high school and in college, information on academic activities, information on current personal social status, information on current personal economic status, and information on post-graduate intellectual or adademic activities. The preliminary survey had revealed that the

original questionnaires used with the 1951 group (see Appendix A) had provided predominantly subjective data. The subjective data did not lend itself readily to other high-powered statistical procedures outlined by Tatsuoka and Tiedeman (109). In spite of the statistical limitations of the subjective data of the original questionnaires, the follow-up questionnaire was design was based upon a desire for consistency between the existing data and the follow-up data.

A commercial artist working with a publishing company prepared the format of the follow-up questionnaire. As a result, the questionnaire was suitably official and pleasing in appearance.

Among the difficulties encountered during the preparation of the items of the questionaire was the preparation of items on financial status. Such items sought information of a highly personal and confidential nature. Since the information was needed primarily to establish patterns of earning power and current accumulated financial wealth, the problem was partly solved by preparing items which sought the intervals of high frequencies and not specific information on each respondent.

The questionnaire was developed at the same time that the data from the earlier questionnaires were being reexamined. The multiplicity of occupational preferences pointed out another difficulty. The coding of information that has not limits resulted in the expenditure of valuable time to find a format with which to discuss and present the information. Therefore, items were prepared for the follow-up questionnaire which only identified levels of occupational attainment and general nature of occupations instead of identifying specific current occupations of the control and experimental groups.

The two requirements for approval of the questionnaire were that it be convenient for the respondents to complete and that the responses

be easily transferable to data processing cards.

The follow-up questionnaire was pretested with 20 seniors and graudates of the University of Hawaii. The pretest population, unfortunately, was not sufficiently varied to identify all of the typographical omissions on the questionnaire or the ambiguities of certain items. The omissions and ambiguities were discovered when the questionnaires were returned by the respondents of the follow-up population.

Procedures

The follow-up questionnaires were sent to 410 men—197 controls and 213 experimentals. Respondents were 121 controls (61%) and 144 turns (see Appendix D) shows 80 unclaimed questionnaires (21%) and 50 subjects for whom no records are available (12%). Two respondents specified stringent conditions under which the information they supplied could be used. They were classed as "no records available" and their questionnaires destroyed.

The addresses used in the first mailing were obtained from the original questionnaires used in the Early Admission Program in 1953. The addresses were the last known addresses of the parents of the control and experimental groups. A "Please Forward" stamp was prominently displayed on each envelope. In retrospect, a better idea would have been to ask for the explicit information from the post office about its information on the last known addresses of those members of the control and experimental groups who did not respond to the first mailing.

Several students who were in the Wisconsin group wrote to Mr.

Herbert M. Howe, their advisor in college, informing him about the

follow-up study. Mr. Howe, in later correspondences with the follow-up

study, provided a comprehensive and accurate list of the current addresses of the experimental students who had attended the University of Wisconsin.

Although several strategies were considered in planning the tracer methods, time became the motivating factor that led to an appeal to the Selective Service Board in Washington, D. C., for permission to obtain from local boards the current addresses of all the men who were in the 1951 group. When the Selective Service Board denied the permission, the tracer efforts were effectively reduced to a search by mail. Two tracer methods, telegrams and telephone calls, were not used because they were contingent upon locating the current addresses of the young men. In the search by mail, copies of the questionnaire, transcript release forms and two separate appeal letters were repeatedly sent to each non-respondent until the pattern of returned mail established that the men sither were not locateable or did not intend to respond.

The estimated time of nine months for the completion of the follow-up study was overly optimistic. The preparations for the study took sic months; the collection of the follow-up data continued for over a year before it was halted; preparation of the data for analysis took six months; analysis and interpretation of the data took another six months, and the final report took two years to complete.

As the retuned questionnaires were received, they were screened for write-in entries and for unanswered questions. The responses were then punched with print option on data processing cards. Each card was proof-read rather than verified for accuracy.

The registrars at each of the five colleges and universities had been contacted early in the study to inform them about the study and to alert them that a request for transcripts would be made after tran-



script release forms had been obtained from the respondents. Each of the registrars was asked to reply with instructions for handling the request in the best way. In addition, each registrar was asked to specify the restrictions on the use of the transcript other than to insure the privacy of each of the students and to handle the data in confidence.

When the transcript release forms were received, they were accumulated and sent all at one time to the registrars at the colleges.

As the transcripts were received, they were coded on a four-point scale (A=4, B=3, C=2, D=1, F=0).

A talley sheet of the progress with each person of the follow-up population prevented duplicate mailings and charted the progress of the study. In spite of precautions, two mailing errors were made. One of the errors resulted in a sharp note from the respondent refusing to complete a second questionnaire.

Treatment of the Data

Originally, plans for the follow-up study had called for extensive collection of data of a statistically continuous nature. The available statistical techniques would then have provided predictive schemes for success in early admission to college. The plans were changed because the pre-college information necessary for the predictive schemes would have had to come from as many high schools as there were early admittees and control students. The data under those conditions would likely have been non-uniform in content and derived by standardized test which would be very different. Such differences in the data would have precluded any pooling of the data to form the control and the experimental groups.

One of the problems of the follow-up study was the development of



predivtive measures of student success. The research design had initially called for the use of multiple discriminant analysis to answer the question, "What characteristics differentiated the successful participants from the unsuccessful participants in the Early Admission Program?" The question remains unanswered for several reasons. Meaningful criteria of success were difficult to establish at the end of the program because success was ultimately dependent upon the interests and aspirations of the individual students. Too, the available indicators for success were largely superficial assessments of success. Finally, most of the data were nominal or categorical, so that discriminant analysis and regression analysis were inappropriate. Much of the entecedent data was incomplete so that even dummy variables were impractical.

Personality, attitudinal, and scholastic inventories, which could have been part of the antecedent data bank for discriminant analysis and regression analysis, were not available. These inventories might have been obtained from as many high schools as there were participants in the Program. The considerable effort to obtain these inventories from the high schools was not made because there seemed little hope for consistency in the type of measures available. The available information on the experimental and control groups indicated that little differences would have been found.

Matched samples of the two groups were not used in the study.

One attempt to form matched subsets of the experimental and control groups had shown a large reduction in the number of cases for the matched samples. The large reduction of cases made that approach to regression analysis also impractical. An analysis of covariance was performed but the findings indicated that the results did not differ significantly from the original uncorrected Chi-square results.

The plan actually used sought descrete or subjective data. The Chi-square test, an appropriate statistical test for discrete data, was used extensively in the treatment of the data obtained in the follow-up study.

A pre-determined .01 level of confidence was specified partly because of the unidentified bias represented by the 35% of the follow-up population which did not respond to the questionnaires. Also, the .01 level served as a safeguard for Chi-squares being random variables themselves since so many were calculated.

Because the assumptions underlying the use of the Chi-square test require sufficiently large cell frequencies (106, p.110), cells were merged whenever it was appropriate to merge them to meet the frequency requirement. The responses to all items of the follow-up questionnaire have been tabulated in Appendix G and provide an opportunity for cross-checking of the data which have been merged.

The data on grade point averages are treated in a somewhat unorthodox manner. Although the grade point averages are continuous in
nature, they were tested with Chi-square. Initially, the data had been
tested by the analysis of variance. The results had shown no significant differences at the .01 level between the control group and the
experimental group. Tests on the homogeneity of the variances showed
no significant differences, too. In retrospect, the analysis of variance seemed not the most appropriate procedure because the data had
been obtained from five different sources and had been generated
through different methods and standards. Therefore, in an attempt to
present the data in proper perspective, a less powerful test, the Chisquare test, was used with the data.

In the presentation of the findings of the follow-up study, a

modification of standard statistical procedure is used. Under standard procedure,, each time a Chi-squre test is carried out, a null hypothesis is being tested. However, because of the large number of Chi-squares calculated, a single null hypothesis was identified and tested for several related items. From a statistical point of view, the modified procedure is proper because Chi-squares can be added together with appropriate correction on the degrees of freedom (64, p. 343).

Summary

The procedures of the follow-up study were designed to obtain answers from the control and experimental groups to the question, "What happened after college?" The procedures yielded data from two new sources, college transcripts and the follow-up questionnaires. Because the data from the follow-up questionnaires were categorical or discreet in nature, the Chi-square test for significant differences between the control and the experimental groups was used extensively.

70

Chapter 6

Analysis and interpretation of the Data of the Follow-up Study

The discussion of the data collected in the follow-up study of the Early Admission Program is presented in six sections, the first five of which are pre-college information, undergraduate information, graduate information, occupational information, and socioexonomic information. Each of the five sections tests a mull hypothesis of no significant differences between the control and the experimental groups. The sixth section of the discussion of the data examines the relationship between some of the pre-college and some of the post-college observed significant differences in socioeconomic information. The sixth section attempts to show that initial differences rather than early admission influenced some of the observed differences between the control and the experimental groups.

Pre-college Information

The discussion of pre-college information is concerned with the question, "How comparable were the control and the experimental groups?" The examination of data collected during the Program (see Chapter 4) had provided reasons for suspecting that the control group and the experimental group were significantly different in socioexonomic backgrounds. The data of the follow-up study confirmed significant socioeconomic differences between the two groups although many similarities were noted. The differences in socioeconomic backgrounds of the two groups suggest cautions in the interpretations of the results of the Early Admission Program. In particular, conclusions about the

general effects of the Program on the experimental students, the academic performances of the experimental students, and the explanations for observed post-Program differences between the control and the experimental groups must distinguish between the effects of initial socioeconomic differences and the effects of the Program.

The null hypothesis under test is:

There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in socioexonomic backgrounds.

Table 6.01 displays the proportions of the control and experimental groups responding to four items about size of home community, type of a school attended, size of school, and family income. The Chi-square tests of the proportions of the responses of both groups to all four questions show no significant differences at the .01 level.

The responses recorded in Table 6.01 show that most of the students of both groups had come from urban home communities although 25% of both groups had come from communities of less than 25,000 population. The responses show that the groups were made up of students who, in general, had attended urban high schools in which the size of the senior class was less than 500 students. The responses also show that, in 1951, the incomes of the families of all but nine students in each group were over \$4,000 per year with a median level at \$8,000 per year.

The appearance of no significant differences between the groups in family incomes showed that the financial statuses of families were not differentiating factors. Under the Early Admission Program, financial support had been extended to all members of the experimental group. In some instances, financial support from private funds of the colleges was extended to the control group. In general, the control group received no financial support. Since the families of both groups were of

Table 6.01

Pre-college Information

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1960

Item		arved pances	x ²	df	Diff.a,
Company and the second contract of the second	Con.	Εχρ.		•	
Item 3	and the state of t				
Size of None Community			4.2	4	NSD
1. I ese than 05,009	33	41	-		
2. 200,000-00,000	15	8			
3. 5 ,000-100,000	16	18			
4. 100,000,000,000	14	19			
5. 500,002-up	42	58			
	120	144			
Item 4					
Type of Secondary School			.2	1	NSD.
Attended	•				
1. Rural	20	22			
2. Urban	9.7	122			
	117	144			
Item 5					
Size of High School					****
Senior Class			8.9	4	NGD
1. Less than 100	41	32			
2. 100-200	17	23			
3. 200-500	41	43			
4. 500-1,000	16	33			
5.1 1,000-up	5	12			
	120	143	•		
Item 6			3.6	5	$\mathbf{R}_{i}(t)$
Family legons in 1951	0	0	3.11	5	15.01
1. Ice than \$4,000	9	9			
2. \$1,000+35,999	22	27			
3. \$6,000-\$7,999	22	35 91			•
4. \$6,000-\$0,999	24	21			
5. \$10,000 \$11,999	10	17			
6. \$12,000-up	33 120	34 143			
	170	10.5			

^aLevel of confidence .OL b_{NSD} No significant difference; SD Significant difference

approximately the same financial status, the financial aid given to one group and withheld from the other seemed likely to affect the academic performances of the groups. The students of the less favored group would have to seek self-support through student employment and, thus, reduce the time available for studies.

Table 6.02 displays responses of both groups to the items on parental backgrounds. The Chi-square tests showed no significant differences at the 101 level between the groups on birthplace of father and of mother, on formal education of mother, and on the extent of employment of mother. Significant differences were observed between the two groups on the responses to religious affiliation of father and of mother, and to formal education of father.

Birthplace of parents had been included as items in the follow-up questionnaire because of an observation reported by Wagner (102, p. 204-205) of differences in the drive and persistence of the academically successful students whose parents were immigrants as compared with students whose parents were native-born Americans. If the colleges had been successful in matching the experimental and the control groups on academic abilities, drive and persistence might explain differences which might be found in academic performances. However, the Chi-square test showed no significant differences between the two groups on birthplaces of parents. Therefore, if differences were found in academic performances, they could be attributed to other causes.

Table 6.02 displays three significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in socioeconomic backgrounds. The responses showed that the two groups were significantly different in religious affiliations of parents and in formal educations of fathers. Larger proportions of the experimental group had indicated fathers (43%) and mothers (44%) of the Jewish faith as compared to proportions of the

Table 6.02 Pre-college Information Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

I	item		erved ponses	x2	df	Diff.a,b
		Con.	Exp.	•		
Item 1						
Fathe	er's Birthplace			1.6	2	N3D
1.	United States	94	105			
2.	Europe	11	19			•
3.	Mexico or South America	0	0			
4.	Russia	12	18			
5.	Other ^C	3	2			
		120	144			
Item 2	?		•			
Fathe	er's Formal Education			15.3	3	SD
1.	Some grade school ^d ,	8	8			
2.	Finished grade school ^d	5	ı			
3.	Some high or trade					
	school ^d	19	8			
4.	Finished high or		•			
	trade school ^e	9	19			
5.	Some college, busingss					
	or technical school ^e	26	21			
6.	Finished business					
	or technical school	2	10			
7.		20	16			
8.	Attended gradunte or					
	<pre>profession(1 schools</pre>					
	after college	30	61			
9.	Do not know	1	00			
		120	144			

(Table continued on next page)

aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference CNot included in calculation of Chi-square dAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square eAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square

Table 6.02 (Continued)

Item	Obse Resp	rved onses	x ²	df	Diff.a,b
	Con.	Exp.	1		
Item 3					
Father's Religious			06.11		CI)
Affiliation			22,7	4	SD
1. Notie	16	17			
2. Protestant	64	19			
3. Catholic	11	10			
4. Josish	20	63			
5. Office	10	6_			
	121	144			
Item 4			•9	1	NSD
Mother's Birthplace	104	118	• 7	•	110, 11
1. United States	10/1	0			
2. Canada	13	13			
3. Europe	13	10			
4. Mosico or South	0	0			
America	2	12			
5. Russia ^c 6. Other ^c	1	17.			
6. Other	120	144			
ltem 5			,	•	N ₂ D
Mother's Formal Education	_	•	5.7	3	14.547
1. Some grade school	3	3			
2. Finished grade schoold	6	5			
3. Scho high school G	14	7			
4. Finished high school?	28	33			
5. Some technical or busin	085			*-	
training after high		25		•	
school ^e	, 11	20			
6. Some college or finished	ብ . ስለ	29			
junior college?	26	27			•

⁽Table continued on next page)



aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference CAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square. dAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square. eAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square.

Table 6.02 (Continued)

I	tem	Obse Resp	rved onses	x ²	df	Diff.a,h
		Con.	Fxp.			
Item 5						
	inued)					
7.	Finished college	22	24			,
8.	••					
	professional school	•	10			
_	after college Do not know ^C	9	18 0			
9.	Do not know	120	144			
Item 6		170	1-1-4			
	our mother have a paying					
	then you entered college?			4.8	2	NSD
	Worked full time	19	3 9			
	Worked part-time	18	17.			
3.	Did not have a paying					
	jo!	79	85		•	
4.	Was not living ^c	3	33			
.		119	144			
Item 7						
	erts Religious			20.2	4	SD
	liation No	7	11	20.	4	317
1. 2.	None Park and park	71	49			
_	Protestant Catholic	14	14		,	
4.		25	63			
5.	Other	Δ.	7			
J.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	121	144			•
			- .			

a bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference CNot included in calculation of Chi-square.

control group. Larger proportions of the control group had indicated fathers (53%) and mothers (59%) who were Protestants.

The responses by the two groups on formal educations of fathers showed a large proportion of the experimental group (40) as compared with the control group (25%) had fathers who had attended graduate or professional schools after college. The responses also showed that the median level of education of fathers of the experimental group was graduation from college and the median level of education of fathers of the control group was graduation from high school with some posthigh school studies.

A number of interpretations are possible to account for the observed differences between the two groups on formal educations of fathers. Fathers whose formal educations included graduate studies were more likely to understand the advantages offered by early admission to college and less likely to be swayed by the attacks on the Program in 1951. Too, such fathers very likely were the academic models that motivated the interests of the sons in the Program.

The Chi-square tests on the differences between the responses of the control and the experimental groups on family backgrounds indicated significant differences at the .01 level in formal educations of fathers, and in religious affiliations of mothers and fathers. Therefore, the mull hypothesis of no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in socioeconomic backgrounds is rejected. The rejection leads to the conclusionthat the control and the experimental groups were drawn from different socioeconomic populations.

Undergraduate Information

The discussion of pre-college information is concerned with answering the question, "Were the experimental students able to compete

favorably with the control students in undergraduate academic performance?" Indications were already available that the experimental group were able to compete favorably with the control students in undergraduate academic ratings and in winning honors (42, 57, 58). The question was reexamined in the follow-up study because incomplete data had raised doubts about the conclusions which were drawn in the report of the Fund for the Advancement of Education in 1957 (58).

The follow-up study examined the relative stability of the choices of undergraduate major field of study, the academic performances of the two groups, and patterns of participation in student activities.

The null hypothesis under test is:

There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in undergraduate performance.

Table 6.03 displays the responses of the control and the experimental groups to six questions about participation in general activities in high school and in college. The six questions concern leadership roles, degree of personal involvement in activities, and the educational attainments of the personal peer groups. The Chi-square tests on the differences between the responses of the two groups show no significant differences except in participation in athletics.

The difference observed in athletics was somewhat anticipated since the experimental group had spent two years less time in high school than the control group. Therefore, the experimental group had that much less time to participate in athletics and almost no time for variety athletics.

Approximately one-third of the respondents of both groups had served in leadership positions in undergraduate academic clubs. Also, approximately 15% of both groups had been elected to leadership posi-

Undergraduate Information
Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item		rved onses	x ²	df	Diff.a,b
	Con.	Exp.			
Item 1					
Were you an officer in any			2.4	,	NSD
undergraduste academic club?	82	85	2.6	1	NSD
2. Yes	38	59.			•
•	120	144			
Item 2					
Are you, or have you ever					
been, an elected class of-			•,	•	Mercia
ficer in college?	9 5	121	.7	1	NSD
1. No	95 24	23			
2. Yes	119	144			
Item 3					
Were you on any high school					
or city athletic teams?			16.8	1	SD
1. No	41	8 5			
2. Yes	79 120	58			
Item 4	120	143			
Did you play in your college					
or high school band or or-					
chestra?			1.5	2	NSD
.1. No	89	97			•
Both high school and					
· college	13	2]			
3. High school only	18 0	26 0		٠.	
4. Collage only	120	144		•	

(Table continued on next page)

Level of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference

Table 6.03 (Continued)

Item		erved	x ²	df	Diff.a,b
	Con.	Exp.		٠	
Item 5					
Have you ever been in any pub-					
licly performed plays while in		•	0.1	•	Menn
college or in high school?	57	82	9.1	3	NSD
2. Both high school and	37	02.	•		
college	19	24			
3. High school only	41	28			
4. College only	3	10			
	120	144			
Item 6					
How many of your friends are					
now in or have finished col-					
lege? ^c	_	_	4.6	2	MSD
1. None ^d	2	1			
 Only a few^d Most of them 	24	16			
3. Most of them 4. All of them	60 34	83 40			
5. Do not know; lost	34	40			
contact	0	3			
	120	143			

allevel of confidence .O1
bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference
cmOf the people about your own age with whom you spent most of your free time while in high school, how many of them are now in college or have finished college?"

dAdjoining cells have been merged for Chi-square

tions in student governments in college. These percentages indicated the similarity of leadership opportunities for both groups in college.

Items relating to musical performances in bands or orchestras or dramatic performances in plays were included in the questionnaire to provide some information about whether or not the experimental group tended to be seclusive and withdrawn from personal involvement in collegiate activities. The responses to the items by both groups showed large proportions of the experimental group with no participation in either music or the performing arts. A larger proportion of the control group had indicated participation in publicly performed plays than had the experimental group. However, the Chi-square test of the differences between the responses of both groups showed no significant differences at the .01 level between the responses of the two groups.

The last item in Table 6.03 provided some information about the peer groups of the control and the experimental groups. More than 80% of the control and the experimental groups had indicated that most or all of their personal friends in high school had entered college. The Chi-square test showed no significant differences at the .01 level between the responses of the two groups.

In general, the findings of no significant differences in precollege and college student activities indicate that participation
in the Program did not diminish opportunities for serving in leadership roles in college. In addition, the patterns of participation
in pre-college and college activities were similar so that academic
performance cannot be said to have been gained at the expense of other
college functions.

The control and the experimental groups were asked to respond to the number of times they had changed their undergraduate major field of study. Of the respondents, 60% reported no changes (see Table 6.04). More of the students of the experimental group had indicated two or more changes, but the Chi-square test of the difference between proportions of the responses showed no significant differences at the .01 level.

The similarity of the responses of the control and experimental groups on changes in major fields of study indicated a stability of the choices of the experimental group although the choices were made two years early.

Table 6.05 displays the distribution of gradepoint averages for both groups. Because several students had been able to combine the four years of college into three, the number of seniors in the experimental group increased over the number of juniors of the preceding year. The table does not include the gradepoint averages of the Chicago group because a large number of students there had advanced through comprehensive examinations. Such students could not easily be classed, particularly between the junior and senior years. All gradepoint averages were computed to the nearest tenth.

As shown in Table 6.05, there were no significant differences between the distributions of the gradepoint averages of the two groups over the four-year period. The calculated Chi-squares for the freshmen and sophomore years were large but not significant at the .01 level.

Table 6.06 presents the scheme originally used for comparing the grade point averages of the control and the experimental groups. The standard deviations of the distributions and the means appear similar over the four-year period. The F statistics calculated from the variance ratios for the two groups for each year with an approximation to 160 degrees of freedom for the first two years showed no significant

Table 6.04 Undergraduate Information, Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item	Obse Resp	x ²	df	Diff.a,b	
	Con.	F ир.		•	
Item 4 (Part IV)	***	······································			
Number of Times Undergrad- uate Major Area of Study					
Changed		•	1.5	2	NSD
O. None	82	94		_	
1. 1	30	34			
2. 2 ^c	5	11			
3. 3 or more ^c	3	5			
	120	144			



aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SP Significant difference Adjoining cells merged for Chi-square.

Table 6.05

Undergraduate Information,

Academic Transcripts, 1951-54

		Gradepoint Averages ^d						biff.a,t
Class	1.0- 1.9	2.0- 2.4	2.5-2.9	3.0- 3.4	3.5- 4.0	x ²	df	171111
Freshman Control Exp.	10 11	33 23	49 34	42 54	16 30	10.6	4	ESD
Sophomore Control Exp.	6 13	32 24	54 35	45 50	14 28	12.8	4	MOD
Junior ^C Control Exp.	7 4	25 10	45 \ 31	42 36	21 32	9.6	3	NSD.
Senior ^C Control Exp.	2 4	13 - 13	48 . 26	47	26 37	6.33	3	130

a Level of confidence .01
bNSD No significant difference; CD Significant difference
\$1.0-1.9 range ranged with 2.0-2.4 range for Chi-square.
Because of the large number of students who progressed by comprehensive examinations, the Chicago group is not included in the grappoint averages.



raduate Information,

Undergraduate Information, Academic Transcripts, 1951-54

7. te 6.06

Gradepoint			•	Class	5			
Averages	Fresh Con.	man Exp•	Sophomo Con.	re Exp.	Junio Con.	Exp.	Sen! Con.	
1.0-1.4	0	2	1	2	1	0	0	
1.5-1.9	10	9	5	11	6	4	?	
2.0-2.4	33	23	32	24	25	10	1,3	
2.5-2.9	49	34	54	35	45	31	48	26
3.0-3.4	42	54	45	50	42	36	47	4.1
3.5-4.0	16	30	14	2 8	21	32	26	3;
N (Con)	150		151		140		136	
N (Exp)		152		150		113		1)9
Mean (Con)	2.8	ه خانه چه هاست شهیست.	2.9		3.0		3.3	
Mean (Exp)		3.1		3.1		3.4		3.4
Variance (Con)	.292		.250		•302		•230	
Variance (Exp)		•366		.381		•280		•30]
`	. ((Table o	continued	on ne	xt page)	·		

^aBecause of the large number of students who profresced by comprehensive examinations, the Chicago group is not included in the gradepoint averages.

Talle 6.06 (Continued)

•		Class							
	Freshman Con. Exp.	Sophomore Con. Exp.	Junior Cen. Exp.						
Standard deviation (Con)	•54	•50	.55	.48					
Standard deviation (Exp)	.60	.62	•53						
F ratios	1.25	1.52	1.08						
df	_151/149	150/149	139/112	· · ·					
t for Means a, b	•50 NSD	.32 NSD	.75 NSD	again an ann a					

aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference



differences at the .01 level. Therefore, the two sets of distributions can be said to be homogeneous. The <u>t</u>-test on the means of the distributions of the two groups for each year showed no significant differences at the .01 level. Therefore, it can be concluded that there were no significant differences between the academic performances of the control group and the experimental group as based on gradepoint averages.

The findings of the follow-up study on the undergraduate activities of the control and the experimental groups do not support a decision to reject the mull hypothesis that there were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group on undergraduate performance. Because the mull hypothesis cannot be rejected, it can be concluded that the experimental group had performed as well as the control group in college in academic and non-academic activities.

Graduate Information

The discussion of graduate information is concerned with answering the question, "Were the experimental students able to compete favorably with the control students for positions in graduate schools of their choices?" The report of the Fund in 1957 had indicated that large numbers of the experimental students had planned to continue their educations into graduate schools. The follow-up study was concerned with what had actually happened by 1962. Entrance into graduate school, choice of graduate school, degree earned, and relative stability of choice of area of specialization were examined in the follow-up study.

The mull hypothesis under test is:

There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in the attainment of choices of and entrances into graduate schools.

88

100

Table 6.07 displays the responses of both groups to the number of times graduate major area of study was changed. A significant difference at the .01 level was observed between the responses of the two groups. Because the item had combined the responses of the members of both groups who had attended graduate schools with the responses of the members of both groups who had not attended graduate school, the item is treated in two parts (see Tables 6.08 and 6.09).

Table 6.08 shows that, of the respondents of the follow-up study, a larger proportion of the experimental group (90%) as compared with the control group (73%) had attended graduate schools. The difference tested by Chi-square was significant at the .01 level.

Among the students who had attended graduate schools, no significant differences were observed in the number of times graduate major area of study was changed. The data (see Table 6.09) attest to the comparable stability of the choices of the experimental group and of the control groups.

Entrance into graduate school was not a sufficient test for the mull hypothesis. Each of the students who was in the experimental group or in the control group had been carefully selected for high ability, high aptitude, and high academic promise. Such students were very likely to succeed in gaining entrance into graduate schools. Therefore, two other conditions were imposed—that the students had entered graduate schools of their choices and that the students had completed graduate studies and earned graduate degrees.

Table 6.10 shows that there were no significant differences between the responses of the control and the experimental groups in attainment of choices of graduate schools for studies leading to the degrees of Master of Arts, Bachelor of Laws, and other degrees of



101

The state of the s

Table 6.07

Graduate Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item	Obse Resp	x [?]	df	Diff.a,!	
entre de la constitució de la constitución de la co	Gon.	Exp.			
Item 5 (Port IV) Number of Times Graduate Major Area of Study was Changed 0. None 1. 1° 2. 2° 3. 3° 4. Did not attend graduate school	78 6 2 1 1 32		14.6	2	\$1)

bLevel of confidence .01
bNSD No significant difference; Sb: 'ficuat diaference
Adjoining cells marged for Chirage



Table 6.08

Graduate School Versus Non-Graduate School Attendance

Group	Observed Responses		x ²	df	Diff.a,b
	0-3 ^c	4			·
Total	0.7	20	6.6	1	SD
Control Exp.	87 129	32 14			

aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference cSum of first four responses of both groups in Table 6.07.

Table 6.09

Number of Times Graduate Major Area of Study Changed
For Those Who Attended Graduate School

Group	Observed Responses ^C			x ²	df	Diff.a,b	
•	None	1 ^d	2 ^d	3 ^d			
Total Control Exp.	78 108	6 17	2 3	1	1.2	1.	NSD

aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference cResponses from Table 6.07 excluding responses to 4. dAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square



Table 6.10

Graduate Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item	Obse Resp	x ²	df	Diff.a,b	
	Con.	Exp.	-		
Item 1 (Part IV) Choice of Graduate School for Master of Arts, Bache- lor of Law, etc. 1. First choice	54	. 68	•5	1	Nui
2. Second choice ^C 3. Other choice ^C	6 1 61	8 5 81			



aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant differences; SD Significant differences CAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square

similar nature and stature. Similarly, there were no significant differences between the responses of both groups to attainment of choices of graduate schools for studies leading to professional or academic doctorates (see Tables 6.11 and 6.12).

By 1962, only nine of the respondents had not yet completed their graduate studies.

The null hypothesis that there were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in attainment of choices of and entrance into graduate schools is rejected. Significantly more experimental students than control students had entered graduate schools. Moreover, the experimental students and the control students who did enter graduate schools had indicated in comparable proportions their attainment of first choices of graduate schools and the stability of their selections of major fields of study.

The experimental students are examined in the sixth section using stratification techniques for controlling the effects of pre-college differences in socioeconomic backgrounds on the observed significant differences in graduate activities between the two groups.

Occupational Information

The discussion of occupational information is concerned with answering the question, "Did the experimental students have post-graduate occupational activities similar to the activities of the control students?" The follow-up questionnaire sought information on the occupational activities from both groups. The items of the follow-up questionnaire seemed biased toward the respondents whose occupations were among the academic professions. The bias was partly accidental because it was related to success criteria, which were biased in-advertently because of the academic background of the principal in-

Table 6.11

Graduate Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item	Obse Resp	$\chi_{\rm S}$	df	lifi.a,b	
	Con.	Exp.			sake rape of a squarespe salp revise milit in a 1 - 14
Item 2 (Part IV) Choice of Graduate School					
for Professional Doctorate			12	1	11.37
.1. First Choice	21	30			
2. Second Choice ^C	1	5			
3. Other Choice ^C	2	6			
•	24	41			



^{**}aLevel of confidence .01
bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference
**CAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square

Table 6.12

Graduate Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item	Obse Resp	aved onses	. x ²	df	Diff.a,
	Con.	Ехр.			
tem 3 (Part IV) Choice of Graduate School for Academic Doctorate 1. First choice 2. Second choice 3. Other choice	16 3 -2	39 5 4 48	.2	1	MSD

alevel of confidence .O1 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference cAdjoining cells marged for Chi-square



vestigator of the follow-up study. The success criteria were discarded but the items of the follow-up questionnaire were retained. The deliberate part of the bias occured because of the attempt to identify the continued scholarly interests of both groups since large numbers of students had indicated intentions to pursue (42, 58) and, subsequently, had completed graduate studies.

The null hypothesis under test is:

There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in occupational attainments and activities.

The mull hypothesis was tested by assessing the overall effect of the Chi-square tests on the differences between the responses of the control group and the experimental group on broad categories of primary occupational status, description of levels of occupational positions, number of different positions held since earning highest collegiate degrees, extent of research and publications, and the extent of participation in professional organizations.

The responses of the two groups to the broad occupational categories are recorded in Table 6.13. The table includes a write-in item for nine respondents who were students in graduate schools at the time they completed the follow-up questionnaire. The occupational categories were prepared after a study of the occupations of parents in the 1953 survey of the Early Admission Program had indicated the difficult task of making sense out of specific occupations.

The responses tabulated in Table 6.13 show that both groups were engaged predominatly in professional occupations and that a large proportion of the experimental group (45%) were connected with schools and colleges. Unfortunately, an oversight in the preparation of the item prevents distinguishing between the experimental students who were con-

Table 6.13

Occupational Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Exp. 14 33 61 20 120	8.9	4	NCD
33 61 20 128	8.9	A	NCD
33 61 20 128	8.9	4	NCD
33 61 20 128	8 . 9	4	NCD
33 61 20 128			
61 20 128			
20 12?			
120	•		
-			
_			
0	•		
5		•	
2	•		
11	_		
8	-		
6			
3			

128	7.9	1	SD
o			
	5	6 128 7.9	6 128 7.9 1

aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference cAll responses merged for Chi-square.

nected with colleges and those who were connected with schools.

The Chi-square test of the difference between the proportions of the control and the experimental groups in each of the occupational categories indicated no significant difference at the .01 level. A further test showed that, when the observed responses were grouped into only two categories of professional and non-professional occupations, there was a significant difference at the .01 level between the control group and the experimental group in general occupational status. A significantly larger proportion of the experimental group (94%) as compared with the control group (82%) was engaged in professional occupations at the time they completed the questionnaires in 1962.

Responses by both groups to levels of the positions they held at their current places of employment are displayed in Table 6.14. The responses are numbered one through four and correspond to the following:

- 1. Upper level of the organization
- 2. Junior level of the organization.
- 3. Lower level of the organization.
- 4. None of the above

The last item was included for persons who were unemployed, were students, or were persons who felt that their positions were not clearly related to the organizational structure or hierarchy of their places of employment.

The data recorded in Table 6.14 indicate a comparable rate of advancement of the control and the experimental groups in their current places of employment. The proportions of both groups center on the places of employment. The proportions of both groups center on the junior level of the organization. The Chi-square test showed no significant differences at the .01 level between the responses of both groups to levels of positions.

Table 6.14

Occupational Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1972

Item		Observed Response		df	Diff.2,
	Con.	Exp.		tang tagan pada en T	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
F4 61 (1) 1 11 1					
Item 2 (Nort VI) Level of current					
position in place			0.5	_	
of ergleyment	•		8.7	3	KSD
1. Upper		17			
2. Junice	68	E 15.			
3. Leave	18	22			
4. None	5	16			
- · · · -	118	143			



 $[^]a_{\rm NSD}$ of confidence .01 $_{\rm NSD}$ Ni significant difference.

Table 6.15 displays the responses of the control and the experimental groups to number of different positions held since graduation with highest degree. The responses indicated occupational mobility for both groups. The Chi-square test showed no significant differences at the .01 level between the responses of the two groups to occupational mobility.

As an indication of the directions of post-graduate occupational activities, each respondent was asked to specify the number of research projects in which he was a direct participant. The responses, displayed in Table 6.16, showed participation in a greater number of research projects by the experimental group (72%) as compared with the control group. The Chi-square test showed that the difference was significant at the .01 level. Since significantly more of the experimental group than the control group had entered professions which placed them in public schools and colleges, the finding of significant differences in the responses by both groups to research activities was not surprising.

As shown in Table 6.17, the control group and the experimental group responded in similar ways to the extent of publications, membership in professional organizations and subscriptions to professional journals. The differences between the responses of the two groups were not significant at the .01 level. In general, both groups had indicated memberships in professional organizations and subscriptions to at least one professional journal. Of some interest is the response by 43% of the experimental group that they had already become active in writing and publishing articles in professional journals.

The null hypothesis that there were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in occupational attainments and activities is rejected primarily because of the observed significant difference at the .Ol level between the two groups on pro-

Table 6.15

Occupational Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

ltem	Observed Response		x _S	df	Diff.a,b
	Cor:	Exp.			h re-esp reside villados à so o r
Item 7 (1 2: 3V)	F				
Number of Different Posi- tions held since Graduation					
with Highert Degree			1.2	4	NS 15
0. None	8	12			•
1.]	46	57			
2. 2	35	46			
3. 3	20	20			
	10	9			
4. 4 or more	10				

alevel of confidence .01 bRSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference



Table 6.16

Occupational Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item	Observed Responses		x²	,df	Diff.a,h
	Con.	Fxp.			
Item 4 (F + VII)	B Britis & danagerillar				
Number of languages, Pro-					
jects Directly Partici-					
pated in			11.9	3	59)
O. Note	58	41			
1. 1 o: 2	28	43			
2. 3 to 5	21	34			
3. 6 to 8°	4	5			
4. More than 8 ⁵	8	19			
	119	162			

ablevel of confidence .01 hNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference cAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square



Table 6.17
Other Occupational Information,
Follow-up Questionnaire, 1952

Item (Fart VII)		erved ont es	x ²	df	Diff.a,
	Cen.	Fxp.			
Item]					
Number of Bocks Pub-				_	
listed to Pate			•5	1	MSH)
O. None	117	138			
1. 1	3	6			
2. More than 1	0	00			
	120	144			
T.A					
Item 2 Number of Articles					
Contributed to Journals			4.2	4	MSD
0. None	74	82	400	*1	11272
1. 3	22	20			
2. 2	9	13			
3. 3	5	10			
4. 4 or more	9	19			
4. 4. 01 more	119	144			
Item 3					
Number of Professional Organ-					
ization to Which You Belong			7.6	4	Lilly .
O. West	41	31			·
1. 1	34	52			
2. 2	23	31			
3. 3	13	15			
4. A cr more	9_	15			
	120	144			:

bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference



Table 6.17 (Continued)

Item	Observed Responses		x ²	df .	Diff.a,t
	Con.	Exp.			
tem 5 Number of Subscriptions to Professional Journals 0. to: 1. 1 2. 2 3. 3 14. 4 5. 5 or more	25 35 28 13 7 12	29 23 29 23 13 24	7.5	5	NSD

aLevel of confidence .Ol bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference fessional and non-professional occupational status. Larger proportions of the experimental as compared with the control group had entered the professions. Excluding the significant difference observed for extent of articles published, there were no significant differences between the two groups in occupational levels attained, in occupational mobility, and in occupational activities.

Socioesonomic Information

The discussion of socioeconomic information is concerned with answering the question, "Did the experimental group have post-graduate socioeconomic activities similar to the activities of the control group?" Significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in religious affiliation of both partnes and in the educational backgrounds of fathers were observed and reported in Chapter 4 (See Table 4.05). The differences were indicative of similar socioeconomic differences between the two groups in the post-college period. Therefore, the follow-up study sought information similar to that already available on the parents of both groups.

The null hypothesis under test is:

There were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in post-college socioeconomic activities.

The follow-up questionnaire contained items about marital status, educational backgrounds of wives, number of children, current home community size, community service, religious affiliation, current income, and estimates of current financial wealth. The responses to the ten items of social information appear in Table 6.18. Responses to the four items of economic information appear in Table 6.19.

On social information, the Chi-square tests of the differences between the responses of the control and the experimental groups showed

ERIC

Table 6.18

Social Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item (Fart V)	Observed Responses		x ²	df	Diff. ² ,
	Con.	Exp.			
Item 1			0	1	N.31)
Marital law tos	27	39	.8	1	F4, 947
1. Stagle	92	102			
2. Mariled	9 <i>7.</i>	0			
 Widowed Filver of or Separated⁶ 	1	3			
The Past of the engineer	120	14.:			
Item 3					
Education Bookground			1.5	3	NSD
of Wifemin years of schooling 1. 12	9	8	1 • 0	3	
2. 15-14	16	13			
3. 1 × 16.	41	49			
4. 17-10	24	23			
5. 19 20 ⁴	2	5			
6. Kee than 20 ^d	0	7			
	92	10ວ			
Item 4					••
High Region Formed by Wife			5.7	2	Not?
1.	32	26			
2. in inder's degree	49	55			
3. It imits degree or	10	20		•.	
11/162	10 0	70			
4. Cilci	91	105			•
	71	100			

**Blevel of confidence .01

NSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference

CMerged with Single for Chi-square.

dAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square.

**Elncludes cix experimental whole wives hold derivator.

fineludes Ni and Junior Cliego Certificate.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

Table 6.18 (Continued)

20 26 29 13 5 0	46 28 19 6 4 0	14.3	4	SI)
26 29 13 5	28 19 6 4 0	14.3	4	SD
26 29 13 5	28 19 6 4 0	14.3	4	SI)
26 29 13 5	28 19 6 4 0			
29 13 5 0	19 6 4 0			
13 5 0	6 4 0			
5 0	4 0			
0	0			
93	103			
		6.9	3	Nisas
61	50			
8	12		•	
2 2	34			
27	45			
	_			
1				
119	142			
		2.4	1.	• •
-				•
			• .	
	22 27 1 119 30 12 10 12 55 119	22 34 27 45 1 1 119 142 30 26 12 18 10 12 12 18 15 69 119 143	22 34 27 45 1 1 119 142 2.4 30 26 12 18 10 12 12 18 55 69	22 34 27 45 1 1 119 142 2.4 4 30 26 12 18 10 12 12 18 10 12 12 18 56 69 119 143

a Level of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference CAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square. dRespondents were students. Not included in Chi-square.

Table 6.18 (Continued)

Item (Part V)	Observed Responses		x ²	df	Liff.2,
	Con.	Exp.			
Item 7 Membership in Service Organizations (Lions, Kiwanis, 0. Nome 1. 1 2. 2° 3. 3° 4. More than 3	etc.) 97 15 5 2 0	124 10 6 3 0	2.3	2	NGD
<pre>Item 8 Have you been an officer in such organizations? 1. No 2. Yes</pre>	109 	132 10 142	•2	1	K 3
Number of identive Positions held in Germanity Q. None 1. 1° 2. 2° 3. 3° 4. More than 3	10) 8 2 0 0	135 3 2 3 0	•1	1	1. - 4
Item 10 Religion: Affiliation 1. None 2. Protestant 3. Catholic 4. Jewish 5. Other	27 55 13 21 4	59 26 12 41 5	57.0	3	:. `

^{**}Level of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference CAdjoining cells marged for Chi-square.

no significant differences at the .01 level on eight of the ten items in Table 6.18. No significant differences were observed in marital status, educational background of wife, highest degree earned by wife, type of current residence; and size of home community. Also, no significant differences at the .01 level were observed between the responses of the two groups to membership in community service organizations, to having been an officer in community service organizations, and to serving in an elective position in current home community. Significant differences at the .01 level were observed on two items—number of children and religious affiliation.

The data on marital status (see Table 6.18) show large proportions of both groups were married. Only four respondents—one control and three experimental subjects—had indicated that they were divorced or separated. In general, the two groups had attained comparable marital statuses, although the men in the experimental group were two years younger than the men in the control group. Among the respondents who were married, each had indicated a wife who had graduated from high school. In addition, 75% of the experimental group and 65% of the control group had indicated wives who were college graduates.

Larger proportions of the married respondents of the experimental group (45%) as compared with the control group (21%) had reported no children in 1962. The difference in number of children was tested by Chi-square and found to be significant at the .01 level.

The responses of the two groups to places of residence indicate that similar proportions of each group lived in single or duplex homes and in apartments. In additions, large proportions of the experimental group (70%) and the control group (65%) lived in urban areas of population 50,000 or more. The Chi-square test on both items showed no significant differences at the .01 level (see Table 6.18). The two

on type of home residence and size of home community were included in the follow-up questionnaire to detect extent of mobility of the control and experimental groups from rural to urban areas. A comparison of the data in Table 4.05 and Table 6.18 showed that, in 1951, approximately 50% of both groups had come from urban areas of over 100,000 and that, in 1962, 61% of the experimental group and 56% of the control group lived in urban areas of over 100,000 population. A mobility seems indicated but the evidence is inconclusive because there is no way of determining how many of the respondents in each case were the same people.

Three items of the questionnaire provided clues to the extent of community service performed through service organizations or elective offices by both groups in their home communities. The responses (see Table 6.18) showed that most of the respondents reported no activity. The Chi-square test of the differences between the responses of the control and the experimental groups to community service were not significant at the .01 level.

Significant differences were observed between the responses of both groups to religious affiliations. The frequencies of the responses to religious affiliations exceed the frequencies shown in Table 6.02 for religious affiliations of fathers and seem more consistent with the religious affiliations of mothers. Larger proportions of the respondents of both groups saw themselves with no religious affiliations than did their parents.

The Chi-square test on the differences between the responses of the control and the experimental groups to value of property acquired but not through inheritance showed significant differences at the .01 level.

No significant differences were observed between the responses of the two

groups on current salary range, range of property owned, and value of property inherited (see Table 6.19).

Because no explanation was given in the questionnaire on the intended distinction between personal property and other property, the data are ambiguous. The intended distinction was the separation of the assessment of property associated with personal living from the assessment of property of accumulated wealth, such as stocks and bonds. The two items relating to property could have been combined to resolve the ambiguity. They were not combined because a significant difference between the two groups was observed for real and personal property.

In 1962, both groups had indicated high earning power with 68% of the experimental group and 76% of the control group reporting annual incomes of \$6,000 per year or higher. Accumulated wealth appeared similar for both groups.

The difference observed in personal and real property between the two groups stemmed from more respondents of the experimental group (15%) than of the control group (9%) reporting no property and less of the experimental group (4%) than of the control group (16%) reporting property valued at \$20,000 or more.

The mill hypothesis that there were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in socioeconomic activities is rejected because of the observed significant differences in the religious affiliations of the two groups and the significant differences in acquired real and personal wealths of the two groups.

One Pattern of Observed Differences

The analysis of the follow-up data in the preceding five sections showed significant differences on several items which seemed related in two patterns. The first pattern was the relationship between the

Table 6.19

Economic Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item (Part VI)	Obse Resp	rved onses	x ²	df	Diff.a,1
	Con.	Exp.			
Item 4		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Current Schary Range			3.2	5	NSD
1. Le / than \$4,000	1.0	19		,	
2. \$4,000-\$5,999	19	26			•
3. \$6,000-\$7,999	39	46			
4. \$9,000-\$9,999	22	23			•
· 5. \$10,000-\$11,999	19	• 15			•
6. \$12,000-up	<u> </u>	12			
	150	141	,		
Ttem 5					
Range of Value of Personal					
and Rest Property Acquired					
<pre>(but not through inheritance)</pre>		•			
since graduation with latest				_	4.35
degree			. 14.8	3	SD
1. Rore	10	2)			•
2. Less than \$10,000	63	. 95	•	•	
3. \$10,000-\$19,999	23	30			
4. \$20,000-\$29,999 ⁰	13	6			•
5. \$50,000-up ⁶	6	0			
	115	342			
Item 6				•	
Range of Value of Property	•	•		•	
Inherited			7.7	2	(i.:i)
1. Near	92	125			
2. 1000 than \$10,050	11	10			
3. \$10,000-\$19,999 ⁰	3	2			•
4. \$20,000-\$29,999 ⁰	3	. 2	a ,		
5• \$30,000−up [€]	10	2			
	119	141			

(Table continued on next page)

a Level of confidence .O1 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference CAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square.

Table 6.19

Economic Information,

Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

Item (Part VI)	Obsez Respo		χ ² df	Diff. a,
	Con.	Exp.		
tem 4			: .	
Current Schary Range			3.2 5	NSD
1. 1. thin \$4,000	10	19		•
2. : 1,000-\$5,909	19	26		
3. \$4,000-47,992	39	16		
4. \$9,000-\$9,999	22	23	•	• .
5. \$10,000-\$11,999	19	15	. , ,	
6. \$12,000-up	11	12	•	
	120	141		
Item 5	• •			•
Range of Value of Personal			•	
and Real Property Acquired	• •			
(but not through inheritance)		•	* **.:	
since graduation with latest				***
degree		•	14.8 3	SD
1. Note	10	21		
2. Lett then \$10,000	63	95		
3. \$10.000-\$19.999	23	20		
4. \$20,000-\$29,999 ⁶	13	6		
5. \$30,000-up ^c	6	<u> </u>		
	115	142	•	
Item 6	•			•
Range of Value of Property				
Inheritei			7.7 2	NED
1. Rose	92	125		•
2. less than \$10,000	11	10		•
3. \$10,000-\$19,999°	3	2		
	3	2	•	. •
4. \$20.000-\$29.999 ⁶		2		
4. \$20,000-\$29,999 ⁰ 5. \$30,000-up ^c	10	141		

a Level of confidence .O1
bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference
cAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square.



Table 6.19 (Continued)

Item (Part VI)		Observed Responses	χ2	df	Diff.a,
	Co	n. Exp	•		
Item 7				,	•
Range of Value of Other					١.
		•	2.9	2	NSD
Property Owned 1. None	7	1 72		2	NSD .
Property Owned 1. None	7 3			2	∛ NSD
Property Owned 1. None 2. Less than \$10,000	. 1			2	∛ NSD
Property Owned 1. None 2. Less than \$10,000 3. \$10,000-\$19,999c	. 1	1 51		2	∜ NSD
Property Owned 1. None 2. Less than \$10,000	. 1	1 51 3 13	} }	2	∛ NSD

aLevel of confidence .O1 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference cAdjoining cells merged for Chi-square



the occupations and formal educations of fathers and the graduate activities, career choices, and acquired wealth of the control and the experimental groups. The second pattern was the relationship between the religious affiliations of parents and the religious affiliations of the two groups as well as the number of children in the families of the groups. Only the first pattern is examined in the present section.

The control and the experimental groups were each sub-divided into sub-groups on the basis of educational backgrounds of fathers (see Table 6.20). The sub-groups were formed by controlling on educations of fathers rather than on occupations of fathers because adjoining cells in education could be merged, if necessary, more readily than occupations to meet the requirements for cell frequencies for testing by Chi-square.

In the section on graduate information, the data showed significantly more members of the experimental group than of the control group had entered graduate schools. In the sub-groups of the control and the experimental groups whose fathers had not graduated from college (see Table 6.21), there were no significant differences at the .01 level between the sub-groups in entrance into and graduation from graduate schools.

Table 6.22 displays the responses of the sub-groups of both the control and the experimental groups whose fathers had graduated from college. The Chi-square test showed significant differences between the two groups at the .01 level. Larger proportions of the experimental sub-group (95%) as compared with the control sub-group (76%) had entered and graduated from graduate schools. Whatever effects the educational backgrounds of fathers had on the sons, the significant differences which appeared despite the equalized backgrounds of fathers imply that other factors must be examined.



Table 6.20

Sub-groups of the Control Group and the Experimental Group Stratified on Formal Educations of Fathers (195) Group)^a

Educations of Fathers	Control Group	Experimental Group
Up to bu' not including graduation from high school	31	17
High school graduation and some post-high school studies	37	45
Graduation from college	19	16
Graduate or professional schools	30	56
Totals	117	134

aData are from the Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962, and appear also as Item 2 of Table 6.02. The totals of Table 6.20 are slightly less that for Table 6.02 because information on the specific variables (10 Table 6.21-6.24) examined with the stratified populations was not evalled for a few respondents.



Graduate School Attendance of Control and Experimental Students
Whose Fathers Were not College Graduates
(1951 Group)

Table 6.21

	Obsei Respo		χ2	df	Diff.a,b
	Con.	Ехр.			
	-		2.9	1	nsd
Attended graduate school	48	53			
Did not attend graduate school	19	9			
No data available	1	00			•
Totals	68	62	•	•	



Table 6.22

Graduate School Attendance of Control and Experimental Students
Whose Fathers Were College Graduates

(1951 Group)

		Obse Resp	rved onses	x ²	df	Diff.a,b
		Con.	Exp.			
				7.4	1	SD
Attended graduate	school	37	67			
Did not attend grachool	radua te	12	4			
No data available	•	0	1			
Totals		49	72			

aLevel of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference



The data support the conclusion that the control and the experimental groups differed significantly in graduate activity and that the difference is not wholly attributable to pre-college differences in socioeconomic background. By implication, it follows that early admission to college was in part responsible for some of the observed differences.

The significant differences in acquired property which were observed and reported in an earlier section of the present chapter disappeared when the groups were stratified and compared. The proportions were higher in favor of the control group, but the Chi-square test showed no significant differences at the .01 level in acquired property (see Table 6.23 and 6.24).

The data of the sub-groups support the conclusion that the observed significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in property acquired is attributable to pre-college differences in socioeconomic status. Therefore, the apparent disadvantage of the experimental group is not attributable to participation in the Early Admission Program.

Summary

The analysis of the data on pre-college information, undergraduate information, graduate information, occupational information, and socio-economic information showed many similarities and several differences between the activities of the control group and the experimental group. The strategy of the analysis was to identify any disadvantages which the experimental group encountered as a result of participation in the Program. The mull hypothesis which were tested were consistent with the strategy; therefore, the hypotheses were not sensitive to the degree to which the data favored the experimental group. The findings seemed conclusive that the experimental group had gained two years over

Table 6.23

Property Acquired by Control and Experimental Students

Whose Fathers Were not College Graduates

(1951 Group)

	Obse Resp	rved onses	x ²	df	Diff.a,b
	Con.	Exp.			
			4.4	·. 2	NSD
None	5	9			
Below \$10,000 value	37	38	•		
\$10,000 and h r in val	ue 26	14			
No data avail e	0	1		•	• •
Totals	68	62			
			•		

a Level of confidence .01 bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference



Table 6.24

Property Acquired by Control and Experimental Students Whose Fathers Were College Graduates (1951 Group)

	Obse Resp	rved onse s	x ²	df	Diff.a,b
•	Con.	Exp.			
			6.8	2	NSD
None	4	. 11		•	
Below \$10,000 in value	24	45	·		
\$10,000 and higher in value	21	15			.*
No data available	0	1			
Totals	49	72		•	•
					•

^aLevel of confidence .01 ^bNSD No significant difference; SD Significant difference

its chronological peer group in their formal educations with no observable ill-effects in the post-college period.

Chapter 7

Conclusion

The reexamination of the Early Admission Program was motivated initially by the large number of young men in the experimental group who had indicated preferences for careers in sicence (see Appendix F). The Program had seemed an excellent opportunity to examine the development of scientific careers. However, the inadequacies of the research plan of the Program brought out two other objectives. By 1962, sufficient time had elapsed so that graduate school activities, occupational activities and socioeconomic activities of the control and the experimental groups could be examined. It seemed interesting and reasonable to ask. "What happened to the early admittees after college?" Too, it seemed worthwhile to examine the outcomes of a multi-million dollar effort for successes and limitations. Therefore, instead of examining the extent to which the early admittees adhered to and were successful in attaining careers in science, the follow-up study examined the long-range effects of academic acceleration and evaluated the Early Admission Program as a large scale innovation in education.

By 1962, when the follow-up study begun, it had been limited to the young men who, in 1951, had entered the University of Chicago, Columbia University, Oberlin College, the University of Wisconsin and Yale University. To examine the long-range effects of academic acceleration, the early admittees were contacted by mail and asked to respond to a questionmaire about their activities after they left the undergraduate colleges. The responses of the experimental group were compared to the responses of the control group, which had also been contacted by mail and asked to respond to the same questionnaire, under the assumption that the responses of the control group were the rea-



sonable post-college activities for both groups.

The second objective, the evaluation of the Program as a large scale innovation in education, extended the follow-up study beyond the comparison of the activities of two groups of young men. The Early Admission Brogramscould have had significant contributions toward expanding the research-based policies and prodedures on academic acceleration in education, but the shortcomings of the underlying research plan limited the applicability of the outcomes of the Program.

Data for the follow-up study came from three sources: (1) The questionnaires used in 1953 and in 1955 when the Program was under way, (2) the academic transcripts of the young men of both groups, and (3) the follow-up questionnaire. The Educational Testing Service of Princeton, New Jersey, made available to the follow-up study the four questionnaires which were used during the Program with the 1951 group. Two of the questionnaires had been completed by the students; the first when the students were sophomores and the second when the students were seniors. The third and fourth questionnaires were completed by the colleges at the corresponding times, that is, during the sophomore and senior years of the students. These four questionnaires provided the data which were discussed in Chapter 4.

The academic transcripts from five different institutions with five possibly different standards of measurement provided the data for comparing the academic performances of the control and the experimental groups.

Approximately 65% of both groups responded to the follow-up questionnaire. The characteristics of the non-respondents were unknown so that the bias represented by their non-response to the questionnaire is a major limitation of the follow-up study.

Summary of Findings

1. The mull hypothesis that there were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in sociceconomic background was rejected. Of the five items obtained from the earlier questionnaires, three items showed significant differences at the .01 level (see Table 7.01). The first of these items, rank in high schools may be discounted because they were not comparable; the experimental group had been ranked in the tenth grade and the control group in the twelfth grade. The other two items indicated sociceconomic differences. More of the control group had attended non-perochial private schools. More of the experimental group had fathers whose occupations were professions.

Three of the 17 items of pre-college information of the follow-up questionnaire concurred with the indications of socioeconomic differences indicated by the earlier questionnaires. The responses to the follow-up questionnaire showed significantly more fathers of the experimental group as compared with the control group had attended graduate or professional schools. In addition, there were significantly more parents of the experimental group whose religious affiliation was Jewish. The parents of the control group were predominantly Protestants (see Table 7.02).

A fourth item which showed significant difference between the two groups was participation in athletics. The difference is partly attributable to the early withdrawal from high school of the experimental group.

The mill hypothesis was rejected because of the seven significant differences observed on 20 different items on pre-college information. Therefore, it can be concluded that the groups were drawn from significantly different socioeconomic populations.

2. The mull hypothesis that there were no significant differences 124

ERIC*

Table 7.01

Summary of Findings--ETS Questionnaires, 1953-55

::	o significant difference ^a	Significant difference ^b
• • •	Pre-coll-	ge Information
1. ?.	. • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	 Percentile ranking in high school Type of high school (public, private, or parochial) attended Father's occupation
	Undergraduate Informa	tionRated by Colleges
1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	Extent of dating Adjustment to college life Popularity rating Mental health rating	 Membership in fraternities or social clubs Physical health rating
	Undergraduate Informati	onResponses by Students
1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6.	high school preparation Value of college experience Value of courses taken	1. Number of hours working

^aChi-square test for significant differences with .01 level of confidence.

Table 7.02

Summary of Findings--Follow-up Questionnaire, 1962

į	Mo significant difference ^a	Significant difference ^a
	Pre-colleg	e Information
۱.	Size of home community	1. Father's formal education
•		2. Father's religious affiliatio
3.	Size of high school senior	3. Mother's religious affiliatio
•	class	4. Participation in athletics
		4. Talescipation in amicano
•	Family income	
•	Father's birthplace	•
•	Mother's birthplace	
7.	Mother's formal education	
3.	Mother's occupation	
9.		
).		
۱.	Participated in band or	
	orchestra	
2.	Performed in plays	•
3.	Educational background of	
	peer group	
	Undergradua	ate Information
١.	Times changed major area of	
- •	study	•
2.	Gradepoint averages	
		•
	Candina	
		te Information
1. 2.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school	1. Attendance in graduate school
	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs	1. Attendance in graduate school
2.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs	1. Attendance in graduate school
2.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation	 Attendance in graduate school al Information
2.3.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupational position	 Attendance in graduate school al Information
 2. 3. 1. 2. 	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held	 Attendance in graduate school al Information Primary occupational status-
2. 3. 1. 2.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupational position No. of positions held Books published	 Attendance in graduate school al Information Primary occupational status-
2. 3.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupational position No. of positions held Books published	 Attendance in graduate school al Information Primary occupational status-
 3. 2. 3. 	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published	 Attendance in graduate schoo al Information Primary occupational status-
 3. 2. 3. 4. 	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon	1. Attendance in graduate schoo al Information 1. Primary occupational status- 2. Research projects
 3. 2. 3. 4. 	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status	 Attendance in graduate school al Information Primary occupational status— Research projects nomic Information No of children
2. 3. 1. 2. 3. 4.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife	1. Attendance in graduate schoo al Information 1. Primary occupational status— 2. Research projects nomic Information 1. No of children 2. Religious affiliation
 3. 2. 3. 4. 	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife Degrees earned by wife	 Attendance in graduate school al Information Primary occupational status— Research projects nomic Information No of children
1. 2. 3. 4. 1. 2. 3. 4.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife Degrees earned by wife Type of residence	1. Attendance in graduate school al Information 1. Primary occupational status— 2. Research projects nomic Information 1. No of children 2. Religious affiliation
1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife Degrees earned by wife Type of residence Size Community	1. Attendance in graduate school al Information 1. Primary occupational status— 2. Research projects nomic Information 1. No of children 2. Religious affiliation 3. Range of property acquired.
1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife Degrees earned by wife Type of residence Size Community Membershipservice organizate	1. Attendance in graduate school al Information 1. Primary occupational status— 2. Research projects nomic Information 1. No of children 2. Religious affiliation 3. Range of property acquired.
1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife Degrees earned by wife Type of residence Size Community Membershipservice organization Officerservice organization	1. Attendance in graduate school al Information 1. Primary occupational status— 2. Research projects nomic Information 1. No of children 2. Religious affiliation 3. Range of property acquired.
1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife Degrees earned by wife Type of residence Size Community Membership—service organization Elective position on fighting	1. Attendance in graduate school al Information 1. Primary occupational status— 2. Research projects nomic Information 1. No of children 2. Religious affiliation 3. Range of property acquired.
1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife Degrees earned by wife Type of residence Size Community Membership—service organization Elective position on fighting	1. Attendance in graduate school al Information 1. Primary occupational status— 2. Research projects nomic Information 1. No of children 2. Religious affiliation 3. Range of property acquired.
1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8.	Number of times changed major Choice of MA graduate school Choices of Doctorate programs Occupation Occupation No. of positions held Books published Articles published Socioecon Marital status Educ. of wife Degrees earned by wife Type of residence Size Community Membershipservice organization Elective position on fighting Range of Prop. inherited	1. Attendance in graduate school al Information 1. Primary occupational status— 2. Research projects nomic Information 1. No of children 2. Religious affiliation 3. Range of property acquired.

between the control group and the experimental group in undergraduate performance could not be rejected. The tests of eight items of undergraduate activities from the original questionnaires, one item from the follow-up questionnaires, and the comparison of the gradepoint averages of the two groups resulted in only one significant difference—the control group had spent more time in student employment than had the experimental group. The difference in time spent in employment was attributable to the lack of similar financial aid for the control group as for the experimental group.

Because the mull hypothesis could not be rejected, it can be concluded that the experimental group performed as well as the control group in college in academic and non-academic activities.

3. The mull hypothesis that there were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in attaining choices of and entrances into graduate schools was rejected. Significantly more of the experimental group had entered graduate and professional schools, no significant differences were observed in the attainment of choices of schools. By 1962, significantly more of the experimental group had earned.doctorates.

The rejection of the mull hypothesis and further study of the data led to the conclusion that the experimental group surpassed the performance of the control group in graduate activities. The observed differences in graduate activities between the two groups were attributable not only to the Early Admission Program but also to initial differences between the two groups in socioeconomic backgrounds. To control part of the initial differences, the two groups were stratified by formal educations of fathers. Significantly larger numbers of the stratified experimental group whose fathers were college graduates had entered the

schools.

4. The null hypothesis that there were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in occupational attainments and activities was rejected. Two of the seven items on occupational information in the follow-up questionnaires showed significant differences at the .01 level. Larger proportions of the experimental group had entered the academic professions and larger proportions of the experimental groups had indicated research activities.

The mill hypothesis was rejected because the two groups took significantly different paths in occupational activities and not because of advantages or disadvantages for either group.

5. The null hypothesis that there were no significant differences between the control group and the experimental group in post-college socioeconomic activities was rejected. Fourteen items from the follow-up questionnaire on socioeconomic information were tested for differences. Three of the items showed significant differences at the .01 level. The control group had more children per family and had acquired a higher level of wealth since graduation with highest degrees than the experimental group. In addition, the religious affiliations of both groups followed the pattern of significant differences observed for their parents. Although there were many similarities between the two groups, the three observed differences indicated that the two groups had reproduced the significant differences of the socioeconomic statuses of their parents.

The null hypothesis was rejected because the two groups exhibited significantly different socioeconomic statuses and not because of advantages or disadvantages observed for either group.

Summary of Conclusions

- 1. The colleges which participated in the Early Admission Program were successful in selecting a control group of comparable academic promise as the experimental group. The control group, however, was unmatched in socioeconomic backgrounds when compared with the experimental group. Therefore, the advantages which accrued to the experimental group as a result of participation in the Program contained the effects of initial differences in socioeconomic backgrounds.
- 2. During the undergraduate years, the proportions of both groups which survived the attrition rate in college were not significantly different. The causes of the attrition rate were not examined in the follow-up study. The examination of the college transcripts of academic performance showed that the experimental group was as successful as the control group in college.
- 3. If entrance into graduate schools and earned doctorates are reasonable criteria of academic success, then the experimental group was highly successful. The academic records were impressive in that 89 of 240 early admittees had earned doctorates. The proportions was significantly greater than that of the control group.
- 4. Comparisons of occupational statuses do not provide measures of success because career goals and aspirations are individual matters. It is of interest, however, that a significantly larger proportion of the experimental group had entered professional occupations.
- 5. Although many of the socioeconomic activities of both groups were similar, the significant differences observed on parents were largely carried over to the families of both groups as adulat.

- 6. The experimental group of young men, who had come from families in which the fathers were well-educated professional men, had performed well in colleges. Although several significant differences were observed between the experimental group and the control group in post-college activities, few of the differences were clearly attributable to the Early Admission Program.
- 7. The Early Admission Program had provided the opportunity and the experimental group of young men had capitalized on the opportunity to accelerate the development of careers with minimum observable ill-effects both during and after college.

Comparison of Findings with Previous Reports

In 1957, the Fund for the Advancement of Education had concluded in its second report of the Early Admission Program that the experimental group had outperformed the comparison group academically. The findings exists follow-up study did not support that conclusion. The findings showed no significant differences at the .01 level between the academic performances of both groups on a year-by-year basis as determined by the gradepoint averages.

The Fund had also reported that large numbers of the experimental group had indicated plans for graduate studies. The findings of the follow-up study verified the indications of the report of the Fund and showed that compared with the control group significantly larger numbers of the experimental group had entered graduate and professional schools and had earned graduate graduate degrees.

Edstrom (41), in a summarized form of her final report of the Program to the Fund, had concluded that:

Most of those students who entered college as Scholars in the Early Admission Program made normal progress through college, achieved grades as high or higher, were well-adjusted, and were more likely to attend graduate school than students of comparable



ability, who entered college after completion of high school and at a more typical age (41, p. 412).

The findings of the follow-up study verified the conclusion by Ekstrom with two qualifications. The grades achieved by the two groups were not significantly different. While it is true that the experimental group did show greater tendency toward graduate studies, the tendency cannot be attributed solely to the Early Admission Program. The follow-up study showed that the attendance in graduate schools was partly attributable to initial differences in the socioeconomic backgrounds of the two groups.

The Program as a Large Scale Innovation

The early Admission Program as a large scale innovation in education could have been one of at least two kinds of projects. It could have been an exhaustive study with potential for conclusive results or it could have been a project to arouse interest, raise questions, or suggest solutions to problems. The Program began in 1951 as the second typeof project—it was an attempt to meet a specific problem. Before it got underway, however, the Program underwent a transformation to convert it into a project of the first type—a research project.

An obvious question about the Program was, "What was the Program trying to do?" Intially, the answer was simple—the Program was to provide two years of liberal education for young men before they were drafted into the armed services. As the Program evolved, the initial answer became inappropriate and subsequent answers became difficult to formulate. It is at least fair to say that the Program as it evolved was to provide young men with the opportunity to accelerate the development of their careers through early admission to college.

As a large scale innovation, the Program lacked a well-conceived underlying research plan. Consequently, many flaws were evident. The

data, the data-gathering procedures, and the identification of critical variables were inconsistent. The Program lacked sampling procedures which would have insured wider applicability of its outcomes. The collection of purely categorical or nominal data prevented the development of schemes useful in identifying the characteristics of young men who were relatively successful in the Program. The result was the preparation of four reports of the Program (41, 42, 57, 58), and now a fifth (the follow-up study), each with difficulties because of the nature of the available data.

The Early Admission Program lacked a sound public relations program not so much for the public at-large as for the professional public of school and college educators. The Program seemed to have been undertaken with disdain for the concerns of critics who were professional educators. Pearson (31, preface) had felt that the Fund and the Program had misjudged the mood of the high schools. What seemed more likely was that the Fund and the Program had failed to involve the high school educators in the planning stages of the Program, and that the high school educators had interpreted the slight as a characteristic insensitivity of the college to the personal problems of young students. A public relations program would have resulted in assurances to the emotional adjustments of the young students.

In addition to providing guidelines for the Program, a public relations program would have provided the necessary restraints that seemed totally absent in the report of the Fund in 1957. For example, the Fund had concluded:

There is some evidence that in many cases early admission to college freed Scholars from the boredom and frustration of an unchallenging high school environment, gave them new intellectual momentum, and enhanced their social and emotional maturation (58, p. 10).

The apparent evidence were comments of the participants in the Program similar to:

There is some danger that a young student's talents will be harmed by being thrust among older students who do not accept him. But the greater danger is that he will be allowed to stagnate in secondary school and will arrive in college lacking imagination and ambition, these having been "educated" out of him. The harm to him and to society is great (58, p. 90).

Such comments were unmistakable in their intent to place the omus of certain educational ills on the high schools. The comments did not add substance to the report and were not pertinent to the issue of academic acceleration. The comments, however, were pertinent to the context of the times in which many articles and books severely critical of contemporary American education appeared.

If the hidden rationale of the Early Admission Program had been to provoke the high schools into actions for improvement, a public relations program would have provided more acceptable and workable methods. The critics of the Program could not have been silenced, but a public relations program might have insured impartial treatment of the findings of the Program and subsequent impartial examination of the findings by high school educators.

The shortcomings of the research design of the Program had severe effects on the heuristic properties of the Program. Since the Program was incompletely transformed into a research project, some steps should have been taken to obtain as much data as was possible for future review. There had not been sufficient time in 1951 to prepare the rationales for the data to be gathered in the Program; therefore, the directors of the Program should have resorted to extensive straight-forward procedures using standardized tests and inventories to extablish data banks. The inconvenience of such procedures and the criticism of collecting data without purpose could have been tolerated in favor of the unanticipated

ERIC

values of the Program.

Although the Early Admission Program contained many flaws, it, nevertheless, provided more than more indications about academic acceleration. The long-range outcomes are compelling reasons for reexamining the positions of high schools and colleges on helping students to accelerate their programs of formal education. It is unlikely, however, that the follow-up study will modify the opinions of sufficiently large large numbers of educators to permit such a review. The basic shortcomings of the Program, after all, are limitations of the follow-up study as much as they were of the Program itself.

On another scale, it is unlikely that the follow-up study will affect the policies of private foundations like the Ford Foundation and cause them to look more favorably upon improving the unanticipated applications of large scale innovations by expending greater effort toward standardized data banks. If such foundations continue to support large scale innovations anyway, refocused attention from being educational incidents to being significant research studies.

Further Comments and Speculations

One of the relationships which appeared following the enalysis of the data of the Early Admission Experiment was the similarity in the careers of the experimental students and their fathers. The data in Chapter 6 show that many of the experimental students chose academic careers. The data further show that many of the fathers of these experimental students were employed in the academic professions. Unfortunately, the data reduction techniques used in handling occupational information merged the occupations of the students and of their parents into broad categories. In the process, the information about a specific student and his father was lost. As a result, the relationship between the careers of individual students and their fathers could

ERIC

Full text Provided by ERIC

not be tested in the follow-up study.

The data of the follow-up study raise a doubt about the comparative academic performance between the experimental and the control groups. On the one hand, tests of the data show no significant differences between the groups in academic performance. However, other data show that large numbers of the control group spent significantly more hours away from their studies by working at part-time jobs. All of the experimental students had received financial aid while only a small, but undetermined, number of control students had received financial aid. The doubt raised concerns the probable academic performance of the control group if they had received financial aid similar to that received by the experimental group.

The follow-up study revealed a significant difference in religion between the experimental and the control groups. The experimental group was predominately Jewish; the control group predominately Protestant. These ethnic and cultural characteristics may influence academic performances in college and graduate school. In the follow-up study, no further effort was made to examine this difference.

An oversight in the data collection procedures made it impossible to answer the question, "How did the groups fare in the development of careers in science?" The question must now be set aside for further study.

The findings of the follow-up study provide a perspective with which to answer some of the questions posed by educators in 1950 when the Early Admission Experiment began. At that time, the reactions of oducators showed an unwillingness to consider any change in the school-to-college, relationship. The reactions seemed inappropriate because of the small segment of the total high school population involved in the experiment—400 experimental students from more than two million enrolled in the tent's grade throughout the country. The follow-up study showed that the

the mental health, social development, and academic progress of the few carefully chosen experimental students did not differ from those of the older control group.

When the colleges undertook the Program, they announced their intention to preserve the continuity of intellectual and leadership potential in the colleges during a period of national emergency.

Each of the colleges participating in the Program adopted early admission procedures in the post-Program period. It seems doubtful, however, that they had used the Program as a model for modifying their own admissions procedures. Early admission, from the tenth or eleventh grade of high school to college, has been used very rarely, if at all, since 1957.

Appendix

- A. Evaluation Study of Selected College Students--Copies of three questionnaires used in the Early Admission Program, 1953-58.
- B. Letter by Joseph B. Chaplin, President of the NASSP, and Paul E. Elicker, Executive Secretary of the NASSP (Sch. Fey., 1951, 59, 316-320).
- C. The Farly Admission Follow up Instruments.
- P. Summary of Returns in the Early Admission Follow-up Study.
- E. Attrition Rate of Control and Experimental Students, 1951-55.
- F. Career Profesences of the Early Admittees, 1951 (57, p. 192)
- G. Supplementary Tables of Summary of Responses to the Follow-up Questionnaire



Appendix A

Evaluation Study of Selected College Students--Copies of three questionnaires used in the Early Admission Program, 1953-1958.

EVALUATION STUDY OF SELECTED COLLEGE STUDENTS

College Student Questionnire

INTRODUCTION: Your college along with eleven others and the Ford Foundation's Fund for the Advancement of Education is engaged in a nationwide program of evaluation involving the educational progress of selected college students. In order to contribute its share to the study, your college is asking you to complete a questionmaire containing primarily items of a biographical nature. Easy of the items are already in the college files, but others of importance are not. This questionmaire will be forwarded to Educational Testing Service, is of a personal nature but you can be assured that it will be kept confidential and at no time used in such a way as to identify any one individual. You are asked to answer each question as accurately and homestly as you can. In answering the questions, you may use of other pan or pencil. but be sure to clearly indicate your response to each question. Observe the following directions

Discolous: Thenever a mestion is followed by a number of answers, ensirely the results of the answer that most nearly fits your case or expresses your opinion. When a question is followed by a black in which something is to be written, write in your enswer.

	n. uzvis	•		
(11)	lease print)	Last name	First naga	Middle initial
You	or present home address	5		.w.:016 10/6177
			and Street	
	·	City	Postal Zone	State
1.	What college are yo	u now attending?		
2.		colloge? Fall of 195_	Affirmation of the state of the	mendanta de delegas pedante tadadas en er g
3.		L- Malo 2- Fomalo		
4.		rade you completed in hi	ch school on amount	
	l- less time 10	2- 10; 3- 10; 4-	11; 5- 11; 6-	tory school?
5.	What was your ago at 6 months)	tho time you envered co	ollogo? (14.6 means	14 years,
	0- un c 14.6;	1- 14.6-14.11;	2- 15-15.5;	
	3- 15/4-15.11;	4- 16-16.5;	5- 16.6-16.11	•
.•	.6- 17-17.5;	7- 17.6-17.11;	8. 18-18.5;	
	9- 18.6 and over	•		

139

150

6-7	Encircle the	number	of	your	home	state.	Thoy	are	listed	vertically	in
	alphabetical	order.	with	ı D.C.	and	"Foreign	n" at	the	end.		

ı.	Ala.	11.	111.	Ź1.	Minn.	31.	11. C.	41.	Tex.
	Ariz.	12.	Ind.	22.	Miss.	32.	N. D.	42.	Utah
3.	Ark,	13.	Iowa	23.		33.	Ohio	43.	Vt.
4.	Cal.	1.4.	Kan.	24.	Yont.	34.	Okla.	44.	Va.
5.	Colo.	15.	Ky.	25.	Kob.	35.	Orc.	45.	Wash.
6.	Conn.	16.	La.	26.	Mev.	36.	Pa.	46.	W. Va.
7.	Del.	17.	Mc.	27.	N. H.	37.	R. J.	47.	Wisc.
g.	Fla.	18.	Kd.	28.	N. J.	38.	S. C.	48.	W.o.
Q.	Ga.	19.	Mass.	29.	N. M.	39.	S. D.	49.	D. C.
10	Tdaho	20.	Mich	30	N' Y		Tonn	50	Foreign

8. Size of home community:

- 1- large city, population over 100,00;
- 3- medium size city, not a suburb, 30,000-100,000;
- 5- town, 2,500-10,000
- 7- Farm or country.

- 2- suburb of large city;
- 4- small city, not a suburb, 10,000-30,000
- 6- small town, under 2,500

In items 9 and 10, describe the type of work done. Do not give the name of the company or organization for which either parent works.

Q.	Father's occupation:	
7.	radior o occupation	والمراقب والبيان بالمستخدمة والمستورة والمستور

- 10. Mother's occupation:
- 11. Is either parent deceased? 1- father; 2- mother; 3- both; 4- noitie...
- 12. If both are living, are they: 1- living together; 2- separated; 3- diverse
- 13. Last year's income of father plus that of mother (or guardians) before two as
 - 0- Unknown;
- 1- Under \$2,000;
- 2- \$2,000-\$2,999;
- 3- 23,000-23,99

- 4- \$4,000-74,999;
- 5- 35,000-35,999;
- 6- \$6,000-\$5,999;
- 7- 1 \$2,000-17,99

- 8- \$8,000-\$8,979; 9- \$9,000 and over.
- 14. How much have you worked for pay, apart from college scholarships or lowes, during the present academic year (not counting the summer vacation)?
 - 0- lione;
 - 1- An average of less than two hours a week;
 - 2. An average of two to five hours a week;
 - 3- An average of five to ten hours a week;
 - 4- Answerage of ten to twenty hours a week;
 - 5- An average of more than twenty hours a week.

What is the highest level of schooling completed by;

were to an always that they be

15. Father?

- 1 O- 11" known
 - 1- attended grade school but not high school
 - 2- attended high school but did not graduate
 - 3- graduated from high school but did not attend college
 - 4- attended college but did not graduate
 - 5- graduated from college but did not attend graduate school
 - 6- attended graduate senool but took no advanced degree
 - 7- has Master's degree
 - 8- has law, medical, or dental degree
 - has an earned nor-medical Doctor's degree (Ph.D., S.D., etc.)

16. Mother?

- O- unknown
- 1- attended grade school but not high school
- 2- attended high school b t did not graduate
- 3- graduated from high school but did not attend college
- 4- attended college but aid not graduate
- 5- graduate: from college but did not attend graduate school
- 5- attended graduate whool but took no advanced degree.
- 7- has Master's de tres
- 8- has law, medical, or dental degree
- 9- has an earned non-metical Doctor's degree (Ph.D., S.D., etc.)
- 17. The last high school or preparatory school you attended was:
 - 1- a public city high school;
 - 3- a public high school in a town of less than 10,000 nopulation;
 - 5- a private preparatory school, not controlled by a church;
 - 7- a military academy, privately controlled;
- 2- a public high school in a suburb of a city;
- 4- a consolidated rural public high school:

152

- a church-controlled high school or preparatory school;
- 8- a military academy, churchcontrolled.
- The size of the senior class in the last year you attended was approximately: 4- 200-499; 5- 500 or over; 6- unknown 1- under 50; 2- 50-99; 3- 100-199;

How many years of each of the following subjects did you take in high school or preparatory school grom the time you entered grade 9 until you left school! (For fractions of years encircle the next higher whole number. For example, if you has 32 year: of foreign language, encircle 4)

19.	English	0	1	2	3	4	5 or more
20.	Social Studies:	0	1	2	. 3	4	5 or more
21.	Katural Science:	0	1	2	3	4	5 or more

- 5 or more 22. Mathematics:
 - 5 or more <u>regelen har.</u>

-4-

	ins																		
4. ₁	Prepi	ring	gisea	nments	37	1	2	3.	4	5	6	7	8	9	or	DX	ore		
5.	Recrebut (ation exclud	? (i ing e	ncludi ating	ing)	ext l	ra-0 2	urri 3	cule 4	r ac	tiv:	1ties 7	8 8	cia 9	l a	RÍ:	fair ore	s, e	tc.,
26.	Slee	p?	••••	• • • • •	• • • •	• • • •	• • • •	••••	4	5	6	7	8	9	or	m	ore		
List	the c	extra-	curri	cular	act	i i v i	tie	in	whic	h y	ou h	ave	part	lcip	at	ed	thi	s ye	arı
Athle	tic												<u>.</u>						
	•																		
None-	ath1	etic													. •				
WO110-	-a viii										. er	·							
etc.) :	off1c	s the	at you	h	ve !	neld		s ye				, ma	mge	ria	1,	, ed	itor	ial,
etc.) :	you	, et en	alos v												_			
etc.	Have acad	you lemic No; Some, About Hore	had dyear?	liss tage for	ri th	me lerb	mber erai	rs of	the or me cy cl	obi	rs of	f my	ox du			_			
etc.	Have acad	you lemic No; Some, About Hore	had dyear?	ates a	ri th	me lerb	mber erai	rs of	the or me cy cl	obi	rs of	f my	ox du			_			·
27.	Have acad 0-1-2-3-	you lemic No; Some, About More you. No, I have I am I alegate.	but averthan bec ar it sold to state the sold to	less tage for a real tage for a less tage for	rich Char or re- ie i	i average of the state of the s	mber erai ers memi sh ; id in cult; err	rs of fe for of mosey our n mosey in e the	the or me of me assist co keep an or green	opposite coing	rs of lass ent es 'up' ours on	f my	clas	es;	ng 1	the	e pr	esen	t
etc.	Have acad 0-1-2-3-Have 1-2-3-4-5-	you lemic No; Some, About More you I am I ale of a you parat	but aver than becost is beauton in	less fage for a real and the f	than or received the second	i me i av ient for fini ini ped hoo	mber erai ers memb sh ; ind in cult; err ero	rs of fe fo of m bers your n mos y in e that assig your pre	the or me y cl of mass:	opposes assigned assi	rs of lass ent es ours ours on wor	f my s on with time	clas time	es;	ng 1	the	e pr	esen	t

	Alat is your present theck here if undecid	first choice of a futuded ()	re occupation?
	walue of your college	ng comes nearest to sum experience as a whole	ding yp your honest opinion of the
	7- It was of some va3- About helf was wo4- More than helf wa	was of great value to	•
•	of the courses you have lumble?	ave taken this year, ho	weary were both enjoyable and
	(, None;	i- Less than ball;	2- About half;
	's. ''ore than half;	4- Almost all;	5- All.
			•
ı	of all the teachers y juterest in students	ou have had this year, as individuals?	how many took a sympath tie
1	of all the teachers y judgment in students O None;	you have had this year, as individuals? 1- Less than half;	

EVALUATION STUDY OF SELECTED COLLEGE STUDENTS

College Questionnaire

Middle initial

DIRECTIONS: Encircle the number of the response to each item that is most nearly correct for this student. Fill in blanks with scores, etc., as directed. Than staple this form to the back of the student questionnaire filled our by this student. The items bolow begin with number 35 because itens 1-34 will be taken from the student questionnaire. If the student is in his second college year, give the information for that year only, except where otherwise indicated.

Student's name

(Plea	ase print)	Last name	First name	Middle initial
Perm	anent address		Number and Street	
		City	Postal zone	State
35.	College: X Y O	123456789	36-37-38. Student's	code number:
39.	Status in study	: 1- Fund Schola	r 2- Comparison 3- (Nassmate
40.	Is this student 2- Partial tui stipend	now a scholarship tion only 3- Po	holder, Fund or otherwise all tuition only 4- Full	e? l- No L tuitien plus a
41.	Height at entr.	nce: 1- Under 5'	2- 510"-512" 3- 8" 5- 519"-5111" 6-	5137-5157 61 and over
42.	Weight at entra	ince: 1- l'nder 10 4- 140-159 6- 200 and	00 lbs. 2-100-119 3- 5- 160-179 over	120-139 6- 170-199
•	Health ratings college medical	for current year ! services	by Student Health Service	or other
43.	Physical: 1-	Very poor 2-	Boor 3- Good 4- Ex	cellent
44.	Mental: 1-	Very poor 2-	Poor 3- Good 4- Ex	cellent
45-	46-47. CEE# Son	olastic Antitude:	Vertal48-49-50.	Mathematical
		;	raw scores. Which form wa	
51-	52. Quantitativ	e 53-54-55	i. Linguistic56-	57-58. Total
			ed, see Manual for instruc	- Sector

	In what tenth o	_	iss did th	nis stud	ent sta	nd in g	rade poi	Int aver		9
	0-9	<u>rest</u> 10-1	.9 20-29	30-39	40-49	50-59	69-69	70-79 8	0-68 &	
59.	Last year in 'O high school	1	2	··· 3	4	5	6	7	8 ·	9
60.	First year in College	. 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
61.	Third year in College	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8 .	9
	. Cooperative Gene	eral Achie	evement To	es ts ta k		Vandh a	nd Year		_	
			•							
	Scaled Scores:	0-9 10	-19 20-29	9 30-39	40-49	50-59	60-60	70-79	63-03	90-9
62.	Social Science	0, 1	. 2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
63.	Natural Science	0 :	. 2	3	4	5	. 6	7	8	9
64.	Mathematics	0	1, 2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
65.	Literature	0 :	1 2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
	Extent of partic advisor:	ipation:	in extra-	curricul	ar acti	vities	as rate	d by dea	n or	
66.	Athletic: 0- No. 3- No.		average	1- Loss 4- Exte		verage	2- Ave	rage		
67.		0- None 3- More t	han avera				nge 2-	Average		
68.	Offices held: (O- None 3- One of import	major 4	- One of import	tance	e of 5.	minor - A comb	han one importa- ination and min	of	:
69.	Fraternity, sor	ority, or	social c	lub memi	bership	1	•			
	1- Member 2. (If either 3 or	- Non-mem		None a		e 4-	Not eli	gible		
70.	Extent of dati	3- H	one ore than verage	1- Les: 4- exce		Averaço	2- Ave	rage		
n.	Student's over- other members o	all retin f the cla	g of adju	stment Kanual	to colle	ege life truction	e as com	parēd w	ith	

がある。これでは、1980年のでは、1980年の1980

3- Good - 4- Excellent

2- Moderately good

1- Poor

72. Student's popularity rating as compared with other members of the class: (See Manual of Instructions):

0- Disliked 1- Unnoticed 2- Accepted 3- Well liked 4- A leader

73. Continuance in college: This student 1- Will continue with scholarshin 2- Will continue withour scholarship 3- Has dropped out, or will soon drop out.

(If response 3 applies, add the month and year of withdrawal____

- 74. If a scholarship was not renewed, it was:
 - 1- because the student failed primarily in academic grades
 - 2- because the student failed primarily in some other way to adjust to college life
 - 3- in spite of adequate adjustment to college life
- 75. If the student dropped out it was:

 - 1- because the student failed <u>primarily</u> in academic grades
 2- because the student failed <u>primarily</u> in some other way to adjust to college life
 - 3- in spite of adequate adjustment to college life
- 76. Consensus of instructors! reports on keeping abreast of assignments as collated by dean or advisor: This student
 - 1- is usually behind in most courses
 - 2- has difficulty keeping up with assignments
 - 3- is seldom behind in more than one course
 - 4- almost always completes assignments on time
- 77. (For second year students only) If there were serious gaps or omissions in the high school preparation of this student, such as never having had a course in a natural science, in which of the following fields do such gaps still remain, in the judgment of the dean or advisor?
 - 1- English Composition 2- English Literature 3- Social Science
 - 6- Foreign Language 4- Natural 5- Mathematics

	•	·. :		. •	٠	•		: 2,	E	ntor	od co	ollogo	fall	l or 195
		· .	•	•	•	•	•	3.	, S ¹	ta Lu	o in	study	: 1 2	Fund Schol Comparison
			•	COLLEGE	QUEST:	IONNA	TRE	ON S	SENI	ors				
		• • •	Fwalus	tion St	udy of	Fo2	oot od	ו מי	Naga	, C4:	nda:	Fa		· .:
	•		DVALUR	· CTON D	ady or	067			LICE		uaim	v3		
netr	FCTIONS: rly corro ht-hand o	ect for	this 's	tudont.	. Be si									
Stu	dent's i	name												
(Yr	int or t	ypa)	ī	ast nam	ne			Fi	rst	namo	!		iddl	e initial
Per	nament e	dress			•	t						·		
		-				Numbe	r and	st	rcet					
	•	_	Cit	,y			Pos	al	Zone		,	Sto	to	
4.	College	: X	Y Y	0 .	1 2	3		5	6	7		9		
٠.	COLLEGE	• •	•		A. 45		4		Ū	•	Ü	7		
5.	Did this (If 5 o	s stude r 6 app	nt hold lien, d	l a scho lo not o	olarshi oncircl	p, Fu o l.)	rad or	r oti	hem:	ise,	in	the so	nior	year?
<i>(</i> .	2 part 3 full 4 full 5 has 6 has	tuitio tuitio already entered	n only n plus r gradus l milita	a stipe ited (m	onth an vice			-				Tiller «Byllinnism» (****)	,)
•	If a pr	calonel	r. nero	seuora:	ranip w	as 110	t re	nevic	·1, 1	.U Vič	us to	cause		
	1 the 2 the 3 the 4 sone	student financi	, faile lal aid	d prima Nas n	rily in o longe	n serie In nee	e oth eled	ei. <i>r</i> :	ay t				olla _č	j÷ life)
7.	Complet												?	# * * *** ***
	1 yes		2 no	o	3 ha	s alr	eady	gra	dur.t	.cd	•			
ŀ,	Dropou	ts from	a colle	ge: If	Wits s	tuder	it di	စဉ္စာစ	ત જ	16,	it va	s bec	suae	he or she
		ed prin red mil	rarily rarily Litary Litary	in some cervice	other	redes way t	ba oc	just	. to	col.	loge	lifo		
	5 desi	red to	transfe	er to a	nother	colle	926							
	b was	unable	to con	tinue f	or fine	incial	l rea	enoe	1					
•	7 wes 8 some	unable	to con	time t	ccause	of 13	ll ha	։ 1 եհ	1))
				••	•	•	1 4							
							1 4	. 4			158	3		

1. Student's code no.

1.	s this student already entered graduate or professional school?	•
	yon 2 no	
Mr.	not, does this tudent plan to enter a graduate or professional school f 3 or 4 applies, do not encircle 1.)	L:
The second secon	<pre>nedicine engineering business Natural sciences (including mathematics) social sciences humanities education other (please specify:)</pre>	
E,	at is the student's present first choice of a future occupation:	
	secondary or elementary teaching college teaching law medicine engineering business science agriculture other (please specify:)	•
.	and in graduating class:out of students.	
• • 4	ercontile rank in graduating class: percentile.	

how many full-year courses in each of the following areas did this student take in college? (For fractions of years, entirels the next high whole number. For ecample, if he took 32 years of foreign languages, entirels 4.) Disregard courses that connot be classified under these headings. 15. English..... Social sciences..... Biological sciences............ mathematics..... 20. Foreign languages..... 21. Art and Kusic........... 22. Philosophy and religion...... Extent of participation in extra-curricular activities during senior resr: l less than overege 2 average 3 more than 3 23. Athletic: O none 24. Kon-athletic: O none I less than average 2 average 3 more than ave 25. Offices hold O r.Cire one of winor importance 2 more than one of minor importance 3 or of major importance. I more than one of major importance 5 a combination of major and minor 25. Fraternity, sorority, or social club membership: (if 3 or 4 symiles, do not encircle ?.) יים לווים מו 2 none available 4 Rot alimble 27. Extent of dating: O none leas than everage

sverace

exteening married

more than average

- Student's over-ull rating of adjustment to college life as compared with other members of the senior class (see Manual of Instructions):
 - O very poor 1 poor 2 moderately good 3 good 4 excellent
- If the answer to quest: in 28 was "very poor" or "poor, " do you think the student's over-all adjustment to college life might have been tetter if he or she had entered college at the "normal" age or after completing high school?
 - l yes 2 no 3 doubtful 4 denit know
- Student's popularity sating as compared with other members of the senior class (see Far al of Instructions):
 - O disliked 1 unnoticed 2 ac epted 3 well liked 4 a leader
- (To be answered for Scholars only.) That is present faculty and administrative opinion as to whether or not it was wise to admit this student to college before completing high school or before age 162? If opinion is that it was unwise, cleane cite ressors.
 - 1 It was wise.
 - 2 Opinion is divided.
 - 3 It was unwise. (Prusor:



Appendix B

Letter by Joseph B. Chaplin, President of the the NASSP, and Paul F. Elicker, Executive Secretary of the NASSP (Sch. Rev., 1951, 59, 316-320).

是是自己的人,也是是自己的人,也是是一个人,也是是一个人,也是是一个人,也是一个人,也是一个人,也是一个人,也是一个人,也是一个人,也是一个人,也是一个人,也是

LETTER BY JOSEPH B. CHAPLIN, PRESIDENT OF THE NASSP AND PAUL E. ELICKER, EXECUTIVE SECRETARY, NASSP (As extensively quoted by Anderson, H. A., "Ford Millions for Education," Sch. R., 59: 316-320, 1951)

- Plan (EAP) to admit high school beys before graduation from high school is regarded as educationally unsound and damaging to the best interest of boys individually and to high schools generally. Furthermore, it is contrary to the opinions of leading educators from colleges and secondary schools recently stated at a Conference on Acceleration held by the American Council on Education on March 19-20, 1951, in Washington, D. C. This curtailment of secondary education under the guise of scholarship aid is more devastating to youth and the secondary school program than acceleration which was regarded, also by leading educators, at the above conference, as unwise, unnecessary and unsound.
- ". . .This plan is in direct opposition to Recommendation 3 of the "Nine Point Program" made by the Committee on the Relation of Secondary Education to National Security of the National Association of Secondary School Principals:
 - '8. Early Admission to College. Recommended that secondary schools refrain from curtailing their quacational programs to the extent that youth would, except in very unusual cases, enter college before their graduation from secondary school."
- ". . . The acceptance by colleges of high school students before graduation was proposed by a few colleges at the begin-

ning of World War II when they anticipated a reduction in enrollment of male students. The group soon abandoned the idea when the Armed Forces decided to send men from the Armed Forces to the colleges for further military and related training. The plan was then regarded as educationally unsound.

- ". . . Such a plan at any time is unsound and inadvisable mainly because of the immaturity of school youth to work on a collegiate level at such a youthful age. These youth are removed prematurely from the guiding direction of parents and home and from the teachers and counsellors of the secondary school trained and experienced to work with 15- and 16-year old youth.
- ". . . Educators regard the Junior and Senior years in the secondary school the most valuable and formative years for school youth. An experience even in warther away from home in college, especially in our large universities, along older and more mature men and women is an unsatisfactory relations for an educational and developmental program for our years, boys and girls.
- ". . . Recommended action for Secondary-School Administrations:
 - 1. That we oppose the acceptance of any plan which will result in the curtailment of secondary education for youth even though it may be on a limited scale.

 That we advise with students, teachers, coverablows and parents of our schools and school communities accordingly.

- 2. That we recommend for college only youth who have completed the requirements for graduation in keeping with the policies of our regional accrediting agencies. On the basis of this policy that we recommend for college only youth who have completed the 12th grade.
- 3. That we award secondary-school diplomas or equivalency certificates only to students who meet the required and established standards for graduation from the secondary schools.
- 4: That we use every means at our command to present to all educational, community and other meetings the implications of the unsound practices of curtailing secondary education and the subsequent admission of students to college before graduation. That we point out as effectively and as forcibly as possible those dangers, even with the alluring inducement of funds provided by the Ford Foundation. We must make citizens generally aware of the sinister implications of such a program especially if a scholar-ship award is offered to their sons.
- the Director of Admissions of one or more of the few universities, stating your position on general policy of curtailment of secondary education. Address the institution in this "experiment" with which you have closest relations..."

154

Appendix C

The Early Admission Follow-up Instruments.



EARLY ADMISSIONS EXPERIMENT FOLLOW-UP*

İTY	STATE .
Read the items carefully and circle th	to number of the response which you feel is
most appropriate for you. Your to	sponses will be kept in strict confidence.
	EGE INFORMATION you at the time you entered college.
Accept out page into college	
Age at entrance into college 1. M years old	4. 17 years old
2. 15 years old	5. 18 years old
3. 16 years old	6. Over 19 years old
Years of schooling completed	•
1. Ninth grade	3. Eleventh grade
2. Tenth grade	4. Twelfth grade
Size of home community	
1. Less than 25,000	4. 100,009-500,000
2. 25,000— 50,000 3. 50,000—100,000	5. 500,000 on up
Type of secondary school attended	
1. rural	2. անա
Size of senior class at secondary school	
1. Los than 100	4. More than 500 books, than 1,000
2. More than 100 but less them 200	5. More than 1,00 (1) is than 2,000
3. More than 200 bin less than 500	6. More than 2,000 (
Family income	
1. Less than \$ 4,0% 2. \$ 4,0% \$ 5,999	4. \$ 8,000 = \$ 9,000 5. \$10,000 = \$11,000
3. \$ 6,000 \$ 7,500	6. \$12,000 - \$11,000 6. \$12,000 - up
II. GENERAJ, F.	AMBY PACKGROUND
Father's birthplace	
1. In the United States	4. In Mexico or Sec 3. A nerica
2. In Canada 3. In the British 1-ks	5. In Puiope 6. In Russia
Father's formal education	
1. Some grade school 2. Finished grade school	6. Finished buriness of a chaical school of 7. Finished college
3. Some high school or trade school	8. Attended gradiente Proof or
4. Finished high reheal or trade school 5. Some college, business or technical school	professional schept at er college Do not know
	The state of the s
Your father's religious affiliation 1. None	1. Jewish
2. Protestant	5. Other
3. Catholic	

*This project is supported by the Comparation Research Program of the Cife Department of Bealth, Education, and Welface.

	•
Mother's birthplace 1. In the United States 2. In Canada 3. In the British Isles	 In Mexico or South America In Europe In Russia
. Mother's formal education	6. Some college or finished junior college
 Some grade school Finished grade school Some high school Finished high school Some technical or business training after high school 	 7. Finished college 8. Attended graduate school or professional school after college 9. Do not know
 6. Did your mother have a paying job when you entered c 1. She worked full time 2. She worked part time 	ollege? 3. She did not have a paying job 4. She was not living
 7. Your mother's religious affiliation 1. None 2. Protestant 3. Catholic 	4. Jewish 5. Other
III. GENERAL ACTIVIT	TY BACKGROUND
Were you an officer in any college undergraduate acad No	
2. Are you, or have you ever been, a class officer or an elec-	eted student body officer in any coll 30? 2. Yes
 Were you on any high school or city athletic teams? No 	2. Yes
 4. Did you play in your college or high school hand or 1. No 2. Both high school and college 	4. College only
5. Have you ever locally any publicly performed plays 1. No 2. Both high school and college	4. Colling only
6. Of the people at our year own age with v hom you sy many of them are not in college or have finished college. 1. None 2. Only a fev	ant in strologing is a time while a [1] 's 's 's had layer' 3. Most of them 4. All of them
IV. ACADRAIC	MACKEROUSE
1. Name of Grada of School attended for Master of Arts, Bachelor of 1 w, etc.	Treat to Non-fitting
Was the above graduate school you entered your 1. First choice 2. Second choice 3. Co	nher choise
2. Name of Graduate School attended for Doctorete (professional degree, not repdemic degree)	Notes C. L., and the
1. Prise them	Ther choice
3. Name of Graduate School attended for Doctorate (academic degree)	C Iron to Name of Degree
Was the above graduate school you entered your 1. First choice 2. Second choice 3.	$oldsymbol{y} \in oldsymbol{\gamma}$

できる。 これのできるとのできるというできるというできる。 これできるというできるとは、 これできるというできるとのできるというできる。 これできる
THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY O

4. Number of times you changed undergraduate a	nation area of study.
Number of times you changed indergrammer O. None	4. 6
1. 1	3. 3 or more
5. Number of times you changed graduate major	area of study.
0. None	3. 3 or more 4Did not attend graduate school
1. 1	4. The life access 8. manages
2. 2	Maria and Maria and
6. Have you fulfilled, or are you now fulfilling 1. Yes	your military obligations: 2. No
7. Number of different positions held since gradu	nation with highest degree.
0. None	3. 3 4. 4 or more
1. 1 2. 2	3. 1 O
•	e e it it in the
3. Did the changes in Item 7 mean a change o	2. No
1. Yes	
V. PRESENT	PERSONAL INFORMATION
1. Marital status	4. Divoce d
1. Single	5. Remarked
2. Maried 3. Widowed	
2. Number of children	5. 3 child: u
 I am not married I am narried and have no children 	6. 4 children
3. 1 child	7. 5 children 8. 6 or more children
4. 2 children	6. Our make trikines
3. Educational 1 eleground of wife. Circle ap 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	ppropriate years of schooling. 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 meas
4. Highest degree carned by wife	
1. None	3. Master's degree
2. Bachelor's degree	4. Doctor's degree
5. Residence	
1. Single hoose	4. Apartie at in large building of 1 c
2. Duolex section	aparitories
3. Aparta ent in small building of les	a than 19
	`•
6. Size of community in which you now live	4, 100,0% 5/10,000
1. Less than 25,000 2. 25,000 50,000	5. 500,000 on Up
3. 50,000 100,000	
7. Membership in number of service organi	zarion (Kiwanis, Lions, etc.)
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 more	
8. Have you been an officer in such organi 1. No	zations? 2. Yes
9. Number of elective positions you have h	eld in community
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 more	c
10. Your religious affiliation 1. None	4. Jewish
2. Protestant	5. O. A. C. G.
3. Catholic	3.5.8

3.5.3

ERIC

MI PRESENT ECONOMIC INFORMATION

VI. PRESENT ECONOMIC	, an entre more
1. Present primary occupational status 1. Professional, self-employed 2. Professional, industrial 3. Professional, academic (colleges and schools) 4. Professional, government service (non-academic)	5. Non-professional, self-employed 6. Non-professional, industrial 7. Non-professional, private group 8. Non-professional, government service
 Present position can be described as 1. Upper level of organization 2. Junior level of organization 	3. Lower level of organization
 Length of service in present position Less than 1 year More than 1 year but less than 3 	3. More than 3 years but less than 54. More than 5 years
4. Current salary range 1. 1.css than \$ 4,000 2. \$ 4,000 \$ 5,999 3. \$ 6,000 \$ 7,999	4. \$ 8,000
5. Range of value of personal and real property acquired (latest degree 0. None 1. \$ 5,000 or less 2. \$10,000 \$10,090 3. \$20,000 \$20,000	(but not through inheritance) since graduation win 4. \$50,000 - \$39,999 5. \$10,000 - \$19,999 6. \$50,000 and on up
 6. Range of value of property inherited. 1. \$ 5,000 or less 2. \$10,000 - \$19,999 3. \$20,000 - \$29,999 	4. \$30,000 + \$39,999 5. \$40,000 + \$49,999 6. \$50,000 and on up
 Range of value of other property owned None \$ 5,000 or less \$10,000 \$10,999 \$20,000 \$29,999 	4. \$30,600 - \$30,999 5. \$10,000 - \$19,999 6. \$50,600 cm² on up
VII. OTHER A	ChiVittiis
1. Number of books published to date 0. None 1. 1 2. 2 3. 3	4. 4 5. 5 6. More than 5
 Number of articles you contributed to journals None 1 2 2 3 5 	4. 4 5. 5 6. More than 5
 3. Number of profedental organizations to which you be 1. 1 2. 2 3. 3 	5. 5 6. More than 5
4. Number of research projects of all types in which you 0. None 1. 1 2. 2 3. 3 4. 4	have directly participated 5. 5 6. 6 7. 7 8. 8 9. More than 8
5. Number of subscriptions to professional journals 0. None 1. 1 2. 2 3. 5 4. 4	5. 5 6. 6 7. 7 8. 8 9. More il: " [] []

Appendix C (Continued) ADDITIONS AND REVISIONS TO EARLY ADMISSION EXPERIMENT FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Question Number	ADDITIONS	REVISIONS
Part II Ques. 1 3 4 7	7. Other 6. Unknown 7. Other 6. Unknown	•
Part III Ques. 6	5. Do not know; have lost contact	,
Part IV Ques8	3. Not applicable	
Part V Ques. 1	6. Separated	0. Not applicable
		1. 1-12 years 2 13-14 years 3. 15-16 years 4. 17-18 years 5. 19-20 years 6. More
5	0. Not applicable 5. Registered Nurse 6. Junior College Certificate 5. Doraltory	
Part VI. Ques. 1 2 5 6 7	9. Student 4. None of the above 7. \$5,000 - \$9,999 7. \$5,000 - \$9,999 7. \$5,000 - \$9,999	

Appendix C (Continued) LETTER #1

In 1951, you participated in the Early Admission Experiment sponsored by the Ford Foundation. Now we are making a study of those who participated in the Experiment to see what effects it has had.

The project is being conducted at the University of Hawaii and is supported by a grant from the U. S. Office of Education. The project has the cooperation of Harvard University, Educational Testing Service (Princeton, New Jersey), and the Ford Foundation. It is concerned with the long-range effects of academic acceleration between high school and college.

Your reply will be kept in strict confidence.

The enclosed questionnaire will take a few minutes of your time to complete, but the information you supply may help us to evaluate more accurately than has been possible in the past one procedure used in American education.

Please do it now! A self-addressed stamped envelope is enclosed for your convenience.

Your cooperation is appreciated.

Sincerely,

James W. Miller Assistant Professor of Education Principal Investigator

Appendix C (Continued) LETTER #2

We are still hoping to hear from you. Most of the students we have asked to cooperate have done so, but for more useful results we need a complete response. We need your help.

You will remember that we want to find out the long-range effects of academic acceleration from high school to college. The findings from the project might be useful to American educators in plotting the direction of American education. Your answers will be used only for research. Your reply will be held in strictest confidence.

Please give a minute of your time now. Please fill out the enclosed questionnaire while you have it before you.

We will sincerely appreciate your help.

Sincerely,

James W. Miller Assistant Professor of Education Principal Investigator



Appendix C (Continued) TRANSCRIPT RELEASE FORM

The Early Admissions Follow-Up Project, being conducted at the University of Hawaii under a cooperative research grant from the U.S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, has my permission to secure transcripts of grades of my college work.

It is understood that they will handle the information in confidence.

Signature of Student
Date



Appendix D

Summary of Returns in the Early Admission Follow-up

Study

School	Included in Study	Deceased	Roturned Unclaimed	No Record	O'thea*	Totals
CHT(AT)						***********
Control	17	0	14	2	0	33
Exp.	24	. 0	19	7	Ö	50
COLUMBIA			•			
Control	26	0	12	10	0	43
Exp.	37 .	0	9	5	. 0	51
OBELIAIN						
Control	14	0	5	0	0	19
Exp.	9	0	3	2	Ō	14
wisconsin	•				•	
Control	29	. 1	Q	4	. 2	45
Exp.	43	Ô	9	ë	Ô	50 50
•			_	<u>.</u>		1
YAĻE			•			
Control	35	1	8	7	1	5.2
Exp.	31	1	7.	7	0	46
loiais	265		89	<u></u>	3	410 -

^{*}Includes late questionnaires and those person, who did not classe to answer the questionnaire;



Appendix F

Career Preferences of the Early Admittees, 1951 (57, p. 122)

\$1 0 \$1 00 \$1		U.	olleges an	Colleges and Universities	S • 1	· ·	
00000000000000000000000000000000000000	Chi cago	Columbia	Oberlin	Misconsin Vale	yale	Totals	
Science	33	28	13	22	٥\ دا	115	• • •
Non-science	0, -1	7	12	12	77	79	
Unknown	ω	95	0	8) r!	G • 1	62	
TOTALS	6	ភ	25	25	25	240	

Appendix G

Supplementary Tables of Summary of Responses to the Follow-up Questionnaire

- University of Chicago Control Students
- II. Columbia University Control Students
- III. Oberlin College Control Students
- IV. University of Wisconsin Control Students
 - V. Yale University Control Students
- VI. Total Control Students
- VII. University of Chicago Experimenta' Students
- VIII. Columbia University Experimental Students
 - 1X. Oberlin College Experimental Students
 - X. University of Wisconsin Experimental Students
 - XI. Yale University Experimental Studiets
- XII. Total Experimental Students



Table I. SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

University of Chicago - Control Students

					<u> </u>						
Question Number		·		Numbe	r of	Items	in (uesti.	on		
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	18k≉
Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5		2 1 2 1	2 16 4 4	1 2 6 5	10 16 1	6 10 1	1				
Part II 1 2 3 4 5 6 7		12 1. 5 13 4 3	6 1 3 7	3 2 9 2	2 6 5 1 5	5 2 1	5 1 2 5	2	3		
Part 111 2 3 4 5 6		12 15 9 10 7	5 2 8 1 2 6	6 8 6	5						:
Part IV 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Part V 1	11 10	7 4 2 4 2 10 9 1	1 2 1 7 6 12	1 1 4	3 1	1					9 11 15
2 3 4 *No Res	5 5	4 4 2 4	11 1 1 7	8 7 1.	2	3	1				

ERIC

Table I (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

University of Chicago - Control Students

Question				Number	r of	Items	in Q	uesti	on ·		
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NR*
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9	13 17	5 4 2 14 6	3 2 3 4	4	5	13					
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	1 14 11.	3 6 6 1 13	5 8 7 2	2 3 1 6 3 1 2	5 3 3	3	2	2			
Part VI1 1 2 3 4 5	1.6 1.0 8 5	1 2 3 3 4	2 4 2 4	2 1 4 1	1	,	1	1		1	

Table II SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Columbia University - Control Students

Question Number		·····	~	Numb	er of	Itiem	s in (_{zucsti}	Lon		
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NK*
Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5		4 3 7 2	23 2 4	4 2 3 8 4	13 24 1 7 8	9 14 1 2	1 6				
Part II 1 2 3 4 5 6 7		15 3 2 18 2 5	36 367	7 5 6 15	2 10 7 11	5 3 3 7 3	5	1 3 1 3	5		
Part III 1 2 3 4 5 6		22 19 9 22 15	. 4 7 1.7 3 3	1 7 17	1 6						
Part IV 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	16 16	11 5 2 8 1 17 4	1 1 9 11 21	2 4	8						15 20 23
Part V 1 2 3 4 *No Rc	5 5	5 5 2 10	21 21 5 4 7	6 3 4	7	3	3				i

ERIC

Table II (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Columbia University - Control Students

Question				Numbe	r of	Items	in Q	uesti.	.on		
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NR*
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9	20 25	14 5 6 24 7	3 2 1 5	3 1	8 1 7	16					1
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	2 24 18	3 9 8 2 12 1 5	6 10 12 3 7 1	12. 5 6 8 3	1 2 6	2 4	3 2	2			
Part VI) 1 2 3 4 5	26 16 4 8 7	4 13 7 8	5 1 6	2 2 1 1	2 3 1	1 2 1	2 1 1 1		ì	3	

. .

Table III SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Oberlin College - Control Students

Number of Petals In Question Number 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 NRS Part II 1 2 3 4 1 4 7 1	Question			· ·	Numbe	c of	Items	in Q	nesti	on		
Part III Part IV Part IV Part V Part Part Part Part Part Part Part Part	Number	0	1	2	3	4 .	5	6	7	8	9	NR [®]
Part IV Part IV Part V Part Part Part Part Part Part Part Part	Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5		5 2 7 3				1	1		·)))
Part IV Part IV Part IV Part IV Part V Part Part Part Part Part Part Part Part	2 3		3 13					1	5		1	1 1 1 1 1 1
Part V 1	1		10 8 1. 9 2	3 5 12 2 3 4	2 8 8	1						1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
	1 2 3 4 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	1 2 3	4		1 3 3 1 1]		1.				1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Table III (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Oberlin College - Control Students

Question Number			. 1	Number	cof	Ltems	in Q	aesti	on	,	
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NK*
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9	11	13 6 1 12 3 4	3 1 1 9	1	2	1					1 1 1 2 1
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	3 · 9 11	2 4 1.1 6 4 2	9 6 4 3	2. 2. 3. 6	9	2		1		·).) 1 1 1
Part VI. 1 2 3 4 5 5	13 7 3 4	5 4 1 5	2. 3. 2.	1 3 3	1	1]].			1	1. 1 1, 1,

Table IV SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

University of Wisconsin - Control Students

Question Number				Numbe	rof	Items	in ((uesti	on	. ,	·
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	KR*
Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5 6		8 3 13 3	1 5 26 4 5	7 9 6	7 29 1 1 6	.21. 8 2 4	5				
Part II 1 2 3 4 5 6 7		24 3 4 25 1 2	1 2 17 2 3 18	5 4 1 6 22 5	2 4 5 1 4	2 7 3 3	6	5	5		
Part III 1 2 3 4 5 6	·	1.7 24 9 20 1.5	12 4 20 5 4 7	4 9 19	1 3)
Part IV . 1 . 2 . 3 . 4 . 5 . 6 . 7 . 8	19 20 1	14 7 4 9 26 12	1 3 7 24	8 4	9						1 ! 2 ! 2 !
Part V 1 2 3 4	4 <i>!</i> :	4 4 5 10	25 4 6 14	7 7 1	9 7	4	1				

Table IV (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSIB EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

University of Wisconsin - Control Students

Question Number				Numbe	ı of	Lucins	in Q	uesti	on		
Number	0)	2	3	۷,	5	6	7	8	9	NR#
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9	23 25	11 6 5 26 4 6	4 3 2 14	7 5	3	1 9)).
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	3 24 17	2 4 6 1 16 2 9	8 22 14 5 5	6 2 4 13 2	5 4 2	2 5 1	3 1 2 1	1.		,	1. 1.
Part V) 1 2 3 4 5	28 19 13 15 5	1. 5 6 4	2 5 1. 8	2 2 3	1. 3 3	1	2 2	1	1	2	1

Table V SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Yale University - Control Students

Question Number				Numl	oer of	Item	sin	Quest	i.on		
Number	()	1.	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NR*
Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5 6		14 11 12	1 21 7 7	12 4	1.5 3.5 7 4 3	18 9 2	2 19				3
Part II 2 3 4 5 6 7	,	31 1 2 35	1. 25	2 2	2	3 8 5	1 1.	10	11		
5 6 7		6	3 28	2.5 2	8 1 5	2	13	7	4	1.	
Part III 1 2 3 4 5 6		21 29 13 28 18	14 6 22 2 7 4	5 9 1.0	1. 1.9						
Part IV 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	29 22 6	15 2 6 4 1 30 14 6	3 2 1 5 8 21	1 1 1 5 8	1.1) 6 1:3 26
art V 1 2 3 4	10	10 1.0 7	25 9 4 1.5	4 15 2	10	2 1					

Table V (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Yale University - Control Students

Question Number		7 	 -	Numbe	er of	Item:	ร มีท (Questi	on		
	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	·	9	NR*
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9 10	30 34	18 9 1 33 1 4	1 3 2 2 2	8 3 2	8 3	16					1
art Vi		_				_					
2 3 4		5 6 11.	9 1.9	7 6 7	2 3	4	2	2	1	3)
5 6 7	1 21 14	5 16 4 9	17 5 8 1 2	7 6 5 2 1	7.	7 1 2	5 2 4 3	3 2			
art VII						_]					2
1 2 3 4 5	34 22 13 26 5	1 6 8 5 12	5 7 1. 8	1 7 1 5	1 2		1 3)	

2.6

Table VI SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Total Control Students .

Question				Numbe	r of l	Items	in Q	nesti	on		
Number	0	1	2 ·	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	N (S
Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5 6		33 20 41 9	1 15 97 17 22	5 3 16 41 22	49 117 14 16 24	61 42 4 10	4 1 33				1 1 1
Part II 1 2 3 4 5 6		94 8 16 104 3 19	2 5 64 6 1.8 7.1	1. 19 11 1. 14 79 14	. 9 20 28 3 25	10 26 8 12 11	12 2 1 2 2 2 3	1 20 1 22	3 0	J.	
Part III 2 3 4 5 6		82 95 41 89 57 2	38 24 79 13 19 24	18 41 60	3 34						
Part IV 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	82 78 8	54 21 16 30 6 90 46 14	6 1 3 5 2 30 35 85	1 2 2 3 1 20 20	32 10						1 · i · i · 2 · 2 · 2
Part V 1 2 3 4	26 28	27 27 9 32	91 20 16 49	26 41 10	1 20 24	1 13 2	5].

*No Response

Table VI (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Total Control Students

Question				Number	r of	Ltiems	in Q	a-sti	on		
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9 10	97 109	61 30 15 109 8 27	8 12 5 10 2 55	22 10 2	27 12 21	1. 55					2002
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	10 92 71	13 27 35 10 63 11 29	30 68 56 19 23 3	36 18 21 39 13 4	16 5 8 22 2 3	8 19 1 4	5 1) 4 6 4	7 4 1. 2	1	3	2
Part V1) 1 2 3 4 5	117 74 41 58 25	3 22 34 20 35	9 23 8 28	5 13 11 13	3 3 8 7	2 2 3	i	2:	'		

Table Vii SUNNARY OF RESECUSES EARLY ADMESSION FOLLOGI-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

University of Chicago - Experimental Students

Question	<u></u> ,		_.	ignalogy y	ا (۱۱)	1	 .				
Number	0)	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	1.11%
Part 1 Ques. 1 2 3 4 5 6		1 7 2 5	6 16 2 6 6	1 / 7 / 4 / 6 5	1 1 5 4	1 } 2 1	7				
Part 11 2 3 4 5 6 7		17 1 5 20 1 7	6 2 8	2 3 15	3 1.2 5	3 6	3 1 3 4	1 1 5	10		
Part III 2 3 4 5 6		13 17 16 14 17	11. 7 8 1	9 6 1 .1.] 10						
Part: 13 2 3 6 5 6	19 19	14 5 4 5 1 12 9	2 2 2 12	1 2 1	2)))/	
Part V 1. 2. 3. 4	1. 8 8	8 8	20 16 6 1	5 4 3 6 2	2 4, 4,	2. 1.	1 2				

Table VII (Continued) SUBMARY OF REDUCTION EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

University of Chicago - Experimental Students

Question				Numbe	r of	Items	in Q	esti	on		
Number	()]	2	3	4	5	(.	7	ક	9	1. ::*
Part V (Cont d) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9	21	7 6 2 2? 11	1 5 2 4	5]]	10	1)				3
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	3 21 14	4 5 12 1 17 1 8	5 9 9 9 2 1	10 8 3 5 1 1	3 2 4	2	;s 1	J. J.)
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5	2.3 1.5 5 1.2 6	1 2 9 1 7	2 7 3 5	1 2	1. 2	1	4 2 1 2	1		3	The same of the sa

Mo desposse

3 3 a

Table VIII SUMMARY OF RESUGNSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRES

Columbia University - Experimental Students

Quastica Number				Numbe	: os	Items	in Q	uesti	011		
Number	0)	2	3	4	5	(,	7	8	9	1.1;*
Part I Ques. 1 ? 3 4 5		7 7 8 3	5 2 2 30 4 9	32 21 2 10 6	14 2 12 5	24 2 6	1 8				
Part J1 2 3 4 5 6 7		2? 2 2 27 1	7 2 5 5	1. 3 1 4 20 5	1.1. 2.3 1.1. 1. 2.4	8 6 2 5 5	7 3 4 7	5	9 4		
Part 11: 1 2 3 4 5 6		20 33 18 26 24	1.7 4 1.9 8 7	1. 5 19	1. 15						
Part IV 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	18 29 4	17 9 12 10 2 14 14 5	2 1 7 23 13 27	1 2 1 2 1 4 5	5 2						23
Part V 1. 2 3 4	14	1.4 1.4 1. 9	23 11 6 9	7 10 4	4 4 1	1.	2	. C.O			

Table VIII (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Columbia University - Experimental Students

Question Number				Numb:	r of	Items	in () esti	.on	•	
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	11.1%
Part. V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8	34 36	7 3 2 34 1	4 3 1 2	9	16 6	24					1
10		12.	3	3	17	2					
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	7 34 21	1 4 9 7 23	5 24 18 6 5	20 3 6 12	3 6 3 5	5	5 1	1		3	1
Part VII 1 2 3 4 5	33 18 7 8 6	4 7 19 5 11	2 5 9 6	4 2 6 5	2 2 2 5]]] 1	5 1 2 2	1			

SMO RESPON

Table 1X SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Oberlin College - Experimental Students

Question Number				Numb	er of	Items	s in (Juesti	ion		
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NR*
Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5		3 4 6	1 7 1 5	8 2 2 1 3	1. 2. 1	2	2				
Part II		8					1	,			
2		2	4	2	1			3	6		
2 3 4 5 6 7		2 3	2. 4	5 1.).).	1	3	2.	2		
Part III 2 3 4 5		3 7 5 3 6	6 2 3 1 1	5 2 6	2)
Part 1V 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	6 5 2	4 1 3 2 2 4 1 1	1 5 4 8).).	2	·					4, 7 6
Part V) 2 3 4	2 2	2 2 1 4	6 4 1. 3	1 5	2.		1	·			

*No Response

Table IX (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Oberlin College - Experimental Students

Ouestion			N	lumber	of I	tems	j.n Q	iesti	on		
Question Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NR*
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9	8	2 1 7 6	1 1 2	4 3	3	2.					1.
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	1. 9 7	1 4 1 7	4 6 4 2 1	3 1 4	1 2		1				1
Part: VII 1 2 3 4	7 2 1	3 2 3	2.	1 2 2 1	2 1 1.	2	1.				;



Table X
SUMMARY OF RESPONSES
EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

University of Wisconsin - Experimental Students

Question Number				Numbe:	r or	Ltems	in Q	uesti	on		
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NR*
Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5 6	·	9 3 5 5	20 17 40 7 .8	23 24 5	2 11 11 8	18 3 2	2 8				1 1
Part II 1 2 3 4 5 6 7		34 5 4 34 1 13 2	1 14 3 5 14	1 4 1 23 2	4 22 7 2 23	3 1 5 9	5 4 1 4 10	3	1.9 4		
Part III 2 3 4 5 6		26 35 31 30 20	17 8 12 6 8 7	7 8 23	7 10	3				•	
Part IV 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	30 31 5	22 12 12 8 9 23 16 4	2 1 20 11 32	1 1. 2 3	1						17 30 29
Part V 1 2 3 4	7	7 9 3 7	34 14 4 19	1.3 1.5 5	2 14 10 2	3	3 1 1				

Table X (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

University of Wisconsin - Experimental Students

Question			1	Number	cof	Items	in Q	esti	on		
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NK*
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9	39 42	16 7 2 42 1 18	4 8 2 1 8	12. 4	1.0	1 19					
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	7 36 19	5 6 1.5 7 2.5 5 15	7 27 20 7 6 1	17 8 6 1.3 3	9 2 2 7	3	4	1	1.	2	2 1 1 1 1 1
Part VII 1 2 3 4 5	42 25 12 11 10	1 6 13 8 8	6 8 7 7	2 5 4 8	2 2 4 4	2 3 4	2 1 1 1			5	



Table XI
SUMMARY OF RESPONSES
EARLY ADMISSION FOLIOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Yale University - Experimental Students

Question			1	Numbe	rof	Items	in Q	estic	on		
Number	0	1	2	3_	4	5	6	7	8	9	NR*
Part I Ques. 1 2 3 4 5		1.5 6 8	9 11 4 25 6 2	22 16 5 12 10	4 4 3 3	3 1 7	1 9				
Part II: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7		24 4 28 6 2	1 18 3 18	2 1 4 2? 6	1 4 9 3	2 6 2 5	2 2 1 5	5	17]
Part III 2 2 3 4 5 6		23 29 15 22 15	8 2 16 5 8 3	4 7 24	1 3						1
Part IV 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	21 24	15 3 8 9 3 17 17	3 2 1 14 11 25	1 2 5	4, 1						12 25 21
Part V 1. 2 3 4	8 8	8 8 1 3	22 11 1 15	4 13 3	5 5 1	1 3 1 1	2.				

*No Response

1 17

Table XI (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Yale University - Experimental Students

Question				Numb	er of	Iten	s in	Quest	ion		. • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Number	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NR*
Part V (Cont'd) Ques, 5 6 7 8	23	18 9 4 27	3 2 2 4 2 9	4 3 2	6 4	13					
10	23	12	9	3 6	2	1		•			1
Part VI 2 3 4 5 6 7	3 25 11	3 2 14 3 1.9 4	12 22 13 2 16	11 2 4 12 2	4 4 6	5	3	ì 1) .	1
Part VII 2 3 4 5	31 17 5 9 5	5 8 3 4	3 1.1 3 4	3 6 4 7	2 1 1 3	1. 2. 3	1. 2	1		7 2	1.



Table XII SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Total Experimental Students

Question				lumber	of I	tems	in Qu	estic	n	·	
Number	0	. 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	1/4
Part I Ques. 3 2 3 4		1 41 22 32 9	41. 53 8 122 23 27	102 70 18 43 35	21 19 33 21	58 8 17	<i>ሊ</i> 34]
Part II		105 8 17 118 3 39 11	1 1 49 5 17 49	3 8 1.0 1 7 8.5 14	19 62 33 3 63	16 21 3 12 25	18 10 2 12 29 29	1 16 1 24	6]
Part III		85 121 85 97 82 1	59 23 58 21 24 16	26 28 83	10 40	3					3
	94 108 5 7 12	68 30 39 34 17 70 57	8 5 11 3 74 46 112	5 6 4 5 1 20 21	1.4 9						103
	1 2 3 3 4 39	39 41 8 26	1.01 46 1.3 55	28 49 14	2 1.9 2.3 6	1 6 5 3	1. 4. 7. 1.	·			

*No Response

Table XII (Continued) SUMMARY OF RESPONSES EARLY ADMISSION FOLIOW UP QUESTIONNAIRE

Total Experimental Students

Question		•		Numbe	ar of	Items	in (uesti	on		
Number	. 0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	NK*
Part V (Cont'd) Ques. 5 6 7 8 9 10	124	50 26 10 132 3 59	12 18 6 10 2 26	3/ ₁ 12 3 3	45 18 41	1 69 5					2 1 2
Part VI 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	21 125 72	14 1.7 54 19 91 10 50	33 88 64 26 30 2	61 22 19 46 6 2	20 16 5 23	15	5 12 2 1	4 1 1	1	6	1 1 2 3 2 2 3
Part VII 1 2 3 4 5	1.38 82 31 41 29	6 20 52 19 33	13 31 24 22	10 15 17 23	6 8 10 13	3 3 7 11	10 4 5 7	3		19	2

Bibliography

- American Education Research Association. Natural sciences and mathematics: Reviews the literature for the three-year period since October, 1942. <u>Rev. Educ. Res.</u>, 1945, 15, 269-331.
- American Education Research Association. Natural sciences and mathematics: Reviews the literature for the period ending March 31, 1942. Rev. Educ. Res., 1942, 12, 359-452.
- 3. Alpern, H. Educating the superior student in the high schools of New York City. J. Educ. Soci., 1939, 13, 112-119.
- 4. Anderson, H. A. (Ed.). Ford millions for education. <u>Sch. Rev.</u>, 1951, 59, 316-320.
- 5. _____. The University of Buffalo experiment. Sch. Rev., 1953, 61, 385-386.
- 6. _____. From school to college. <u>Sch. Rev.</u>, 1953, 61, 378-385.
- 7. Anderson, K. E. (Ed.). <u>Research on the academically talented</u>
 <u>studented</u>. Washington, D. D.: National Education Association,
 1961.
- 8. Anderson, R. L., and Beneroft, T. A. Statistical theory is personal. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1952.
- 9. Aydelotte, F. Breaking the accident lock step. Rev York: Estimated Bros., 1944.
- 10. Barnette, W. L. Advanced credit for the superior high school student. J. Higher Educ., 1957, 28, 15-20.
- 11. Barre, W. B. What is emichaent? Sch. and Soc., 1958, 86, 222-223.
- 12. Benner, E. Final report of the university of Chicago experiment.
 N. Cont. Assn. Q., 1941, 16, 212-214.
- 13. Bent, R. K., and Kronenberg, H. <u>Principles of secondary editation</u>.

 New York: McGraw-Hill, 1955.

- 14. Berg, I. A., and Larsen, R. P. Comparative study of students entering college one or two semesters before graduation from high school. <u>J. Educ. Res.</u>, 1945, 39, 33-41.
- 15. Bish, C. What are the advantages and disadvantages of acceleration?

 In <u>Educating the academically able</u> (Crow, :. D., and Crow, Alice, Editors). New York: David McKay Co., 1963.
- 16. Blackmer, A. R. (Chairman of the Committee). General education in school and college. Cambridge, Mass.: Harvard University, 1952.
- 17. Bloom, B. S., and Ward, F. C. The Chicago BA after ten years.

 J. Higher Educ., 1982, 23, 459-467.
- Boardson, C. W. Study of high school-college curriculum articulation in Minnesota. N. Cent. Assn. Q., 1931, 26, 195-201.
- 19. Brannell, P. R. Articulation of high school and college. Bull, 1932, No. 17, Nat. Surv. of Sed. Educ. Money., No. 10. Washington, D. C.: Government Printing Office, 1933.
- 20. Boucher, C. S. The Chicago college plan. Chicago: University of Chicago, 1935.
- 21. Bryan, R. C. Some reactions to the evaluation report: They went to college early. <u>MASSP Bull. 232</u>, 1957 (November), 41, 1-10.
- 22. Butler, B. N. High school students and college credit. Sch. and Soc., 1959, 87, 499-500.
- 23. Carnegle Foundation for the Advancement of Tracting

 A Program for a study of the relations of secondary and

 higher charation in the state of Pennsylv 1. New York:

 Carnegic Foundation, 1920.
- 24. College Entrance Examination Board (Cirib). College admissions. Princeton, New Jersey: The Authors, 1988.
- 25. Advanced placement memory syllabus. New York: The Authors, 1958.
- 26. <u>College admission with advanced standing</u>. Primaton, New Jersey: The Authors, 1956.
- 27. Chamberlain, L. H., and Others. Did they succeed in collect?
 New York: Harper and Bros., 1942.

- 28. Chalmers, G. K., and Others. The school and college study of admission with advanced standing. Mimeographed report prepared by the Committee, Philadelphia, 1953.
- 29. Columbia University. Announcement of Golumbia college, 1953.

 New York: The Authors, 1953.
- 30. Cooley, W. W. <u>Carcer development of scientists</u>. Cooperative Research Project No. 436. Cambridge, Mass.: Graduate School of Education, Harvard, 1963.
- 31. Copley, F. O. The American high school and the talented student.
 Ann Arbor, Mich.: University of Michigan, 1961.
- 32. Corney, W. H. College admissions with advanced standings. In <u>Fig. 19.4 conf. on terting problems</u>. Princeton, New Jersey: Educational Testing Service, 1954.
- 33. Initiating an educational program for the able student in secondary school, Educ. Dig., 1957, 22, 12-15.
- 34. Cox, D. R. <u>Planning experiments</u>. New York: Wiley and Sons, 1961. (Second printing.)
- 35. Crow, L. D., and Crow, Alice (Ed.). Education the academically able. New York: David M: Kay, 1963.
- 36. Curtis, F. D. <u>Second digest of investigations in the teaching of science</u>. Philadelphia: P. Blakiston's Sons, 1930.
- 37. Detain, Lily. College education without high school graduction.
 Sch. Rev., 1939, 47, 182-191.
- 38. Dudley, D. A. The advanced placement proplate. Coll. and the two 1908-59, 34, 171-179.
- 39. Hby, W. The development of modern education. New York: Practices Hall, 1985. (Third printing.)
- ted high school series. Sch. and Sec., 1942, 56, Co. 520.
- 41. Ekstree, Ruth B. Farly admission to college. J. Educ Is ... 1964, 57, 409-412.
- A report to the Fund for the advancement of education.

 Princeton, New Jersey: Educational Testing Service, 1600.

- 43. Educational Policies Commission. The effect of population changes on American education. Washington, D. C.: National Education Association, 1938.
- 44. <u>Education for all vouth</u>. Washington, D. C.: National Education Association, 1944.
- 45. Educational Services Incorporated. 1959 Progress report: A review of the secondary school physics program of the PSSC. Watertown, Mass.: The Authors, 1960.
- 46. Eells, W. C. The bachelors' degree from the junior college standpoint. Educ. Rec., 1942, 23, 574-585.
- 47. Eurich, A. C., and Scanlon, J. J. Articulation of educational units. In <u>Encyclopedia of Educ. Rec.</u>, 3rd edition, (Harris, C. W., Ed.). New York: MacMillan, 1960.
- 48. Farwell, G. F. High school college articulation. NASSP Bull., 1956, 40, 43-47.
- 49. Fels, W. C. Articulation between school and college. <u>Educ.</u> <u>Rec.</u>, 1958, 39, 110-112.
- 50. Fergusen, G. A. Statistical analysis in psychology and education. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1906.
- 51. Ferris, F. L. PSSC: Achievement test report. Sci. T., 1959.
- 52. Fine, B. Barron's profiles of American college. Woodbury, New York: Barron's Educational series, 1935.
- 53. Finlay, G. C. PSSC: A status report. Sci. 1., 1959, 26, 574-176.
- 54. Fisher, I. B. An analysis of problems of articulation and suggestions for action. N. Cent. Assn. Q., 1960, 35, 11-16.
- 55. Flesher, Marie A. Did they graduate too young? <u>Educ. Res. Publis</u> 1945, 24, 218-21.
- 56. French, J. L. (Ed.). Education the sifted: A book of ready the New York: Holt, 1959.
- 57. Fund for the Advancement of Education (FAE). Bidding the AB:
 between school and college. (Report No. 1.) New York: The
 Authors, 1953.
- 58. They went to college carly. (Report No. 2.) New York: The Authors, 1957.

- 59. Further comments on EPC's resolution. Sch. and Soc., 1942, 56, 627-628.
- 60. Gardner, Marjorie H. A follow-up study of graduates from the unlengraduate science education curriculum at the Ohio state university 1948-59. Unpublished doctoral dissertation, Ohio State University, 1961.
- 61. Good, C. V., and Scates, D. E. <u>Methods of research</u>: New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1954.
- 62. Guilford, J. P. <u>Fundamental statistics in psychology and education</u>. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1956.
- 63. Harvard University. <u>Catalogues, 1830-1877</u>. Cambridge, Mass.: 1830-1877.
- 64. Hays, W. Statistics for psychologists. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1966.
- 65. Herge, H. C. <u>Wartime college training programs of the appliance.</u> Washington, D. C.: American Council on Edition, 1948.
- 66. Hunt, H. G. Problems of articulation between high sched and college. Educ. Forum, 1964, 18, 281-285.
- 67. Hutchins, R. M. <u>Higher learning in America</u>. New Haven, that: Nale University, 1985.
- 68. The university of Chicago and the heatelouts degree. Idua, Roc., 1942, 23, 567-573.
- 69. Jahoda, Marie; Deutsch, M., and Cook, S. W. Franch methods in social relations. New York: Dryden Pages, 1981.
- 70. Jones, E. S. Integrating high school and college. J. Halp Edgg., 1933, 4, 131-122.
- 71. Studies in articulation of high school and collectuative, of Buffalo Studies, Series 1, Vol. 1X, 1984.
 Buffalo: University of Buffalo, 1984.
- 72. Jones, F. S., and Ortner, Gloria K. <u>Gollege credit by examination</u>. Univ. of Buffalo Studies, Series III, Vol. 21, 1982.

 Buffalo: University of Buffalo, 1984.
- 73. Keller, Charles R. Piercing the sheep skin curtain: I report on the advanced placement program in its first year of sponsorship by the college board. Coll. Board Rev., 1955 (December), 19-23.

- 89. Nea policies commission favors college entrance for high school seniors. Sch. and Soc., 1942, 56, 602.
- 90. National Association of Secondary School Principals. MASSP Bulletin, (February, 1958.) Washington, D. C.: The Authors, 1958.
- 91. National Education Association. <u>Administration: Procedures</u>
 and school practices for the academically talented student
 in the secondary school. Washington, D. C.: The Authors,
 1960.
- 92. Identification and education of the academically talented student in the American secondary school. Washington, D. C.: The Authors, 1958.
- 93. Journal of proceedings and addresses (1899).
 Washington, D. C.: The Authors, 1899.
- 94. Norton, B. M. College admission with advanced standing. J. Chem. Educ., 1956, 33, 232-241.
- 95. New York Times. New York Times (microfilm of the year 1951)
 New York: The Authors, 1951.
- 96. Pressey, S. L. A conference on accelerated education 2 programs. Sch. and Soc., 1942, 56, 49-50.
- 97. Acceleration-basic principles and accent accent. In <u>Testing problems in persucctive</u> (Anastasi, Anne, Filter). Washington, D. C.: American Council on Education, 1980.
- 98. Conference on accelerated academic programs School 2 Soc., 1942, 56, 49-50.
- 99. Credit by examination: Present uses and further nect.

 J. Educ. Res., 1945, 38, 596-305.
- 100. Physical Science Study Committee (PSSC). First annu in port of the PSSC, 1957. Watertown, Mass.: The Authors, 186.
- 101. General report of the PSSC, 1956. Waterten, Mass., 1956. (Mimeographed/)
- 102. Rainey, H. P. The devaluation of the educational cu 139. Educ. Rec., 1942, 23, 586-592.
- 103. Recves, F. W., and Russell, J. D. Admission and retained in Chicago: University of Chicago, 1933.

- 104. Richardson, J. W. Problems of articulation between the units of secondary education. New York: Teachers' College, Columbia, 1940.
- 105. Rickover, H. G. <u>American education—a national failure</u>. New York: E. P. Dutton, 1963.
- 106. Siegel, S. <u>Nonparametric statistics for the behavioral sciences</u>. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1956.
- 107. Shofstall, W. P. The achievement of high school and college students in the same classes. Sch. Rev., 1935, 43, 184-188.
- 108. Sisson, Marjorie S. A study of educational acceleration among university students. Unpublished doctoral dissertation, Purdue, 1965. (Dissertation abstract 65-8670, 1436.)
- 109. Tatsuoka, M. M., and Tiedeman, D. V. Statistics as an aspect of scientific method in research on teaching. In <u>Handbook of Research on Teaching</u> (Gage, N. L., Ed.). Chicago: Rand McNally, 1963.
- 110. Tenney E. A. Academic treason in liberal arts colleges. J. Higher Educ., 1952, 23, 287-294.
- 111. Torman, L. M., and Oden, Melita H. The gifted child was up. Stanford: Stanford University, 1947.
- 112. The gifted group at mid-life. Stanford: Stanford University, 1959.
- 113. Tippo, O. Biology 1960, the new AIRS course. Sci. T., 1989, 26, 353-354.
- 114. Tolley, W. P. A counterfeit bachelou's degree. <u>Edita I See</u> 1942, 23, 593-601.
- 115. Trables, A. E., and Todhsend, Agatha. In control to a 1960.

 from school to college. New York: Ecopes and John, 1960.
- 116. University of Chicago. The idea and wactice of good in the Authors, 1950.
- Chicago: The Authors, 1931.
- 118. Valley, J. P. College actions: A report on the CH P advanced placement mathematics and science examinations, 1988. Science, 1989, 26, 399-402.

- 119. Van Kleeck, E. R. If colleges start cradle snatching. <u>Nation's Sch.</u>, 1943, 31, 32.
- 120. Wagner, Maizie E. Anticipatory examinations for college credit. Univ. of Buffalo Studies, Vol. 20, No. 3,1952.
 Buffalo: University of Buffalo, 1952.
- 121. Wilcox, E. T. Advanced standing at Harvard college. Sch. and Soc., 1958, 86, 354-357.
- 122. Winer, B. J. Statistical principles in experimental design.
 New York: McGraw-Hill, 1962.

	•				
	OE 6000 (REV. 9-66) DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WE	LEFARE			
	ERIC ACCESSION NO. OFFICE OF EDUCATION				
(TOP)	ERIC REPORT RESUME				
	CLEARINGHOUSE			,	
	ACCESSION NUMBER RESUME DATE P.A. T.A. IS DOCUMENT OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROP	OPYRIGHTED?	YES 🔲	NO 🗹	
001	ERIC REPRO	DUCTION RELEASE?	YES 🗹	ио 🗆	
	TITLE		-	-	
100	Male Student Success in the Collegiate Early	Admission			
101	Experiment - (Final Report to Project No. BR	-5-0834)			
102	·				
103		·			
	PERSONAL AUTHOR(S)		•		
200					
	INSTITUTION (SOURCE)		SOURC	E CODE	
300					
310	· -				
	Doctoral Thesis				
320	Harvard Univ., Cambridge, Mass., Graduate Sch. of Ed.				
330	OTHER REPORT NO. OTHER SOURCE CODE			E CODE	
240			Joons	- 4452	
340 350			L		
400					
400	PAGINATION, ETC.				
500	198p. Initially funded as Project 1570.	l la			
501					
	RETRIEVAL TERMS				
600					
601	Higher Education, Academic Acceleration, For	Higher Education, Academic Acceleration, Ford Foundation,			
602	Early Admissions, General Education				
603					
604					
605	5				
606					
IDENTIFIERS					
607	Early Admission Program, Ford Foundation				
000	ABSTRACT 1951, 420 students of high academic promise at the end of				
800 801	the tenth grade entered eleven colleges and universities as fresh-				
802	men. The students were part of Early Admission Program financed				
803		by the Fund for the Advancement of Education of the Ford Foundation			
804	between 1951 and 1958. The follow-up study, begun in 1962, of five				
805	of the twelve colleges and universities in the Program, traced				
806	the young men who, in 1951, had entered Colu	the young men who, in 1951, had entered Columbia, Chicago, Oberlin,			
807	Wisconsin, and Yale.			·	
808	Data for the follow-up study came from t	hree sources	- Ques	tion-	
809	naires used in 1953 and in 1955, academic tr	anscripts, a	ind the		
810	follow-up questionnaire.				
811	In 1951, 240 experimental students and 2	52 control s	tudents	had	
812	attended the five colleges and universities	in the follo	w-up st	udy.	
813		roup and 197	of the	ł	
814	control group were men.	control group were men.			
815		Approximately 65% of both groups responded to the follow-up			
816		questionnaire.			
817		Five null hypotheses were identified and tested, with exten-			
818		sive use of Chi-squares.			
819		The general conclusion which evolved from the pattern of the			
820	, v	rejections of the null hypothesis was that experimental group had			
821		accelerated the development of careers with minimum observable			
822	ill-effects both during and after college.				

